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MR. CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, I am
sorry, 1 am a little bit late.

SHRI G. C, BHATTACHARYA: We
want to bring to your kind notice that
from tomorrow we are having Janata
Parliamentary Party meeting for three
days but it is important that we should
not miss the committee meetings. So,
Mr. Chairman, i# you kindly agree
and if the hon, friends also agree, we

may meet every day from 8 to 10 in
the morning and therealter we can go
to the Party meeting. Otherwise it
will be very difficult for us,

MR. CHAIRMAN;, I agree with you.
I am myself in a dilemma over this.
But you must understand that almost
50 per cent or so of the members do
not belong to the Janata Party and
they are not willing to change the



dates that were fixeq long before the
Janta Parliamentary Party meeting
was called. Even if they are willing
to accommodate us to the extent that
we may meet early, the witnesseg have
been told to come at 11 O’ clock.

SHRI MALLIKARJUN: There is no
question of changing the schedule or
the time. We are entering into a new
atmosphere and the winter is fast ap-
proaching. So it will be very diffi-
cult for us it you change it from 11
am. to 8 or 9 am.

SHRI G. C. BHATTACHARYA: Just
that will enable us to participate in
the party meeting.

SHRI MALLIKARJUN: There is
no question if any party meeting or
any such thing. Since you have re-
ferred to it, I mentioned it. Please do
not bring in any party things here.

SHRI G. C. BHATTACHARYA* 1
am only gaying certain facts.

SHRI MALLIKARJUN. If you are
s0 keen ang interested in participating
in the proceedings of the Party, you
are welcome to go there and you can
be absent here.

SHRI G. C. BHATTACHARYA:
What my friend is saying is quite all
right but it should be reasonable also.

SHRI MALLIKARJUN: What is un-
reasonable is for the Chair to say.

SHRI G. C. BHATTACHARYA:
What we are saying is only this much.
If you ingist, then let us meet for
certain fixed hours. Of course, to-
day witnesses might have come but
this request is only for tomorrow and
the other two days.

The witnesses may be requested to
accommodate an4 what my hon.
friend is saying is not reasonable.
After gll we did not know that our
committee will be meeting.

SHRI MALLIKARJUN: The wit-
nesses may be prepared to adjust
themselves but we are not prepared
to adjust.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Bhattacharya,
I also belong to the Janata Party and
I would like to be present in these
meetings. Yet, I find that these
witnesses are coming from outside.
One person is to come tomorrow from
Lucknow and the other person is
coming from Meerut. Another person
is coming from Pantnagar. Now they
have been given a certain time. I

" have no way of getting in touch with

them and informing them of the
change of hours. Therefore, we will
go to the Janata Party meetings to the
extent we are free from these meet.
ings and I do not think it will be
possible to change the schedule of
these meetings much as I would like
to do it in my own interest and in the
interests of my colleagues from the
Janata Party, we are in a fix.

SHRI G. C. BHATTACHARYA. It
means you want to deprive the Janata
Party members of their effective parti-
cipation in the Select Committee
which will be doing injustice to them.

SHRI S. K. SARKAR. We have seen
80 many committee meetings but we
have not seen that hurry that we see
here that you are going to finish it in
3-4 days’ meetings.

SHRI RAJSEKHAR KOLLUR:
Pleage do not try to impose your deci-
sion on other members. The refrence
made by Mr, Bhatfacharya is very
bad.

SHRI S. K. SARKAR: That is not
the point. We are submitting to you
to consider it.

SHRI RAJSHEKHAR KOLLUR:
Don't you have any consideration for
other mambers who have come from
their places. 80, we have to waste
our time? Weé do not want to be at
your mercy. We cannot tolerate this.

SHRI G. C. BHATTACHARYA: But
you are getting two hours every day.

SHRI ABDULLA KOYA. Madam
Chairman  having summoneq all these
witnesses from different parts of
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India, it would not look nice if we
make any chasge now. It will rather
tell upon the reputation of our
committee before such eminent pecple.
Thevefore, we should adhere to the
programme already arranged.

SHRI G. C. BHATTACHARYA. 1
only wanted the adjustment of the
timing of the meetings but not post-
ponement.

MR. CHAIRMAN: But how can you

inform them?

SHRI G. C. BHATTACHARYA:
They will be in the capital.

MR. CHAIRMAN: 1 do not have
their addresses. 1 do not know where
they are staying. They have not fur-
nished us with their addresses. For
the sake of our parly meeting, if you
want to adjust these things I do not
think it will be a good precedent

ome others may say in the next
meeting, ‘we have our party meeting,
g0 plemse change the timings.’

SHRI G. C. BHATTACHARYA:
These are genuine things. I do not
know how can any motive be imputed
here? We are expressing our genuine
difficulties,

SHRI MALLIKARJUN: I do not
know what is the meaning of genuine
difficulties. We will give him a free
hand to go and attend the party meet-
ing and you can take advantage of the
intermediate journey facility also.

SHRI G. C. BHATTACHARYA:
Almost half of the members of the
Committes would like to participate
in the party meeting also. It is a
reasonsble request. You may accede
to the request. We do not want post-
ponement, we only wamt shifting of
the time a little earlier Trom 11 to 8
am. end if necessary, in the evening
also. Otherwise. you will be denying
the right of Janata Party members to
participate.

MR. CHAIRMAN: They will be
meeting according to the circular from

9 am. to 6 pm. What will be the ex-
act howrs—I do not know.

SHRI riiARIKESH . BAHADUR:
1030 am. to 1 p.m. and then 3 to @
pm.

SHRI MALLIKARJUN: From 10.30
am. to 11 hours you can smttend and
from 5 to 6 p.m. we will attend.
Within that time you cap contribute
to party meeting.

It will be a very bad precedent if
the Select Committee were to adjust
itself according to the convenience of
the individuals.

SHRI G. C. BHATTACHARYA:
This sort of thing has happened in
earlier times also. We have postpon-
ed meetings. It is not a new thing.
This is unforeseen.

MR. CHAIRMAN: May I say this to
you? The hon. Minister for Health
has requested us that we may change
the schedule because they have called
meetings of the Central Health
Council and we have had to regret-
fully say that we could not change the
schedule because there ware half a
dozen committees and it will be very
difficult to change the @fites. Un-
fortunately we have ng control over
the meetings of the other people.
These party meetings have been fixed
from 4th to 6th. They are extremely
important and 1 have no doubt in my
mind. At the same time, the fact re-
mains that we are not in a position to
change the dates or the timings of the
Joint Select Committee meetings for
the simple reason that we have in-
formed these witnesses coming from
all-over India. May 1 further say
that we are at present taking evidence
from these parties; the record of the
evidence will be available far all those
hon. Members who wish to see it?
They may go over it and know that
for themselves as to what anybody has
said before us. I go further and say
that if anyone wants a eyclesyled
copy of the evidence will be supplied
to him. You may go through it



leisurely and vou may know what the
witnesses have gaid. In the light ot
it, you can formulate your own amend-
ments. 1 may tell you that thig is not
a Clause-by-Clause Consideration in
which all of us have to be present.

SHRI G. C. BHATTACHARYA. Let
me tell you one thing. After all this
is a Select Committee before whom
the experts give evidence and we may
want to have some clarifications from
those experts. It is not enough that
we go through the record of evidence.
We have already seen their written
opinion circulated to us. When they
are tendering evidence before the
Committee we would like to seek
some clarifications from the learned
witnesses. What we want from the
hon. Members of this Caommittee is
that they may be pleased to adjust
the timings of the meetings.

SHR1 MALLIKARJUN: Those mem-
bers 'who are interested in examining
the witnesses may remain present—
not sl the members should put
questions at the same time while ex-
amining the witnesses.

SHRI G. C. BHATTACHARYA:
Everybody is not interested.

SHRI MALLIKARJUN: Once the
Select Committee has fixed its busi-~
ness hgw can you expect it to adjust
“the timings? You shauld be firm.

SHRI G. C. BHATTACHARYA: We
do not want to quarrel ar enter into
discuseiorl on this.

SHRI MALLIKARJUN. For the
convenijence of thé party you want to
adjust these things.

SHRI° G. C. BHATTACHARYA:
Why do you get mentally upset?

SHRI MALLIKARJUN: It is not a
question of my mental upset. Here the
principle is involved. What ] am
stating here is absolutely rationale
and reasonable.

MR. CHAIRMAN: May [ request
the hon. Members not to have seprate
conversations ?

SHRI MALLIKARJUN: This cannot
be changed for your sake.

SHRI G. C. BHATTACHARYA:
You ignore wus. There are several
other hon. Members who are Mem-
bers of the Janata Party who want to
go and participate in the meetings.

SHRI MALLIKARJUN. If they
want to go and participate there is no
bar on that. Mr. Bhattacharya, you
should know that we are sitting here
for seven days or so. 1 would like
be present here.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Will you please
stop this? I have heard your views.
Please leave it to us to see if there is
any possibility of any adjustment
that we could make.

SHRI MALLIKARJUN: There is s
least possibility of adjustment.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Why don't you
allow me to speak? It is not fair.

SHRI MALLIKARJUN: I am telling
here that there is a least possibility
for the adjustment.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Let me finish. I
have told you that as for mysell I
would like to make an adjustment.
We have given the timings to the
witnesses who are coming form out-
side—from all over India. We have
no idea as to where they will be stay-
ing when they come to Delhi; unless
they contact us, we have no way of
intimating to them any change of
timings. In view of the strong opposi-
tion by the non-Janata Party Members,
1 wonder if it is worth making this
effort without a likelihood of our
succeeding in making the change. All
that I can say is this. Let us proceed
to-day. 1 was hoping that the party
meeting would be from 9 to 11 so that
We could at least be there for two
hours and then we come over here.



SHRI MALLIKARJUN. You may
make a request that the party meeting
might commence from 9 O'clock and
then it will be possible for you to
come ang attend this meeting.

MR. CHAIRMAN. Please do not
give the advice unsought for. Let us
proceed.

SHRI MALLIKARJUN: I am not
trying to give you any advice. You
must understand that I am absolutely
a non-entity to give you any advice.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You go on irritat-
ing other members by going on talk-
ing.

SHRI MALLIKARJUN: If they get
irritated in what way I am responsible
for it?

MR. CHAIRMAN: Let yg proceed.
Shall we call the witness? Before I
call the witness, let me make it clear.
Those who wish to ask any question
will be free to do so. You may do so
by asking a brief question. May I
further request that we are fortyfive
in number on this Committee. It is
not necessary that everyone of us
should ask a question from every
witness. I request that you should
not ask the same question. The ques-
tion asked by another Member should
not be repeated. With this request
I now ask the office to please call for
the witnesses,

1. SHRI G. B. PAI
1. SHRI K. N. BHAT

(The Witnesses were called in, and
they took their seats).

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Pai and
Mr. Bhat, I, on behalf of this Com-
mittee, welcome you both and express
my gratitude that you have come here
to give evidence before this Com-
mittee. There is a small formality
which I must mention at this paint.
That is, I would like to make it clear
to you that your evidence &hall be
treated as public and is liable to be
published unless you specifically

desire that all or any part™ of the
evidence given by you is to be treated
as confidential. I will also like to ex-
plain to you that even though the
evidence is desired to be treated as
confidential, such evidence is liable to
be made available to the Members of
Parliament. It cannot be kept confi-
dential from Members of Parliament.
Members will be free to make use of
your evidence and you should be pre-
pared for that. Having said that I
would request you to please go ahead
and let us know whether you wish to
say anything. You have sent your
memorandum. I think you have sent
your memorandum No. 3. That is re-
garding mentally retarded people.
You are representing the Association
for the mentally retarded. You may
briefly state what you wish to say and
then hon. Members will put brief
questions to you which, I hope, youvy
will be good enough to reply.

SHRI G. B. PAI. Madam Chairman
and hon. Members, we are both
greateful to you for the opportunity
given to us to come and give evidence
before this august Committee.

The statement I wish to make is
very brief and that is the inclusion of
mentally deficient and retarded per-
sons in this Mental Health Bill. The
point I am making here is that men-
tally retarded and mentally deficient
people are not suffering from any
disease. They cannot be cured by )
psychiatric treatment which the Bill
contemplates. The mentally deficient
people are born with less intelligence
than other normal people. In other
words their I1Q is lower. This is a
disability and not disease.

The mentally retarded are assessed
to be 3 to 5 per cent of the popula-
tion. That means these unfortunate
people are 18 to 25 million -of - the
Indian population. The Bill contem-
plates segregation, namely, putting
them into institutions and trying to
cure them.

MR. CHAIRMAN: May I clarify?
The Bill does not contemplate that
€,



they should be put in institutions for
treatment. What the Bill priveds is
¢hat as of today, there is no separate
Bill for the mentally retarded. If
there is a mentally retarded person
witout anybody to take care of him,
then somebody may bring such a per-
son to a mental Hospital and that per-
.on need not be refused admission by
the institution. There is no intention
that they should be necessarily seg-
regated and put in the institutions.

SHRI G. B. PAIL: Even then I say
that there should be a separate all-
inclusive Bill provisions of which
may require a different type of hand-
ling of the retarded persons. As far
as a retarded person is concerned
what he requires is special training
and some rehabilitation. There should
be training in simple avocation and
assimilation in the society.

Madam Chairman, this is provided
in Article 46 of the Constitution of
India where it talks of weaker sec-
tions of society. ‘Weaker sections’ is a
very wide term. Considering the
number of these retarded in this
country it is our social duty to pass
legislation with a view to protect and
assist these people. Legislation
should mainly deal with some sort of
specialist education, training and
teaching them repetitive and simple
vocations and then rehabilitating and
assimilating them in the society. If
you were to treat these mentally re-
tarded with mentally ill people that
will be doing great injustice to this
clags of people. International con-
ventions have been held on this sub-
ject both in Rome and Manila. With
vour permission may I pass one copy
thereof.

SHRI K. N. BHAT: Apart from
endorsing every word which my
friend has stated, I would like to
make some suggestions in the Bill it-
telf on the basis that you are agrée-
able to leave out the mentally retard-
ed from the ambit of the proposed
enactment. The definition in Clause

~ (2m) includes mentally deficient,

mental sub-normality, etc. and such
other like thing as may be prescribed.
The word ‘prescribed’ means as pres-
cribed by rules. As a lawyer 1 suggest
that this is very defectivee By way
of subordinate legislation you cannot
give power to State Government to
define what mental illnegs is. It has
got perious consequences. A particular
State in India may prescribe
‘a’ illness as mental illness which the
other State may not do. This has
got particular significance because
once a person is brought within the
definition of mental illness so many
consequences happen notwithstanding
the very good intention behind the
law. I say with greatest respect to
this august body that this hag a poten-
tial mischief in the Act which we
must avoid. As I have already pointed
out in 3 note to the Chairman of the
Federation in furtherance of this
good intention we may not unwittingly
bring another MISA. I say this with
all sense of responsibility. Since you
are in the process of making a law, I
request that this aspect may be con-
sidered by you.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Rules are to be
framed by the Government of India in
consultation with State Governmenats.

SHRI K. N. BHAT: You may please
see Clause 97. It is provided that the
State Government may by notification
in the official gazette make rules for
carrying out the provisions of this Act.

AN HON. MEMBER: It is a contra-
dictory feature.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You want that
there should be one set of Central
rules.

SHRI K. N  BHAT: In respect of
Mental Health, let India have one
siandard. That i{s our submission.

My next point is this. Hers you re.
cognise only one class of professional,
the psychiatrists. I have had discus.
sion with people in the fleld. I learn
that psychiatrists have no more grea-~
ter role to play than the ophthalmolo-
gist, In a blind school, for instance.



“They just need ordinary medical prac-~
titioners.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You have started
by saying that mental retardation may
be taken out.

SHRI K. N. BHAT: In case you don’t
acceépt that this will be stressed. If
once you decide to take it aut, then, I
have nothing further 1to add. I will
say, I am extremely obliged to this
Committee; and I will say thank you
very much. But in case you .are not
able to do that, this is the suggestion
that we sre making. You have got a
clags known as clinical psychologist.
There are institutions providing
specialised training. For example, you
have National Institute of Mental
Health, Bengalore. They have got Post-
Graduate Diploma for people who have
vassed M.A. in psychology. Diploma
is given in the institute. This is use~
ful in any future programme. There
are psychlatric social workers from the
institute in Bengalore. The Institute
provides them the basis for communi-
cating between the institute and the
persons concerned. These specialists
are not recognised in this Act which
‘we are enacting even as late as 1978.
This is our submission. Some State
Government may refuse to retognise
thewa under itg rule-making authority.
We ghould not be daing something
which is only on paper, but which is
not based on facts. You have defined
psychological hospitals and nursing
homes, I am speaking on behalf of
the Federation. We have several shel-
tered workshops and several other
centres where some help is available
to the retarded. As much training as-
rossible {s given to them, so that this
may be useful to them in their work.
They all have to be now licensed.
Clause 2(g) says that the licensing
authority may be such officer or autho-
rity as may be prescribed by the State
Government. I say, when you are
making this law, please iavolve the
professional bodies. Please don't leave
it 1o the executive Government. Today
one IAS officer may be Health Secre-
tary. Tomorrow he may be posted to
Industries Department as its Secretary.

" You may have another person belong.

ing to Ranking and #inance as Health
Secretary. You have  establighed
bodies and societies like the Medical
Council. There are voluntary orga-
nisations, who can be of help. You
should not treat this legislation just
like the Rent Control Act, for instance,
This is gur submission. The way this is
drafted, it seems, the drafismen think
there is no difference between an Act
like this and the Rent Control Act.
They say the same thing, same rules,
same condition saying, ‘notwithstand-
ing anything contained in these rules,
the State Government may’ etc. etc. I
say this because the whole world is
watching us. I know this because I
attended the ASEAN conference for
the welfare of the mentally retarded
which was held in Bengalore. Certain
discussions were held there. We told
them that we are in the process of
having a legiglation in the Indian
Parliament. Let us bring about a pro-
per law not just a change and I have
stated about this in detail in my note
which I have submitted to you earlier.
There are certain important provisions.
Even in England, after 1958, fifty de-
cisions have come from .courts of ap-
peal and even the House of Lords,
arising under the Mental Health Act,
1959.

iIn ' regard ta improper deten-
tion, I will give you an
example. It happened in England.
There-was a quarrel between two
neighbours. -Only 'lady was fed up
with the act of dumping rubbish at
the doors of her house by the neigh-
bouring lady. So, this lady next day
cofected all the rubbish from the area
and dumped them at the other’s door
step. On this, the first lady went to
the Police and complained abouit this.
Now the question came whether that
lady was to be charge-sheeted and
produced before the court. Then a
quektion also arose whether improper
detention would involve or whether
it was done, all these provisions are
there.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Now, we will ask
You some questions.



SHRI SAKTI KUMAB SARKAR:
Do you suggest that there should be
two bills for two separate cases?

SHRI PAI: It is our submission that
there should be two  separate enact-
ments—one for mentally {ll and the
other for the mentally retarded
becuuse the mentally retarded are not
ill. They are just deficient. And
what réquires 1s the education of a
special nature, training them ta suit
and rehabilitate them in the society so
that they can be usefully employed.

SHRI SAKTI KUMAR SARKAR:
Zou want that both these persons
should be treated separately.

SHRI PAIL: It is better to have ‘two
enactiments because -they stand on
nifferent footing and ~cover defferent
fields.

r L
MR. CHAIRMAN: There has been a
feeling that the word mental retarda.
tion is not the correct word. ' Mentally
retarded means they dre mlow to reach
ine same place. 8o we should use the
word “mental subnormality”.

SHRI PAI: That may be correct. I
canmot condradict you becguse you
have g specia] khowledge in this
fleld. 1 am just w lawyer I
agte¢ with the definition that
you have just now mentioned.
But even then my point is clear because
subnormality 1s not a disease. Subnor-
mality is .ongenital. Sorne of us are
extremely intelligent, others are aver-
age. Bttt both are normal persons.
I'hey are not diseased persons. They
are unfortunate human beings. They
have to be sympathised with,

SHRIMAYI PURABI MUKHOPADH-
YAY: Mantally rétarded should not be
tmixed up with mentdlly {1l persons.
Mentally tetarded people get a lot of
other type of education. We should
not club therh together. I agree with
what they have interpretsd and their
‘mhl

SHRI IAQGOQD ALL-  KHAN: 8o
far as the definition regarding mentsl-
™ ly ill persons are concerned, do you

agree that this bill sufficiently covers
the cases of all persons who are men.
tally ¢

SHRI BHAT: I cannot say whether

from the technical aspects this
is an  adequate deflnition of
mental jllness or not, But 1}

think that it must be left to the ex-
perts in the field. I would only say,
{rom the lawyers' point of view, that
it should not be left 1o the State Gov-
ernments to enlarge the definition.
What is to be included and also my
friend Mr. Pai has suggested, is that
iastead of words ‘“mental deficiency”
and “mental subnormality”, perhaps a
proviso is added as “provided that it
shall not include mentally retarded”
1 think that in so tar as the hon. Mem-
ber’s question whether it fully convers
or mot, is concerned, the best thing
would be to take the assistance of some
profemsors who are dealing with the
subject of psychiatry/Psychotogy.

SHRI MAQSOOD ALl KHAN:
According to Section § of the Bill, the
rule making powers have been vested
with the State Governments only, not
the Central Government and the State
Governments are to follow the advice
on matters of health by the Health
Bbards and by the Experts. The fear ls
that the State Government will rather
bave such a definition that a person
who is innocent or a person who is not
mentally ill, is put in the hospitals or
in clinics.

SHRI BHAT: I think it is too late
to think of it. I suggest very respect.
fully that we should not leave it to the
discretion of an executive Government
more than what {8 actually needed.
Let me say that if the hon, Members
of Parliament and the representatives
of our country have enacted the provi.
sions like 31-D regarding anti-national
activities and giving pewers to ban to
them, I would not be gurprised it a day
corhes when the mental illness is de-

-fined and sniarged and lawyers wear-

ing black coat ase treated s menially
il So. sy respetttul submission is
vissse do not give the powets to -dhe
executive Government or the State



Government to declare somebody as
mentally {1l
SHRI G. C. BHATTACHARYA: 1

totally agree that the definition can-
not be left to people doing subordinate
leg:slation. I have not come across
any instance where the job of defini-
tion in a Central law was allotted to
nthers—i.e. powers given to the State
governments either to enlarge or add
to it. That is the basis. When you
are laying some foundation for some-
thing, you cannot leave it to subordi-
ngte legisiation or to  State govern-
ments, He muy be saying something,
but it does create anomaly and con-
tradiction. If you leave the very bhasis
viz definition to the State Govern-
ments, how can you have uniformity?

MR. CHAIRMAN: Whatever opinions
hon. Memoers have, we will discuss
ithem amongst ourselves. when we take
up clause-by.clause consideration. We

should not now take up the time of the
witnesses.

SHRI HAREKRUSHNA MALLICK:
Can we not deal with mental illness
and mental retardation as two sepa-
rate subjects, in two different bills?

SHRI PAI I have already answered
the question. I sald it covered two
different fields.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You say that two
separate Acts are better.

SHR] RUDOLPH RODRIGUES: Our
witnesseg have rightly objected to the
words ‘deficiency’ and ‘sub-normality’,
There is another phrase which is
equally dangerous—which they have
not looked gt viz. “or any disturbance
in hig behaviour or mental state.”

SHRI PAIL I
grateful.

SHRI RAJSHEKHAR KOLUR: In
clause 8 it is said that the assessing
authority means such officer or autho-
rity as may be spetified You

-have . given the example of one
IAS officer being posted to - different
-departments. Don’t you think that it
-would - happen thus, viz. as private

agree. I am most
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individuals they might be running
institutions where they would give
employment only to some communi-
ties. For example in Karnataka, yoy
have the syndicate Bank and the
Canara Bank, where jobs will not be
given to others.

SHRI BHAT: Madam Chairman, it
ig for you to consider my suggestions.
Of course, it is not relevant for me to
defenq Syndicate Bank and the Canara
Bank. Even there, more than 60 per
cent of the people working are from
all over India.

SHR!I MALLIKARJUN: I would
like to have a clarification, or a pro-
per interpretation of the terms psy-
chogenesis, psycho-neurosis, mental
illness and lumacy. If you make a
comparison, we will be in a position
to think about the comments that
have been given to the Committee.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The witnesses
represent the Association of the
Mentally Retarded. They would not
be able to answer this.

SHRI MALLIKARJUN: Since they
have made asuggestion viz, to formu-
late a separate legislation, and since
they may probably also give an
amendment, they may be able to do
this. Because of certain genetic
imbalances, there is a certain
lack of development in the brain
Psycho-genesis is the thing which
affects the perfect development
of the brain. But here, we
have linked them. Do you want
people affected by mental illness,
mental retardation or subnormality
due to genetic deficiency, in whatever
form it is, to be kept completely away
from the environment of luffatics and
psychiatric patients? You have bden
apeaking about a scparate legislation.
It is difficult to understand it, unless
you draw a complete contrast between
these 3 terms. Lunacy is caused by a

-certain environment, so also psycho-

neurosis etc. This Bill pertains to
mental illness or subnormality. What
you have been trying to impress this

-Committee i3 that in the case of thlsr

~

A




mental subnormality, we can give some
training, which they can pick up. But
if they are kept in a psychiatric nurs-
ing home, they will have a different

« kind of environment, Can you ela-
borate on this?

SHR1 PAI: I am most grateful. I
did not make the point clear. The
point is well made. The real, impor-
tant point is about the environment
in-which these children or adults who
are mentally retarded are given train-
ing and are brought up. To put them
with people who are really mentally
diseased, means that 3 normal person,
because of supervening circumstances.
becomes ill. That is the main argu-
ment of the Act. A lunatic person
becomes so, becau3é of various ten-
sions and pressures of life. His nor-

¢ mal braijn may stop functioning. It
would be a Breat harm to the children
or adults. That is a very well made
out point. I must asknowledge grati-
tude.

DR. SAROJIN] MAHISHI. The re-
presentative of the federation said that
it wap too late for them to say whether
the State Government was going to
define .in this way and all that. Did
he mean it was too late to say or too
early to say?

SHRI BHAT; In this Committee I
can express my views ag frankly as I
can. I just said: I cannot trust.

SHRI S. K. SARKAR: You had
mentioned that the State Governments
had only the executive power. You
mean to say that they have no power
to legislate.

SHRI BHAT: Any executive head
takes this power from the State Gov-
ernment.. -You see-rule 87. I do not
bring any particula; State or present
Government or the futute Govern-
ment: bouma from 1912 we have got
a.law d with the ]
can more or ess admit jt use t
things ‘are very rarely receiving tbe
_attention of the Governmeat. This
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type of law very rarely gets t,he atten-
tion of the Government. :

SHR! 8. K. SARKAR: I-IaVe you
come across any example in your life
where the executive misused the old
Lunatic Act for his own purpose?

SHRI BHAT: One of the things I
had earlier quoted from the English
Law. Here I have not made any
detailed study. But we do come
across some cases. For. example,
everybody knows that the children of
the rich men nogmally say™that: their
fathers are made. What is the
madness? ] would again say that this
has been misused on a ‘numiber: b6f
occmom in one way or other.
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SHRI BHAT; We must avoid it.

SMT. PURABI MUKHOPADHYAY:
In the case of tumour or something
like that, if anything goes wrong, the
person becomes helpless, he loses
control over his limbs. Hig brain does
not function. Will you include those
cases, post-surgery cases in that cate-
gory as mentally il1?

MR. CHAIRMAN: There are cases
which are not considered ag mentally
retarded or mentally deficient but they
become so as a result of surgery or
any other accident. Would you {n-
clude them in the mentaBy retarded

category?
SHR] PAI: ’Wc would include them.
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SARI BHAT: The word ‘pagal
equivalent to lunatic is not being used
in the deftnition. So, the question
does not really arise. In the old Act
of 1912, there were words like lunatics
and idiots. Such expression was de-
fined there. It is not here.
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MR. CHAIRMAN. Thank you .very
much for taking the trouble of coming
over here and assisting the Committee,
Let ug adjourn for tea. You are also
welcome to join us. During tea the
Members may also clarify their minor
doubts from the witness. 1 would like
to inform the hon, Members that the
second witness has not been able to
come. He will come at 3 PM: So,
after the tea we will adjourn the
meeting and will meet at 3 P.M.

(The Committee then adjourned)

1I—Dr. Dev Prasag Sen Mazumdar

(The witnesses was called in, and he
took his seat).

MR. CHAIRMAN: Dr. Mazumdar, 1
am glad to welcome you on behalf of
this Committee. It is very kind of
vou to have come hete snd spared
some time to appear before this Com-
mittee t0 help us. Theredp 5 small
formality which I will now perform.

T woulé Ble to make it clear to you
that your evidence shall be treafed as
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public ang is liable to be publised, yn.
less you specifically desire that aj] or
any pert of the evidence given by you
is to be treated as confidential.

I would also like to explain to you
that even though you might desire
your evidence to be treated ag confi-
dential such evidence is liable to be
made available to Members of Parlia.
ment. It will not be confidential for
them, Now, you have sent us your
memorandum. To refresh the memory
of the honble Members would you like
to repeat its salient features?

DR. MAZUMDAR: Thank you,
Madam Chairman.

Any kind of enactment depends on
the social aspirations and what Nani
Palkhiwala wrote in the Illustrated
Weekly of India it crystalises the
hopeg ang aspirations of tha people.
We are calling it Mental Health Bill.
Unfortunately, in this Bill we have
not explained mental health but only
mental illness. Mental illness iz not
an ordinary illness. For example,
when you call a person abnormal there
is no absolute yardstick about that.
In other words what may be called
abnormal behaviour in America may
not be called so in India. There is no
universal criteria. Much depends on
our social expectations and social con-
ventions. There are no absolute yard-
sticks. These are all soclal expecta-
tions, norms, etc. which dre codified or
niot codified depending gn the expecta-
tion of the community or society at
large.

ey W wy wererw o & e e
7 & 3 w0 ¥ guer i v ool
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fex & cfowrar oft wewlt vt 8
The present Bill has owerlook-
ed the obvious contributions end ex-



ceedingly important role of clinical
pasychologists as they find no mention
anywhere in the Bill. The present
Bill is, therefore, highly discriminat-
ing and unfair by ascribing absolute
authority to medical officers, medical
attendant and psychiatrist to the total
exclusion of clinical psychologists, If
it can be done in a conservative
country like UJXK.—where certain
traditions counts more than other
countries—there is no reason why in
our Bill clinical psychologists who
have contributed so much cannot be
included.

Lastly, Madam Chairman I would
like to say a few words about civil
rights.

ara Arfod fiedt w1 ¥ quw
1T A Fan fedy sdreqm & wdft
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If you look in the Bill lurge part is
about detention of mental illness
patients. There iz a tremendous
world-wide movement about misuse
of mental hospitals.” It hardly needs
reminding that it will be misused in
crushing civil rights and human rights
by sending gissident intellectuals,
artists and scientists to psychiatric
hospital and nursing homes. These
hospitals are used for certain other
purposes. We have also seen in the
newspaper reports what has happened
in some of the East European coun-
tries. The matter has gone to such an
extent, particularly infriction of civil
rights in 1977 that in December I was
in Zurich and the Professor in-charge
told me that g Resolution was passed
in Honalulu that such inhuman in-
question should be stopped.

This was carried by a slim majority
vote. .

g fads srsger § ? afexw
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I am an Indian citizen and I have seen
the whole gamut of transition from
democracy to something else and back
to democracy, the twistg and turng so
to say, over the years and over the
months. There should be these
checks and balances and as I have al-
ready submitted. magistrates gre not
competent authorities in this respect.
They administer justice. But they
should be helped by those profes-
gionals in the line. Our Constitution
recognises rights of individuals. This
democracy functions in terms of
compromise, in terms of advice, in
terms of consent and s0 on. You can-
not have any dictatorial powers
centered in one profession or one
community, These checks and balan
ces should be there so that this Bill
becomes an instrument of social wel-
fare and not an instrument of oppres-
sion. Thank you, Madam. That is al]
that I have got to ‘say.

SHR! SAKTI KUMAR SARKAR:
You said about checks and balances
and you stressed that there should be
adequate checks and balances. You
said about the misuse of the Mental
Health Bill. What are the checks and
balances which you think should be
taken into considerationt What is
your suggestion in this respectc? What
is the machinery that you would
contemplate for these things?

DR. MAZUMDAR: You have raised
an important question and I hed a
talk with eminent members. ' I talk-
ed with those members who came
with your Inspection Group No. I. I
have suggested a couple of things I
think they have noted those down.
This is regarding admission, discharge
and inspection. This iz put down in
my Memorandum. In Chapter II, I
have said, on 8(¢c) you may substitute
line 2, page 5 and put it saying this



. -
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will be under the charge of a medical
officer who 48 a psychlatrist or a
clinical psychologist. In ity present
form the provision in the clause is
highly discriminatory. It is they alone
who are competent to say who is
normal and who is not noermal. - The
point is, we have not been consulted

right in the beginning.

SHRI SAKTI KUMAR SARKAR:;
Do you think this Bill will not cover
those patients suffering from mental
illness? We have given importance
%0 ‘mental retardation’.

DR. MAZUMDAR: I think Mr. Kolur
also put this question. Please see the
provision under (m): It says:

‘Mmlly il] ‘person meeitis a ‘per-
son Who is in need of -psychistric
trélitthent ‘by featon of mentdl As-
‘or8er or méntal difiefency or of any
‘disturbdnce 'in  his behaviotr ‘or
‘wientel state ‘énd ‘ncludes a ?mdn
wiio has all ‘or Wy of the ‘cHmical
comiftions ‘known as peyihoses,
eyrhoneureves, psyvhdpitiic stite
alldition, ‘mexita] ‘Subhiormality or
psychosomatic disorder or such
.other condition of the like nature as
may be prescribed.’

‘T'te lust condition includes every-
‘body, you and me and all. All of us
‘can land ourselves under this defini-
‘tién. 'think I have given it in detail
in my own memoranidum. This is
‘overextended, 1 sald, This is loaded
with subjective interpretition and
‘arbitrariness. I said that you may
omit ‘psychiatric’, ‘mental deficiency’,
‘psychopathic state’, ‘mental subnor-
mality’ and the words ‘such other
conditions of the like nature’ etc. 1
suid therein that a separate legislation
for mentally handicapped including
mental deficiency gnd mental subnor-
mality will be quite meaningful and
proper. 1 have stated all these things
in my memorandum.

SHR] RAJSHEKHAR KOLUR: You
sre in favour of the views of the pro-
feasional community. What are your
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-~
-views about one thing which I am go.
ing to ask now? Please refer to your
own remarkg on the major clauses jn
the Bill, about the bias in favour ¢t
the professional community. Wiy
you give us some suggestions on this
point?

DR. MAZUMDAR. I think I can be
‘Quite frank with you. At the first
round of things ‘we are not at all con-

‘sulted. That 48 the point. When this

Bill was thought of, we have not been
consulted. We are actively associated
with research ang the rest of it. We
have all Indja standing. We did not
get even a copy of the Bill but hon,
Chairman Dr. Sushila Nayar wes kind
enough to send us a copy of the Bill,
asking us to send our sugges-
tions within 7 days. At ‘that
time the Institute was rumning the
exarnination. But somehow we could
8o 'tt. ‘At leest ‘somie professiomals
could have been consulted. The point
ig that we have to make a number of
chunges heve snd there. Wie definitely
suggest thet there should some major
changes like the one page 2 (J), it has
been mentioned ‘“a medical officer in-
charge”. [ think the word ‘medicel’
shotld be left out and only ‘Officer
In-charge’ who may be psychiatrist or
¢linical Peychologist or & Psychiarist
social worker. So, you will ind that
the animus goes.

SHRI RAJSHEKHAR KOLUR:
Here in your Memorandum, it was
suggested that you must be consulted
before the admission of the patients.
Can you tell us at what stage they
must consult the experts?

DR. MAZUMDAR: There are three
points. As 1 discussed with Dr.
Mandal, I think the timing is impor-
tant. 1 think it should be at the time
of admission and this should require
again changes in the number of places
bectuse the Medicd]l OMficer Incharge
should go end examine anf when it
is Omcer—lncharge naturally he may



be 2 clinical psychologist, may be a
psychiatrist, or may be a psychiatrist
social worker who has enough exper-
tise on the mental health

SHRIMAT] - PURABI MUKHO-
PADHYAY. You have been associated
with mental hospitals for quite g long
time and you have vast experience in
the field. Can you point out what are
the loopholes which can be plugged
so that those who are not suffering
from mental illness or mentally re-
tarded are not taken into custody?

DR. MAZUMDAR: In regard to the
admission procedure, it has been
clearly mentioned in it, like voluntary
admission, admission under special
circumstances, admission under neces-
sary orders, admisgion under emer
gencies, temporary admission, etc. All
kinds of admissions are there. But
admissions are qualified if they are
voluntary and under the special
sircumstances, the person has to . be
produced before a Magistrate an the
Magistrate has to judge whether he is
mentally abnormal or mentally suffer-
ing. For exampls, we got a reference
like this. Sometimes, the court cases
come to us. Usually what we do is
thet we see the patient is indepen-
dently assessed both by the pasycholo-
gist and by the pyschiatrist,

SHRIMATI PURABI MUKHO-
PADHYAY: Do you think that at the
stage of remaining the patient, the
case must be referred to psychologist
or the psychiatrist?

7/ DR. MAZUMDAR. I think that will
give you an absolute check. If yaou
say in terms of absolute check, this
will work well.
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DR. SAROJINI MAHISHI: [ want
to know whether you have gxperienc-
ed any difficulty in discharging the
patienty after the treatment was gver,
particularly in the case of those
patients who have been referred to by
the Magistrate,

DR. MAZUMDAR: 1 think you have
opened the Pandora's Box.
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He might have relapsed, but unfor-
tunately, even though is the Object and
Statement of the Bill you have stated,
I would like you to refer to the State-
maent of Obhjects and Reesons of the
Bill. It is mentioned therein that the
environment around them should be
made as normal as possible.

DR. SAROJNI MAHISH]. A case
hag been referred to you by a Magis-
trate. You treat him. After some
time, you feel that adequate treatment
has been given to the patient, and that



he could be discharged. Do you ex-
perience any difficulty in discharging
him at that time? .

DR. MAZUMDAR: There is a lot of
difficulty. In some cases, the family
members simply take the patients
away. There is a legal point. So far,
they have had to execute the bond to
take the patients gway. When they
do it, it is not simply the execution of
a bond, but how it should be imple-
mented. But about implementation
we are facing difficulties, because there
is & backlog. There is a sizeable num.
ber of chronic patients who should
have gone away, but they are not go-
ing.

DR. SAROJIN] MAHISHI: What is
the way out? .

DR. MAZUMDAR: A chapter shoulq
be written on social rehabilitation of
patients, Most of the work now is
concentrated on it, and not on treat-
ment alone.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Her point is that
when you say that the patient is all
right, does the Magistrate automati-
cally, without any difficulty, accept
your advice that the patient should be
discharged? Or are there any difficul_
ties from his side?

SHRI SURAJ BHAN: Is your
opinion binding on the court?

DR. MAZUMDAR: It is not binding.

MR. CHAIRMAN: In order to admit
the patient, there have to be two
certificates from the doctors, according
to this Act—one of whom should be a
psychiatrist. At the time of discharge,
is not the Magistrate bound by the
advice of the doctors that the patient
is all right and can go away? How
can the Magistrate refuse such advice?

DR. SAROJINI MAHISHI: Even
after the patient has received adequate
treatment and even after the expert
medical adviser feelg that the patient
no longer needs to be kept inside the
hospital, and the medical adviser
makes a reference to the Magistrate
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accordingly, is there any difficulty
experienced?

DR. MAZUMDAR, 1 think some
kind of a legal, statutory provision
can be made, enabling the Magistrate

to order the family to take the patient
back home.

DR. SAROJINI MAHISHI: If you
are not experiencing any difficulty in
this matter, we need not go into the
matter.

MR. CHAIRMAN: There are two
things. One thing ig that the family
is not willing. It is not the fault of
the Magistrate. When you say the
patient is ready to go, the former will
agree with you. will he not?

DR. MAZUMDAR: I think the
Magistrate says yes, because of expert
opinion,

SHRI RUDOLPH RODRIGUES: The
problem is not whether the Magistrate
may say yes or no, but that he might
not answer for months together. Now
about another point: in your memo-
randum at page 3 in regard to clause
2; you have said that certain things
are to be excluded from the definition
of ‘mentally 11’ You have saig that
the definition should be re-drafted.
You have not given a new definition
yourself.

DR. MAZUMDAR. We discussed
with the team which came. We sug-
gested that this tautology should be
removed; i.e. ‘mentally ill persons’
meant people mentally diseased. I
have to go into a lot of technical de-
tails; about the terms psychosis;

. psycho-neurosis etc. If you like I will

do it.
MR. CHAIRMAN: It is all right.

SHRI KRISHNA ' NAND JOSHI:
We had visited your Ranchi hospital
The difficulty experienced by some of
the doctors was that 60 per cent of
the patients are there, who could
have beerr discharged; but because of
some reason or the other, they conti-
nue to be there. Do you suggest
anything in the Bill to solve this
difficulty .



DR. MAZUMDAR: I can tell you
what ig happening at present; so that
we can think of a certain resolution.
As the Chairman and Dr. Mahighi gaid;
when both the psychologist and the
psychiatrist give a clean chit that the
patient is in a condition to go; the
matter is taken to the Visitors’ Board.
They also give their opinion; after
interviewing the patient for a few
minutes. The fact is that the fanifly
is written to; but they do not turn up.
It is a question of implementation.
We send a legal notice. It is never
served. v

SHRIMATI PURABI MUKHO-
PADHYAY: Suppose we do a way
with the provision that the family
must take them back. If a person is
al] right, he can go away. I also
want to do away with the provision
to refer against to the Magistrate.

DR. MAZUMDAR: To some extent,
it will ease out the difficulty—
certainly. The reason for the family
not being willing to take the
patient back home is the fear of re-
lapses. They ask: in case of a relapse,
shall we again get a bed? In that
case, things might perhaps become
easier—i.e. if the case is an old one,
and we say that he may be having a
chance of relapse—the patient can be
admitted again without going through
the Magistrate. If we go through the
magisterial part again, it will mean a

lot of inconvenience.

MR. CHAIRMAN: There are too
many types of admissions. There
should be only voluntary admissions
and admission under extraordinary
circumstances, where the relative or
friend or somebody else can bring in
the patients. Thirdly, for dangerous
cases, compulsory magisterial order
for admssion can be there. Do you
agree with this point of view? There
is provision for emergency admission
and there are various kinds of admis-
sions. We should simplify this; and
a whole chapter which is there can
just be deleted. This idea has been

a--Suggested to us.
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DR. MAZUMDAR: 1 think you have
made a very important point. The
present admission procedure is cum-
bersome. There is an overlapping
8lso. I made a note of it. You ses
page 15. You also see para 2, clause
8. I say, yes, it has been made too
complicated. We can help to curtail
it. This is again by an eminent jurist.
We have unfortunately adopfed the
British model which is far worse than
European counterpart. For instence,
British Law runs into 82 pages.
French Law could be contained in 20
pages. Swedish Law is contained in
13 peges. It can be compressed.

st wweww 3w

WA AW T af § fr ) Wy qed
QAT owe qfartd A I wew
wft & ¥ § fomk o &xa ™
ot O 1 O o qfeny e ot § ar
g fmT A} o ek guR Wi WY
work § www wff ¥ Wit oy afunt
& Wt w1 3T i won W 7w K
wt & faendit | oY 3y o ¥ ey
R T maw ¥ g Ik § g
fore W W IR whar g, R AT H
RIET T gA § 7 wwronT wew s
¥ fidaor % fr Iwik ofrewr o) Rw-twr
T w%, foe®  wegarer ofr ol Y oy
oY ey WY gw &Y T 1 xE ¥
"IT%T &1 gRiE § )

WTo wuware : &5 agd ff wyy fe
ford  siifox wemmw § gfimr W
# ey ooy 9T W ¥ T § fir MR wifores
waRd Sl o o ot I ewdar
§ SR wTw § qwy kY Flfufee
we and § 1 #few quiar & sihwdktfen
ow § o\ faw gar 81 wefed wo
Y wrgk § I qfer whwye dwemr 17
wft gt & 1

[P ep—— vy
e et Flffodmon o1 o wgn ot



sraardy § I eyt Ay anw A 4
¥fer Safqum & qavafr ¢ &Y a¥,
I A AOF Y geomE F v W
ar o%, fwg TR & fow Qo &
werars ¥ ot §, O wal §, ey
qr9dt aitg 1 HY A §T A% &,
rasT fam & wai § | Fdfafadmr 1
A ¥ 4Gy A AT, ITHT FA
& wied £ @A 4t

o gy AR ;X dfaedz
¥ oy ¥ Ryaw wrd wrar oW
HETATR 1N FE 39 & i gATR 9T vy
aff § ot & gwa ¥ ww few
o ?

awrefr weT @ wegaTw ¥ A
arafas o w18 AN we¥ § Forae
€t mywedt X fewrd frar § 1 e W
ag R Ty § 5 7l S g or ug
fexrdt Qar 1+ #fwr wdra wieare
R OKT ot A3 At wry E o wg aff &
wrd § N 7 q T G4 X QA 07 TR
xr wamr &

SHRI KRISHNA NAND JOSHI: in
Dum Dum Jail, there are 900 patients,
because they are not put in the mental
hospital.

DR. MAZUMDAR:
page 13, section 25.

RTIET AT 3% § | g Qar Y wpiw
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This is on page 13 of the Bill—Re-
‘ception orders before Magistrate.

You look at

“Every officer in charge of a police
station,—

(a) may arrest or cause to be
arrested any person found wander-
ing at large within the limits of his
station whom he has reason to
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believe to be so mentally ill as to be
incapable of taking care of himself,
and

(b) shall arrest or cause to be
arrested any person within the limits
of his station whom he has reasom
to believe to be dangerous by reason
of mental illness.”

g A 9T Qe § I ) Wl iy
QFEAY gt 7T w1 fear oy § )

Now it has become a Pandora’s Box.
1t is very good that you have pointed
it out. I have already made a note.
I have discussed this clause. Too wide
powers have been given.
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They have made special efforts to
send home their patients. So, it de-
pends upon the institute also.

We thank you DR. Mazumdar for
having taken the trouble of coming
over here and giving evidence before
the Committee. We shall bear in mind
the things which you had told before
us. If there is anything which you
would like to add or give by way of
suggestions, you may kindly send f{t
to :he Committes as early as possible.



DR. MAZUMDAR: Thank you Mr.
Chairman and hor. Members of the
Committee.

(The witness then withdrew)

III—DR. S, DUBE

(The witness wag called in, and she
took her geat).

MR. CHAIRMAN: Dr. S. Dube, we
are grateful to you for appearing
before us. Your evidence shall be
treated as public and is liable
to be published unless you sepcifically
desire that all or any part of it should
be kept confidential. Further T may
explain that even though you might
wish your evidence to be kept conft-
dential it is liable to be made avallable
to the Members of Parliament.

You have sent your memorandum.
Would you like to say anything more
before the Members ask questiona?

DR. S. DUBE: If my memorandum
had already beem circulated, I will not
take up your valuable time.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Your main point
is that more emphasis is laid on the
medical people, psychiatrist and not
on other members of the team.

DR. 8. DUBE: There is scope for
the members of the team for team
work; there are other members of the
team besides the psychiatrist; in our
country we have already started doing
g20od team work. This Bill is a re-
trograde step. )

MR. CHAIRMAN: It may not be
posgible to have a team in every
place. In some places only one per-
san may be availsble Would you
wish to say that that one person may
be a psychiatrist or a clinical psyého-
logist or » social worker.

DR. 8. DUBE: I want that in the
Bill ftsslf the team concept should be
defined. In many hospitals in India
we are having a good team; fn future
only one psychiatrist will be appoint-
ed and the others will be left ou; all
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the others will have no place in the
legislative history of Indls.

MR. CHAIRMAN: If you make it
legally binding then it becomes diffi-
cult. In some places there may be a
tean; in other placeg there may be
one individual.' In hospitils where
other members are available, it will
be for the psychiatrist or the medical
officer-in-charge to consult the other
members of the team and come to §
conclusion.

DR. S. DUBE. We are training
cl‘nical psychologists in the same rate;
the country is investing a lot of
money on ‘them,

MR. CHAIRMAN: We have gone
round the country. If you want us
through this Bill to force the institu-
tions to employ clinical psychologists
and other people when they are not
there . .

DR. S. DUBE: I am sorry if that is
the impression. - My point is that you
have already recognised them; you are
investing so much money on them,
You are giving them job satistaction,
Then why not Include them in the
Bill? This Bill is coming in 1978. I
was trained in 1957; for so many years
I have been working. 8o, let us in-
clude them also. I do not force any-
thing; I only want that there should
be a proper place for other people
also.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We thank you
very much for coming before us and
giving evidence before the Commities.

(The wimess then withdrew)
IV—1. DR. 8 B, Singh

2. Shri R. Kishore
8. Shri Ram Akshaibat Yadav
4. Shri M. V. Singh

(The witnesses were colied in, and
they: took their sests),

(Direction No. 58 was read out o
the witnesses).

MR. CHAIRMAN: We bave receiv-
e1 your memorandum. If you with



you may highlight any point made
therein. You need not read the me-
morandum. The members would put

eertain questions and you may answer
them.

oft oW W : e 6 et €,
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SHRI SINGH: Actually when the
profession of clinical psychologists and
psychiatrists started, we were very
few in number. Our duties and others
were not clearly specified. We thought
tkrough this association we could
reach the people and let them know
what exactly we want to do, This was
one objective. Another was, for our
own inter-communication and having
some sort of research orientation, we
feit the need of the association.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We are convinc-
ed of the utility of the clinical psycho-
logists. 1 am a medical woman and
I know how much clinical psycho-
logists contribute both at diagnostic
stage and at a later stage in the care
of the mental patients. Clinical
psychologists is an important member
of the team, of which the psychiatrist
is the leader. In some places, there
may not he a trained psychiatrist. So,
the law says that who is a psychiatrist
can be preseribed by the Government.
Is it necessary that in the law we
should include all members of the
team? Is it not enough that psychia-
trist, the leader of the team, is there?
He can consult other members of the
tcam. Why do you think it is neces-
sary ,{o mention the clinical psycho-
Togists in the body of this Bill?

SHRI SINGH: Our submission is
‘that a clinical psychologist can work
as effectively as a psychiatrist as the
leader of the team. He should also be
given the same legal protection by
being included in the Bill.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We are not giving
‘any legal protection either to psychia-
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trists or to psychologists. This is only
a Bill to give legal protection to the
patients. That is all. How can we go
into the professional rivalry as to who
is the leader and who is not the leader
of the team?

SHRI SINGH: Our only submission
is, if the psychiatrist could be there,

why not psychologists also? That is
all

SHRI RUDOLPH RODRIGUES: In
clause 2(q) psychiatrist hospitals and
psychiatrist nursing homes are men-
tioned. They only want to enlarge the
scope of the Bill to include clincial
prychological guidance, counselling and

e0 on. That is what they are driving
at.

SHRI 8. B. SINGH: I think, he has
said the same thing.
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&t quo Wlo faw: N g,

If the patient is not willing to go

or his family people are not willing

to take him, how long we can keep

him in the hospital. So, in between

some arrangement like half-way-home
should be there.

SHRI KISHORE: We have to see
the basic problem as t0 how much the
patient has suffered mentally, what
port of rehabilitation’ should be given,
how much personality of the person
hag been affected. At the time of dis-
charge it ig necessary that the patient
has to be evaluated psychologically
6o that proper rehabilitation is made

(The Committee then adjourned)
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DR. NARENDRA N. WIG

(The witness was called in, and he
took his seat.)

MR. CHAIRMAN: Dr. Wig, on be-
haif of the Committee, I welcome you
end thank you for appearing befure
the Committee to heip end guide us
in maiking this Bill ag satisfactory as
poasible,

Ags a small formality which I must
perform, I would like td meke it clear
to you that your evidence shali be
treated as public and is liable to be
published unlesg you specifically de-
sire that any or all it should be
treated as confidential. I would, how-
ever, explain that even though yom
may want it to be kept as confiden-
tia], it ig liable to be made available
to the Members of Parliament. It is
no confldential for them because it is
€or their benefit that this evidence is
being recorded.

Now, I would like to ask you whe-
ther you would like to make g preli-
minary atatement. I might gy that
there are two or three things that are
bothering us on which we would very
much like to have your help. One
is the definition of mental {liness
which, as hag been painted out by a

oumber of people, is unsatisfactory
and i» to be.changed. So, you bave
to throw eeme light on the desirability
of inclusion of conditions ke psycho-
neurasis, psychopathy and paychoso-
matic etc. in the definition. And the
other is thet it is suggested that nuea-
tally reterded or mental subacrmality
ig not a disease. It should mnot be
included in this Rill. This is with
regard to the definition.

Then, it has been suggested that
the admission should be of three types,
voluntary type, under extraordingry
circumstances, and commitment by the
Magistrate in case of unwilling and
dangerous patients and all the rest
should be removed and the Bill should
be greatly ghortened,

The third aspect that hag been

ete. The issue is, what should be
done to them in thig Bill, so that the
very meagre serviceg that are avalle
ble already do not get further restrie-
ted as a result of this Bill. Instesd
being helpful it should not cause more
diffienlties. These are some of the

LY



problems that are puzzling us and we
would like you to throw light on
these as well as give your own views
on these points. After you finish your
statement, our Memberg would like to
ask you a few questions.

DR. N. N. WIG: Thank you very
much. I am glad you have referred
to the points which T have already
submitted in writing The two main
submissiong which 1 have made in
writing are firetly, that this New
Mental Health Bill should, in no way,
hamper the growth of psychiatry in
general hospitals. My submission is
that when the Bilj is conceived by
some of us long time back, at that
time the main focus of attention was
on menta] hospitals. Since 25 years.
the position has been changed. A
number of new drugs and new met-
hods have come into force and no
psychiatric treatment is being given
by general practitioners and others.
So, my gubmission will be that it
should not hamper the growth of psy-
chiatry in genera] hospitals and out-
door clinic and even in the villages
where some of the new experiments
are being carried on.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We want you to
clearly and specifically tell us what
provisiong should be made or omitted
in order to ensure this.

DR. WIG: My suggestion is, do not
in any way force this Bill on general
hospital; and in respect of outpatients
clinics and villageg where new ex-
periments are going on. The scope of
the Bill should be limited only to
psychiatric hospitals where a patient
is admitted forcibly without his desire,

The second point ig on the question
of admissions. I was uneasy when 1
saw the definitions which have been
mentioned here. The definitions from
general psychiatry point of view are
fine that this ig the scope of what you
call mental health, and there should
be the psychosis, neurosis, psycho-
pathy and all other things that are
mentioned. ‘But for the purpose of
the Bil] we must narrow thig defini-
tion. Otherwise my fear is, that pro-

blem will be like the Hindu Marriage
Bill—-]1 do not know whether the
attention of the Committee hag been
drawn to this—I am referring to the
new divorce Bill passed by Parlia-
ment in 1976. I do not know who
has defined mental illness there. This
seems to have been taken from the
Mental Health Bil] passed inu England
in 1959. My limited experience sug-
geats that thig is creating confusion
in the courts. If anybody has made
the diagnosig of illness ag psychopathy,
then the court can says that this is a
menta] jllness and this person can get
divorce. Whatever you are going to
make in this new Mental Health Bill,
it is going to be used by a number
of other people for their benefit. So,
my suggestion is that you should res-
trict the definition. If you define
this, as it exists in the draft, there is
a danger that a person with hyperten-
sion might be taken to a mental hos-
pital. This is my other submission
that the denition should be clear.
Don’t give scope to any such thing.
The position in our country ig diffe-
rent from what it is in England and
USA. The number of psychiatrists
persons is very small few. There is
80 much confusion about the many
psychiatric terms like psychopathy,
psyehosomatic disorder and all that.
So, my point i3 that it should be res-
tricted clearly to those who are dan-
gerous to themselves or to others.

The third point which T did not
write in my statement, but I would
lixe to submit here, Madam, jg that
this Bill should do something more
than restrict itself to the admissions
and discharges from mental hospitals.
Some positive thing for mental health
ghould be included in this Bill and I
suggest that you incorporate some
kind of new chapter at the end of the
Bill which should contain the commit-
ment by the State, what the State is
supposed to do to implement this
Bill and what kind of services the
State will provide. You are making
the police and the magistrate respon-
sible for certifying and giving opinion
about menta] illness.



MR. CHAIRMAN: But they will be

guided by two doctors, whoge certi-
ficates are there.

DR. N. N. WIG: That -certificate
alone wil] not be enough, The magis-
trate will be taking a decision on legal
grounds. So, some training for police
officers and the magistrates who deal
with this Bill would be essential.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mental patients
are everywhere. So, any magistrate
may have to dea] with a case. That
means gome training will have to be
given to every magistrate.

DR. N. N. WIG: Yes. Otherwise,
you are giving the responsibility to
somebody who ig not trained. He
doeg not know his job, and he is likely
to make more mistakes,

There should also be some built-in
mechanism to evaluate the working
of the Bill after five or ten years.
Otherwise, there is no way of know-
ing it. For example, Somebody has
introduced in the Divorce Bill this
definition of mental health. I would
like to know how this hag functioned,
it it has been satisfactory or not. Is
there any information on the basis of
which the next Bill might be streng-
thened? I do not think thete is such
a machinery. I do not know whe-
ther this Bill can do it, but I think
there ghould be a Department of Legal
Psychiatry in some universities which
especially take up this kind of study
of the working of the Bill, the impact
of the law etc.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We have been
told that we are wrong in giving so
much prominence to the psychiatrist,
and that the clinical psychologist and
psychiatric social workers, who are
also very important limbs of the whote
treatment team, should be given recog-
nition by this Bill. Do you think it
iz necessary? I ask this particularly
because you have emphasized out-
patient treatment. Some of these
people may be in a position to extend
treatment where there are no psy-
_chiarists.
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DR. N. N. WIG: Psychiatrists are
stil) 1 after a very amall part
of the total mental iliness in the
country, about $ per cent or #0, that
is my guess. Even the doctors are
looking after only a small part. The
rest, in the villages and the rural
areas, is not being looked after by any
q}nlﬁled person. Clinical paycholo-
gists, even if you give fiem scope m
this Bill, will add only a fraction. It
is not very important to bring them
under the provisions of this Bill. If
they want to practise or do whatever
they are doing already, nothing in
thig Bill prevents them from dving it
But what is more important is to hel;
the health workers in the villages to
treat the mental patients. I have not
studied it, it iz & much bigger prob-
lem, which will involve millions. Tha
village health workers can use one or
two drugs and treat the mentsl
patients.

MR. CHAIRMAN: There is also no
register of clinical psychologists trom
which we can pick and choose, but in
Bangalore we ssw Kapur using a
large number of parameds and achool
teachers after some preliminary tragn-’
ing and reaching g large number of
mentally sick people in the commu.
nity. They are being given medicineg
by these people under the over-all
supervision and guidance of the psy-
chiatrist and his colleagues.

DR. N. N. WIG: We are doing a new
experiment in Chandigarh wuynder the
auspices of WHO. We are training
health workers in the villages to re-
cognise a number of ordinary mental
ilinesses. ] personally think they cam
use one or two drugs. I honestly do
not know what the impact of this law
will be on that. T think this law should
be restricted only to psychiatric hos.
pitalg so designated under the law and
for admission into them. This law
should not cover anybody else, and it
should leave them to the treatment
ag it is going on now.

DR. SAROJINI MAHISHI: Suppos-
‘ing a casc is referred to a magistrate
and he approves of admission of the



patient to a mental hospital. Such an
institution is not there in the area, and
he hag necessarily to be admitted in
the particular ward of the general
hospital. What will be the position at
that time?

DR. N. N. WIG: If the magistrate
forces a patient on the general hospi-
tal, the denger is that you will totally
gpoil the atmosphere of the general
hospital and more and more people
wil] shy away from those units. So,
do not give permission to the maqh-
trate to declare any general hospital
to be a psychiatric hospital under this
Bil] and force a petient with police,
shackles, locked doors etc. That way
you wil] stop the progress of the gene-
ra] hospitals.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You would like
this facility to be confined to volun-
tary ceses.

DR. N. N. WIG: Purely voluntary.

DR. SAROJINI MAHISHI: A
magistrate cannot force a patient on
& hospital. It i in the interests of
the patients only that all these things
are done.

DR. N. N. WIG: He can declare a
general hospital to be a = pesychiatric
hospital, he can order the person in
charge to take the patient, and that
will be a bad thing.

DR. SAROJINI MAHISHI; There is
another type of sgervice, In the rural
areas, rendering service at the
patient's house can be done. Many
paychiatrists are practising privately
ang doing that sort of service. In
addition to doing gall these things,
if a hospital can expang its servicesg to
all such fields and do this type of ser-
vice also, how the work of the hos-
pital in the psychiatric ward is ham-
pered by admitting those people, we
are not able to understand that, I am
giving you ‘an exumple. There are
eertain hospitals where we saw peo-
ple coming from different parts of the
country. Of course, there are no hos-

pitals in thoge areas. Oth

would go without treatment. Under
such circumstances they have been ad-
mitted in particular hospitals and ai-
terwards when they are cured and
when the doctors feel that they can be
discharged, there is nobody to take
care of them and rehabilitate them
in their family. If they get some help
from some hospital, what objection
can there be? 8

DR, WIG. If you compare, how many
patients of the kind which you have
mentioned with those who are com-
ing for voluntary treatment the di-
flerence wil] be one to hundred or
even five hundred, There are thou-
sands of patients who are coming
every year, for treatment, Now if
the Magistrate says “Admit this per-
son under the order go and so”, then
Biy person cannot run away. We
have to make grrangements for lock
and key of the person and all these
things would gpoil that hospital and
no longer other patients will be com-
ing and the whole thing will become
a king of mental hospital as it exist-
ed in the past.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Apart from that.
there are no facilities for locking up
the patients.

DR. WIG: Yes. I will not be able to
do that even if somebody asks me to
do that.

DR. SAROJINI MAHISHI: Are the
patients not becoming violent?

DR. WIG. There are many distrubed
patients who are taking treatment
even in my unit. They come with
their relatives, their relatives say that
he needs ireatment and the relatives
also stay with him.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Ig it true that
by modern medicines you can sedate
any patient within a few hours? You
do not really need the old method of
lock and key and so on.

DR. WIG: By and large it is true.
Somehhing very rarely- in a General



Hospital also the patient hag to be
‘westrained physically. But this can
happen not only in psychiatric ward
but in surgical ward also. The pati-
ent after operation becomes violent
sometimes, you will have to tie him
down to the bed for u few hours till
he it calmed down and he is given
treatment. Thig happens in any hos-
pital anywhere, This kind of res-
traint is understandable. I ggree with
you when you say that if we now
bring an element of law and magis-
trate and other things, in a General
Hospital unit, that is not desirable.
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SHRI KRISHNA NAND JOSHIL
You have in your definition mention-
ed this metal ill-health and psycho-
meurosis, Some other deflnition is
that mental deficiency and mental
sub-normality can also be there. Wil
jt be possible for you to give speci-
fimlly what should be the ‘definition
from your point of view 1o straighten

this things.

MR. CHAIRMAN: If you cannot
@&ive it now, think about it and send
it to us. We would like to have it
when we take up clause-by-clause
congideration on the 18th, ,



DR, WIG: I will do that. But is
it essential for you to give the defini-
tion? You have accepted that we
have to define it. But it is something
which is very difficult to define. Why
should you spend that much time in
defining it if your purpose can be
served without a definition? In gome
of the mental Health Acts of the
world, the definition is not there. If
you go through the various provisions
of the definition of USA, Trinidad,
America or England, you will find
that they are considerably different.
‘Why enter into that controversy? By
and large, mental illness will cover
psychosis. Even if gomebody has epi-
lapsy, he will have psychosis if he
goes top mental hospital, For neurosis
-alone you cannot force him there, If
you have to give a definition probably
you will have to give some kind of
definition of phychosis. But I would
say that we need not unnecessarily
define it,-we can by-pass it and use

the main operating portion rather
than going further. i
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SHRI KRISHNA NAND JOSHI:
You heve said that in general hospi-
tals the psychiatric wards are there
but there cannot be a proper arrange-
ment for keeping the hospital pati-
ents, There may not be many cases
of hostile nature. In a district, there
may be five or six or geven cases, We
have just visited the eastern zone. In
the whole of the eastern zone, there
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is only one mental hospital in Tezpur,
That is also in a primitive condition
The clinical psychiatrists, are pot
there, They have to send all their
cases to either Calcutta or to Ranchi
You can imugine the difficulties of the

.guardians and the patients. Will it

not be advisable to have in each dis-
trict hospital sufficient arrangements
to keep these hostile patients? In
1968, Dr. Jain submitted a report to
the Government of India in which he
recommended that u mental hospital
in each district should be set up, An
effort hag to be towards that direction.
But that will take a fong time, From
your evidence, it appears that general
hospitals should be kept away from
the hostile mental cases

- DR. WIG: You huve recently visit-
ed .some of the mental hospitals and
you must have become aware of this
problem. There arae not enough men-
tal hospitals. I understand thig pro-
blem and I am in full sympathy with
them. But this kind of a patient ' will
be one in 500 or 1000. The total num-
ber of mental patients in the country,
by a very rough estimate will be
about 1 to 2 per cent of the popula-
tion. If you take even: 1 per cent of
the population, the figure will be about
80 lakhs out of which this kind of a
hostile case will be 1 in 500 or 1000,
something like that, If you admit
such a case in the general hospital,
it will interfere with u large interest
of millions of patients. That will be
bad enough. This is my main argu-
ment. Don't force atimissions on these
general hospitals. May be, psychia-
trist can go to the patlept and treat
him as an out patient. ’

MR. CHAIRMAN: There is a prac-
tice commonly followed in many
places. It was done in Delhi also
sometime back. That is that a magis-
trate sends a mental case to jail

DR. WIG: Keeping any patient in
jail for any length of tima is bad. I
will not support it.

MR. CHAIRMAN: What to do
then? You say, the general hospital



should not take him, he should not be
kept in jail. There is no other place
where this man can be kept. He is
a danger to himself as well as to
others.

DR. WIG: There are two ways of
doing it. One is a difficult one. The
logical thing is that the Government
should have more mental hogpitals.

MR. CHAIRMAN: They cannot
come up overnight.

DR. WIG: That is a long-term plan.
But the Government has never given
any priority to it. The other way is
‘to treat him as an out-patient. A
psychiatrist can go to the patient and
treat him. That might be a sghort
cut to tackle this problem. But to
admit him to a general hospital will
be at the cost of many who will suffer.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Can't you have
one or two special roomg for such
hostile cases in the general hospitals
where a psychiatrist can go and see
them?

DR. WIG: In a general hospital, a
Toom of this kind will quickly spoil
the atmosphere.

MR. CHAIRMAN: I am afraid, you
are making it very difficult for these
people. What to do about them?

DR. WIG: Normally, only one or
1two cases may come in two or three
months. You can treat him as an
out-patient.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You cannot go
by statistics. Each human being,
-each family, is important. When they
-are faced with this problem, where
;hould they go? What should they

0?

DR. WIG: But there are others
who are involved also? By doing
that. You will spoil the case of many
others,

3108 LS—3.
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SHRIMATI PURAB! MUKHO-
PADYAY: Regarding the definition,
I want to know whether the word
“mental disorder” only will suit the
purpose.

DR. WIG: As I have already said,
we should reduce the definition to the
barest minimum. Possibly, the word
“mental disorder” alone might be
sufficient. But I will have to study
this problem in a little more detail

MR, CHAJRMAN: You study it

and then advice us.

SHRI RAJSHEKHAR KOLUR: You
have referred to magistrates and
police. Where the evidence is being
recorded, at the Munsif's court level
or at the Session's court level, the
magistrate or the Session’'s Judge
testifles the veracity of the witness
and also the mental condition of the
patient. Some questions are put to
the person suffering from mental jll-
ness to see if he is in a position to
understand them and to reply them.
Then only the magistrate will come
to a conclusion. The magistrates
and the advocates are suppased to
know all these things. They muy
not be perfect. But in some cases,
they are much more perfect than the
experts who claim themselves to be
experts. A number of medico-legal
cases have been decided by the
Supreme Court and the High Courts
where they have shown that the doc-
tors have gone wrong, that they have
done something wrong. It is a general
practice that wherever g dead body,
after murder, is sent for a post
mortem, it must be washed. But a
majority of doctors are not washing
It also happens that after 90
hours, they give the cause of death.
In such circumstances, why should a
person concerned trust only an expert,
the doctor, and not the magistrate?

DR. WIG: It seems that [ have
been misunderstood all along the line.
What I said was not that & doctor
should take the role of a Dugistrate



or that a doctor is superior to a
magistrate. That is not at al] my
submission, My submission on the
basis of whatever little experience I
have got, is that the modern psycho-
logy and psychiatry is very little
known to the magistrate. Since they
have to deal with these kind of a

cases, they should have a better.

knowledge of what is the current con-
cept of “mental illness” and various
other related things. Then only they
will be able to do the job better.

SHRI RAJSHEKHER KOLUR: So,
every Act must have the deflnition in
clause 2,

DR. WIG; We should reduce it to
the minimum necessary; we should
not go beyond what is necessary.

SHR] RAJSHEKHER KOLUR: For
anyone it is very easy to explain, but
difficult to define, any matter, But
here we have to deflne it in exact
words, How can we introduce that
‘definition in the Bill?

MR. CHAIRMAN: He said he will
study the problem and let us know.

SHRI MALLIKARJUN: Your depo-
sition has created more confusion in
my mind. Of course, you have pro-
mised to go into it in detajil and give
us a definition. How does psychology
or psychiatry come into the picture
for a person who has born with an
embryonic lesion which ultimately
culminated in physiological disorders
and change in behaviour, who fall
under the category of psycho-neuro-
8is, psychopathy or psychosomatism.
You have mentioned that they cannot
be admitted in the general hospitals.
But the mental hospitals cannot be
built immediately. A proper classi-
flcation of mental illness is a neces-
sary ingredient of this Bill. Psycho-
logy is different from psycho-neurosis
or psychosomatic conditions, where
while one has perfect physiological
‘conditions, the human personality as
such hag been affected. Once that
human personality ijs developed, he
gets peychological satisfaction, Every
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human being is psychogenic. We can-
not deny it. Any treatment for
mental illness without a deflition of
embryonic lesion will be suicidal
Can you throw light on this?

DR. WIG: I am sorry. The ques-
tion is not very clear to me.

MR. CHAIRMAN: He wants to
know where the mentally retarded
cases should be sent. The last pan
I also could not get. Let him put a
question instead of making a state-
ment.

BHRI MALLIKARJUN: How does
psychiatry come into the picture in
the treatment of mentally il] patients?

DR. WIG: I thisk this elaborate
definition should not confuse this
august gathering in thinking that in
an average case the psychiatrist has
any difficulty in saying that a person
is mentally ill. That is not true. Any
definition of a mental behaviour is
dificult. I can throw a challenge that
you will have difficulty in doing it.
So, let us not bother about it too
much. However, in an average case
the definition is not a seriou: prob-
lem. A doctor can say “this man is
mentally ilI”. He is specially trained
to look after mental illness. There
are a number of mental illness where
the treatments are very easy and &
psychiatrist can make a tremendous
difference to the happiness of the
patient and his family and their
future life. Though there are a
number of illnesses there are three or
four major categories. The first major
category is psychosis, which in lay-
man’s language is referred to as in-
sanity, madness or pagalpan. This is
the broad area which we are talking
about for admission in mental hospi-
tals. In that specific area there are
a number of drugs and the method
of treatment has been revolutionised.
That constitutes about one per cent
of the general population, which
sometimes or other gets this kind of
{llness. Then there are other types
of illness. I need not go into the



details A psychiatrist js a medical
person who knows the treatment, [
am convinced that he can do tremen-
dous good to a vast majority of the
patients who are cuffering ¢rom men-
ta]l illness.

SHRI MALLIKARJUN: What about
psychogenic diseases, hyper-tension
and all that. How are you going to
take. those things into consideration
when he is a neurologist and not.a
psychologist?

DR. WIG: In any speciality there
are borderline cases. In some areas
you know your competence, what you
can do. There are other areas, border-

line cases, where you are not sure.

In any paychiatric illness, say psycho-
sis or neurosis, we are more comfort-
able and we know what to do, But
there are border line cases—psychoso-
matic cases, peptic ulcer or hyper-
tension—for which we do not have an
answer. Unfortunately, at this moment
with the current knowledge we can-
uot make any dramaetic cure.

MR. CHAIRMAN: There are a cer-
tain number of cases in which psy-
chiatry can give an insight so that the
pa?ﬁent can help himself. Is that not
80

DR. WIG: That is quite true. As
the hon, Member rightly pointed out,
there is no d'sease which is purely
physical or purely psychological. All
diseases have gome component of
both. Any intelligent doctor or psy-
chiatrist can help that unfortunate
individual.

MR. CHAIRMAN: In other words,
are you suggesting that 2 sound train-
ing in the basic concepts of psychiatry
for the genera] medical practitioner?

DR. WIG: If you will permit me
to say so, psychiatry is too important
to be left to psychiatrists alone. Men-
ta]l health should be the concern of
every doctor and every human being.
This kind of training in mental health
should be a part of the training of
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the doctors, and not merely psychia-
trists.

SHRI MALLIKARJUN: You have
come nearer to my thinking. So, may
I know ¢rom you that suppose if some
persons who are born with embryo-
nic lesions. . .

MR. CHAIRMAN: You mean, an

early disease?

SHRI MALLIKARJUN: For various
reasons there gre some Jesiong in the
development of brain and the nervous
system. Becawe of this, it will be
ultimately resulting in the disease.
You wil] see that later. When such
a person sees the surrounding: and
environments, it leads him to depres-
sion and he cannot perform normal
functions. So, such persons whom we
think are mentsally retarded are not
psychoneurotic or psychiatric persons.
Such persons are large in number
and their mortality is more.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Please try to be
brief and ask the question.

SHRI MALLIKARJUN: This is
what | have been trying to impress
upon you. Kindly say something
about these personsg born with genetic

defects ultimately getting into dep-
ression due to environment and g0
on and so forth. Should such persons

be classified or not?

SHRIMATI PURABI MUKHOPAD-
HYAY: I will answer this question.
Why classify?

SHRI MALLIKARJUN: I want to
know it from the hon. doctor himself
because there are thousands of peo-
ple who are mentally retarded and
they are not taken into consideration.

DR. WIG: Whatever I have been
able to understand, my response to
this question is that genetic factors
are very important in some forms of
mental {llness, In the classification.
this comes under a  special cate-
gory of defects. But I would say
that by and large each one of us is



the product of genetic background and
environment. What we have deve-
loped today is what we have been
given by our parents and how our
environment from childhood changed
our behaviour and personality. This
i a combination of genetic and en-
vironmental factors. Sometimes gene-
ti> factors are more prominent and
sometimeg environental ¢actors are
more prominent. In a given case the
psychiatrist usually decides which
factor is more prominent.

SHRIMATI NOORJEHAN  RA-
Z7.ACK: Dr. Wig said that the Magis-
trates and Judges should have better
knowledge about psychology and psy-
chiatry. I would like to state here
that once a case is brought before a
Judge or a Magistarte, he
“oes not give his orders ag he pleases.
He will be having a general idea
about it. Unless and until the case
is very clear and it is proved that the
vpatient ig unable to become normal,

“a Judge does not give orders for

divorce. T would like to know from
Dr Wig in what wav Judges should
have a hetter knowledge of psycho-
Jogy and psychiatry.

DR. WIG: When T made that state-
ment there was no intention of any
kind to belittle the judiclary and
volice at all. My own knowledge in
this respect is much less. T only sav
that those w»n have to deal with
mental health oproblems anywhere
must have krnowledge o# what is the
current thinking in contemporary
psychology and psychiatry.

SHRIMATI NOORJEHAN RA-
ZACK: You mean to say, knowledge
in the gense that thov must be assist-
od bv a psvchiatrist or thev must
have a thorough knowledge of this?

DR. WIG: 1 would suggest that in
the training programme of the law-
vers and Magistrates, there should be
a better reoresentation at the theore-
tical as well as vractical level. How
many times a noliceman or a Magis-
trate or a Judge s given knowledge
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about mental illness, I do not know.
But I would like that there should
be some component of this in the
training programme.

SHRI HAREKRUSHNA MALLICK:
Do you agree that a psychiatrist ajso
should be called to plead on behalf of
a particular case in question to help
the court as well as the person con-
cerned? For example, a person is
unlawfully going to be confined and
the entire judiciary and everybody
else are mobilised. In that event, can
a case be fought with the help of a
psychiatrist? In other words, in every
cagse the psychiatrist must be present
in the court?

MR. CHAIRMAN: I think that is a
very unfair question. The Magistrate
hag committed a person on the basis
of the report of a psychiatrist. Now
vou want to bring in another psychia-
trist to confront him and counter the
opinion of one with that of the other?
Dr. Wig, if you want to say anything
about it, you can. What he is saying
is that just Jike I hire a lawyer in the
court, in the same fashion he wants
a psychiatrist to be hired by a party

CTred

DR. WIG: 1 would briefly say it '
like this that if a Judge or a Magis- |
trate, in many of the cases, takes the
opinion of the psychiatrist into consi-
deration while taking a decision, pro- |
bably he will be able to arrive at a /
better decision in the totality of the
picture. But what happens js that
a psychiatrist is only called on behall
of one party or the other and not
called by the court to give his advice.
¥ a Magistrate or a Judge calls the
psychiatrist to give him the advice
about a case, it might be a healthy
way of arriving at a correct decision.

SHRI HAREKRUSHNA MALLICK:
You mean, the presence of a psychia-
trist in a court of law is helpful?

DR. WIG: Yes. Many times it will ;
be helpful. i

SHR] HAREKRUSHNA MALLICK:

Should drug addicts and alcoholics )
be confined to mental hospitalg or bea




treated in ordinary hospitals in sepa-
rate wards?

DR. N. N. WIG: Mental illness,
broadly, is of five kinds. The first is
psychosis, generally called insanity or
madness. It is characterised by ab-
normal behaviour. The person has
lost contact with reality. For exam-
ple, he sees and hears things which
are not there. He has paranoid ideas,
he feels that he is being poisoned,
that others are trying to humiliate
him etc. The second type is neurosis.
Here, the gsymptoms are both physical
and psychological. He has fear, gnx-
jety, tension, depression, he cannot
sleep. He has pain, headachu, weak-
ness etc. A careful examination does
not reveal any basis for this, and the
asgessment is that probably paycholo-
gical reasons are producing the symp-
toms. The difference between psycho-
sis and neurosis is that in the former
the person has lost contact with rea-
lity, while in the latter it is maintain-
ed but he does not like it.

The third broad group is personality
or character disorder, where a person
repeatedly does crime or drinks again
and agein, becomee a drug addict or
is unduly aggressive or violent. He
is not otherwis~ abnormal, he has not
lost his mind. He has some peculiar
abnormalities ¢f ™g perconality, and
does not learn from experience,

The fourth is mental rctardation.
Intellicence i 'ow right from the
beginning and does not come up to
the norma) ‘evel. The fifth is psycho-
somatic. Outwardlv it is physical,
but tiw suspizie~ is that it ig due to
psychological factors.

SHRI RUDOLPH RODRIGUES:
I am not clear whether you want to
excluds the psvchology units of the
general hosoitals entirely from the
purview of thiz Bill or only from
certain provisions of it,

DR. N. N. WIG: When I came here,
1 was convinced that they should be
kept out, but I can see the point of

view of the Committee, So, I would
say you should be careful. As far as
possible, do not change the working
pattern of these units; otherwise, un-
knowingly you may damage them.

SHRI RUDOLPH RODRIGUES:
Bring them within the purview but
limit thg application of the provisions.

(The Committee then adjurned.).

IO-Dr. BM. Debsikdar,

(The witnesse was called in, and he
took his seat).

MR. CHAIRMAN: I welcome you
and I thank yoy for taking the trouble
of appearing before the Committee.

(Direction 38 read out),

We have received your Memorun-
dum, Would you like to say anything
more about it before we put ques-
tions?

DR. DEBSIKDAR: At the outset,
I would like to say that I feel pri-
vileged to appear befora the Com-
mittee, particularly to be associsted
with this work which was pending.
for quite some time.

If 1 quote the Mental Health Bill,
1978 last page, it says:

“The spirit of the Bill is to con-
solidate, amend, the law relating
to treatment and cve of mentully
ill persons.”

I also wish to focus the very com-
mendable and learned observation of
the hon, Minister in the Statement of
objects and Reasons of the Bill. T

quote:

“The mentally ill persons are to
be treated like any other sick per-
“sons and the enviromment around
them should be as normal as pos-
sible.”
Another fact that I wish to bring
to the notice of the Committee iy
that in the Indiap Lunacy Act, 1912,



the major principle underlying, the
Lunacy Act was the prevention and
the detention of lunatics or alleged
Junatics in unlicensed and unauthoris-
ed places or institutions.

My opinion will be based on these
points, The Mental Health Bill which
has been framed does not fully satisfy
the promise given on the last pege
of the Bill that is. “The mentally
sick persop should be treated like any
other sick person.” 1 whole heartedly
appreciate that the Parliament at last
is thinking of finding out some way
so that the treatment reaches the

masses.

MR, CHAIRMAN: In your Memo-
randum you have stated that you
want private nursing homes to be
treated as automatically licensed
homes without applying for it. The
whole idea of licensing the nursing
homes is to see that there are ade-
quate facilities for the care of patients,
Therefore, would you not agree that
even the existing nursing homes
should be inspected to ensure that
they have adeguate facilities? Why
do you want to deny the patient of
having adequate facilities simply be-
cause g nursing home was established
long ago? Most of them are likely
to have adequate facilities. But there
may be some which are not adequate
and, therefore they should not be
allowed to continue,

Secondly, we have provided in the
Bill that the license is not transfer-
able. You say that it should be made
transferable and that the successor
should not have to apply again. Your
point is, what is licensed is a nursing
home, not an individual. It one indi-
vidual dies, there may be other com-
petent people in that nursing home
and nobody is going to take away the
licence. But it has to be ensured
that the services are satisfactory ard
they must apply. If a nursing home
is sold away to another person who
may not be a competent persom a
trained psychiatrist, how can a licence
be transferred? Why do you want a

provision that it should be transfer-

ables?
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Thirdly, you have said about the
difficulty of admissions, That is there,
It has been suggested to us that there
should be only three types of admis-
sions. voluntary admissions, admis.
sions under extra-ordinary circumst-
ances where the relatives or friends
can bring the patients and commit-
ment by magistrates in the case of
violent patients who are a danger {o
themselves or to others. You have
said that “others” should be eliminat-
ed. I would like to have your opinion
on these three points.

DR, DEBSIKDAR: As regards the
first point, I did not mean that all
nursing homes should be automatically
licensed. There should be a restric-
tion. But on¢e they are licensed they
should be given the liberty, as any
other nursing home run by the Gov-
ernment, to run like that.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You do not
mind nursing homes being inspected
for adequacy of facilities and services
before they are licensed,

DR. DEBSIKDAR:
it should be done.

1 don't mind;

As regards the second point, my
feeling is that when a person is be-
coming in-charge of the responsibility
and the fate of so many patients—
anything may happen to his life all
of a sudden—and if the nursing home
is in the name of a particular person,
then, that person becomes indispens-
able to that institution and, therefore,
a provision should be made simult-
aneously that in the absence of this
person or in the case of demise of
this person, there should be another
person who can take it over.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Instead of a
nursing home being in the name of
a person, say, Mrs, Mukherjee Nurs-
ing Home, it may be'called the Cal-
cutta Nursing Home. Mrs. Mukherjee
is in-charge of it today and Mrs. Khan
may be in-charge of it tomorrow.
They are hoth trained psychiatrists,
Nobody is going to say no, to thcir
continuing. But if the wife of the
psychiatrist, as the inherlter of the



property, takes over that and thinks
that licence should automatically con-
tinue without there being a qualified
psychiatrist, etc., surely that is not
right.

DR, DEBSIKDAR: My feeling was
that, if only a peychiatrist was in
charge of the nursing home, the nurs-
ing home would be recognised. I
want that these two have to be se-
parated. In the section it is said that
licence will be given to a person who
is a psychiatrist. That means, both
the person and the institution are go-
ing together, I do not want that.

SMT, PURABI MUKHOPADHYAY:
That is exactly what we want. Other-
wise, there would be exploitation.
Suppose you are a trained person and
you sell it out. Another person takes
over and ha is not a properly trained
person. Whenever it is sold or trans-
ferred, a fresh licence has to be ap-
plied for, and there will be a proper
Inspection and@ then only the person
will be allowed to run that,

DR. DEBSIKDAR: 1 apprehended
a gap. Suppose a person suddenly
dies and another person takes over.
There is likely to he a gap and dur-
ing that gap a number of mentally ill
patients will be under the charge of
nobody. There i1s a risk, That was
my point. Therefore, a provision
should be made that, in the- absence
of the person concerned, automatically
a second man has to be there to take
it over. '

SHRr RAJSHEKHAR KOLUR:
You have said that this Bill deviates
from the Statement of Objects and
Reasons given. In the Statement of
Objects and Reasons it is said:

“...Thus the mentally ill persons
are to be treated like any other
sick persons and the environment
around them should be made as
normal as possible.”

I would like to know the reasons
for your conclusion that this Bill is
deviating from the Statement of ob-
jects and Reasons, I am referring to
the tréiatment ‘part of it. -
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DR. DEBSIKDAR: Unless the per-
son comes to the specialist, the treat-
ment cannot start. Unless the person
is made available to the specialist,
how can the treatment start? We
are barring the patients from coming
to the specialist by many sections.
How will the treatment start? When
the actual treatment comes, just like
surgical treatment, consent can be
taken, Before that we are barring
the mentally-ﬂl pluents from coming
to the specialists by many provisions
in the law.

SHRI RAJSHEKHAR KOLUR:
You want those pmvhionl to be ex-
cluded?

DR. DEBSIKDAR: Yes.

‘MR. CHAIRMAN: What provisions
do you want to be excluded?

DR, DEBSIKDAR: The patieats
should not be barred from coming to
the specialist—private or government
or any other agency.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Which provision
is barring him from coming to the
specialist? Sp far as I kuow there
is none.

DR. DEBSIKDAR: ‘l'hére are many,
If a patient has to come, he has to
come through a Magistrate.

MR. CHAIRMAN: His relatives
can bring him, his friends can bring
him, the patient can come himself
What is the provision that you want

to be deleted, I do not understand,

There' is no restriction at present.
The patient can go to the psychiatrist
if he wants to. There {8 nothing in
this which prevents him from doihg
that. I think there is some confuslon

ln your mind,

SHRI KRISHNA NAND JOSHI:
You have made some reference about

inspection of psychiatric ntxuing
home, You have said: ‘

“The qualities of the inspecting
officer should be determined by the
Committee, so that the inspecting
officer so selected sheuld have sufi-



cient orientation about the peed,
nature and value of psychiatric
treatment.”

Would you kindly elucidate as to
what sort of inspector should be there?

DR. DEBSIKDAR: I want that the
inspecting cfficer should be such a
person who has the basic knowledge
of psychiatry and is familiar with the
modern trends of treatment.

MR, CHAIRMAN: I did not catch
your point, What is it that you want?

DR. DEBSIKDAR: About the Ins-
pecting Officer who comes to inspect
the Nursing Home, he should be a
person who understands the nature of
the illness, the merits, demerits and
the benefits of the treatment. He
should be a knowledgeable person.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The State Gov-
‘ernment, I presume, will oppoint
knowledgeable and competent per-
sons to be Inspecting Officers,

SHRI KRISHNA NAND JOSHI:
He wants qualified doctors should be
included there. No provision is there
in the Bill that they should be parti-
cularly experienced people.

MR, CHAIRMAN: ‘Inspecting
Officer’ means any person authorised
by the State Government or the lic-
ensing authority to inspect any psy-
chiatrist or psychiatric nursing home.
Surely they cannot send somebody,
they cannot send a clerk to go and
inspect the Mental Hospital. They
will have to send somebody who is
eligible,

You want it tg be prescribed in
the law that he should be an ex-
perienced psychiatrist?

DR. DEBSIKDAR: Or a Medical
Officer who has some knowledge of
peychiatry.

SHRIMATI PURABI MUKHO-
PADHYAY: You yourseM are a
doctor, Suppose you go to visit a

bospital, If you inspect the operation
theatre, with the basic know-
ledge of psychiatry, don't you
think that you can see if the shadow
lamp is all right, whether emergency
operation can be undertaken and whe.
ther all the equipments are there and
whether the anaesthetist is quite qua-
lified etc. So any intelligert persons
having the basic ideas can be &n
inspecting  authority. You necd
no medical qualification for that.
Tell me which State Government has
enough of psychiatrists or medical
officers trained in psycho-analysis
and psychological treatment or neuro-
logical treatment?

MR. CHATRMAN: Would you like
to answer that?

DR, DEBSIKDAR: Yes I think.
The Madam is supporting my point
of view. That is what I feel. She
wants somebody who knows the job.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We do not need
anybody who has special knowledge.
Anybody can go see and inquire. It
does not need a surgeon to inspect an
ordinary nursing home. Similarly,
the inspecting officer of a nursing,
home for the mentally sick need not
be a psychiatrist. An intelligent per-
son, whatever the laws that are
prescribed, can go and inspect an@
decide whether things are as prescri~
bed or not.

SHRI KRISHNA NAND JOSHI:
Provision has been made that if the
inspecting Officer is a psychiatrist.
he can meet and have discussion with

‘the patient himself

SHRIMATY PURABI MUKHO-
PADHYAY: He is going for licensing
to see whether the licence will con-
tinue. He need not meet any patients.
He has to inspect whether the basic
requirements for treatment and the
neressary equipment are there or not.

SHRI KRISHNA NAND JOSHI:
If he is a qualified person, he can
discuss the matter with the patient.

DR. DEBSIKDAR: Not only qua-
lified but he should be suffictently



oriented alse to understand what is:

on. He should understand’
what are the implications in the treit-
ment and ‘what are the requirements.
Otherwise, there may be a report
which may not be beneficial. That is
why he should be at least oriented
about the subject. He need not be
a psychiatrist as such, he may be a
Medical Officer.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Here the point
js that there may be aspects which
agre administrative, There may be as-

pects which are technical. Now,
please see the Bill, Clause 13(2)
says:

“The Inspecting Officer may in-
terview in private any patient re-
ceiving treatment and care there-
in— .

(a) for the purpose of inguiring
into any complaint made by or on
behalf of such patient as to the
treatment and care, or

(b) in any case whera the Inspect-
ing Officer has reason to believe
that any inpatient is not receiving
proper treament and care, and where
the Inspecting Officer is a medical
practitioner, he may 15 cxamine
the patient in private and may re-
quire the production of any medical
records relating to the treatment
and care of the patient in the psy-
chiatric hospital or psychiatric nurs-
ing home and inspect the same.”

From this I understand that the Ins-
pecting, Officer may sometimes be just
an administrator, if the problems are
of an administrative nature. Other-
wise the Inspecting Officer may bhe
sent tp inquire into complaints ete.
and in any way he will be a perron
with a scientific hackground. In the
layy we cannot prescribe what the
qualifications of the Inspecting OMcer
should be. We have to leave it to
the discretion of the MTeclth Depart-
ment of the State concerned.
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DR.: DEBSIKDAR: It.ia fairly
enough. What 1 mean isthat he
should be oriented with the administ-
ration of the treatment.

MR, CHAIRMAN: Don't you think
that the Health Department is respon-
sible to enmsure that the Inspecting
Officer has the necessary competence?

DR. DEBSIKDAR: | do not doubt
that.

DR. SAROJINI MAHISHL: Please
let me know the definition. You are
having a private Nursing .Home, On
what basis are you categorising the
patients and what type of cases you
are admitting and we also would like
to know whether the definition which
is there in the Bill is adequate or not

MR. CHAIRMAN: A lot of objec-
tions has been raised to thia definition.

DR DEBSIKDAR: Can I get
little guidance from you?

MR, CHAIRMAN: Item
page 3 of the Bill

DR. DEBSIKDAR: i think this
should be adequate for practical pur-
poses. ¢

MR. CHAIRMAN: I would like
ask you, It says:

.. .psychosomatic disorder..."

Now, anybody with hypertension,
agthma may he branded as mentally
nick if somebody wants to have some-
body put behind the bar of a mental
hospital for property reasons or for
varicus other reasons or somebody
may file a divorce suit.

(m) on

to

DR. DEBSIKDAR: They should
not be admitted We face such
situations. But I think no psychlatrist
who has got a clear conscience will
admit a patient if he is not suffering
from any mental illness or so. Bu.
she has to apply his discretion and
consclence and if it is done purpose-
fully for some malicious and nefarious
purpose, then action should be taken
against him. Under medical ethics,
everything is punishabie,
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DR. DEBSIKDAR: They are pun-
ished as per the Act. The person who
does malpractice has to be paid by
his own coin in due course. That is
my feeling It is an exception end
jt is not a rule. Anybody may admit
a person for a malicious purpose, but
I think he will not be able to practice
in that area in due course. There is
a code of conduct under the Indian
Medical Association.

For example, a man with poison, if
he has been admitted without any
information to the proper authority
or a man with head injury is admitted
without informing the proper
authority, then that is wrong and he
should be punished. But in general,
jt does not happen. So, it is an ex-
ception and it 18 not g rule.
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DR DEBSIKDAR: 1 believe so,
because. we do not have sufficlent
facilities for giving treatment to the
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patients and moreover we do not
treat the patients. The disease may
be chronic and may become incurable
in due course but if the patient is
treated early in time, then he may
be cured. I have got statistics of
my own hospital where 80 per cent
of the patients got the treatment with.
in three months’ time. We are lack-
ing in this profession in so far as
psychiatrist; are concerned, because
in rural areas if a person is sufferin-
from mental illness and if it is de-
tected in early times, then he can be
fruitfully treateq within three months,
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DR. DEBSIKDAR: You are perfec-
tly right. If T can quote the Bhore
Committee, in 1946, they estimated
that there were one million people
suffering érom mental illness and
there were about 1.2 per cent of the
tota] population having mental defect.
In the All India Phychiatrists Society
conference, 1 estimated that there
were only 24,500 beds available in the
country whereas when the country’s
total population was 860 million or g0,
there are enormous number of mental
patientgs who do not have provision for
treatment at all. We have about 650
professionalg and about 50 more who
are not registered as members of this
professional, So, there are gbc.t 70C
professionals. Our morbid population
ig very huge in menta] hospital. In
the Government Institutions there
are only about 100 posts and the rest
of the 600 professionals are main-
taining the mental health of the coun-



‘try. Either they do private practice
or some other profession. If more
posts are created in the Government
‘institutions, the menta] jllness that is
largely prevalent in the country does
not go without attention anqd care.
The ctatistics of ICMR 1961—64, given
by Dr. Dubey, in Agra, will show that
there are about 18.2 mentally sick per-
-sons in Delhi area and nearabout. This
does not include other sick persons.
We cannot say that India has less
number of mental sick persons, I feel
private practice should be encouraged
or just like the primary health centre
is permitted oulside, some provisions
should be made, for example, T tried
1o contact psychiatrists in different
parts of the country. I have examined
so far about 3000 cases. 40 to 50 per
cent of the cases were discharged at a
very early time. But many cases re-
mained undetected, even though they
‘were established mental case patients.
That is why I fee] that there should be
some law introduceq in regard to the
private practice. Even then there are
a lot of barriers put in this law. You
have mentioned about three places for
giving treatment to these patients. One
is psychiatric hospital, second is psy-
chiatric nursing home run by the Gov-
ernment and the third is the private
psychiatric hospital. Here T would sub-
mit that nursing home is not existing
at all. That i{s why I told you I
very happy about it. But it has to be
more liberalised.
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SHRIMATI PURAB] MUKHO-
PADHYAY: He hag mentioned that
there are only 700 properly trained
psychiatrists in this country. His claim
is that 700 people for running hospi-
tals, for running the nursing homes
and doing private practice are inade-
quate and he knows that there i3 no
register number or licence number
being given to them like those given
by the Indian Medica] Council Re-
search which hag given degrees and
registration number. But here unless
the psychiatrist; get the registration
number, nobody can claim that he jo-a
registereq practitioner.

DR. DEBSIKDAR: There is a classi~
fication laid down and there i3 also
membership system in Indian Psychia-
tric Society.

SHRIMATI PURABI MUKHO-
PADHYAY: Are they registered as
medical practitioners?

DR. DEBIKDAR: No separate re-
gistration is there. But now recently
there is an academy for specialists run
by Medical Council and some of us
have been included in that but not all
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DR. DEBSIKDAR: I am in favour of
giving heavy punishment. But there 8
in the law if the motive is good, If
the act is done with good motive, that
is to be properly assessed before give
ing punishment, My hospita! is listed
in the Government Register. It is pnb.
lished by the Central Government«ia



their Book and I enjoy all the facili-
tiés ag Government hospital enjoys. 1
can do as much work as a penson jn
a Government hospital does. I have got
100 bedg in my hospita] and I have
got various branches in our clinic. 1
have got Nuero Physicians, Nuero Sur-
geons, 6 Psychiatrists, 5 Medical Offi-
cers and nurses. I have got 10 nurses
out of those 4 are post-graduates. If
you give incentive, there are many
people who will take up this profes-
sion and do private practice.

MR, CHAIRMAN: 1 thank you very
much for the trouble you have taken
in coming here and having enlightened
us.

DR. DEBSIKDAR: Thank you very
much for giving me the opportunity
to explain my viewpoints,

(The Committee then adjourned)

III. Dr. Shanti Sheth

(The witness was called in, and he
took hig seat)

MR. CHAIRMAN: Dr. Shantj Sheth,
1 would like to welcome you to this
gitting of the Joint Committee. It is
very kind of you to have responded to
our cal] and come here to give evi-
dence.

Attention of the witness was drawn
to Direction 53 of the Directions by
the Speaker,

We have received your memoran-
dum, Would you like to say some
thing before we ask you questions?

DR. SHETH: Madam, may 1 draw
your attention to page 3 Section (M)—
Definition. .

MR. CHAIRMAN: Let me tell you
#n respect of definition not only you
but other witnesses who have appear-
ed before this Committee have ra.sed
objections, It has been suggested to
us that mental sub-normality is not a
treatable condition and should not be
considered ag mental illness, We would
like t0 hear yowr views.
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DR, SHETH: I entirely agree ¢n
this point deposed by my coileagues
earlier. Mental sub-normality may not
be treated as psychiatric condition un.
lesg there it is associated with psycho.
sis. What happens is sometimes men-
ta] deficiency is a condition by itself
means a person whose intelligence is
much lower. Quite often thig condition
is associated with psychotic conditions.
So, he must be treated as a mentally
il] person because he will have to be
restrained in an institute,

MR. CHAIRMAN: What is the defi-
nition you would like to keep?

DR. S8HETH: If a person has to be
compelled to undergo treatment by
law, the following words have to bhe
added to the definition of a mentally
il] person: “who is considered a nui-
sance and dangerous to himself and
others and for public safety”.

SHRI SAKTI KUMAR SARKAR:
Do you want to retain the words “such
other condition of a like nature as may
be prescribed” or do you want them to
be deleted go that it may not be mis-
internreted in future for ulterior mo-
tives?

DR. SHETH: These may be retained
provided vou add the words I have
just mentioned to the definition.
Otherwise, you will have to redraft
the entire para.

MR. CHAIRMAN: In what way?

DR. SHETH: It will take some time.
I will gend it.

" SHRIMATI USHT KHAN: Yoy said
‘nuisance’ must be added to the defini-
tion. Would you be so good as to de-
fine what you mean by it?

DR. SHETH: I said. nuisance and
dangerous. For example, he is making
so much disturbance that it will be
difficult ¢or the neighboun; to stay
there. He may make noise or throw
stones.

SHRIMATI USH] KHAN: But the
law of tort as it stands will not cover
all these. You need an amendment to
that law to cover these.



DR. SHETH: I can only express my
wopinion. The legal aspects will have
40 be examined. -

In page 3, in sub-clause (q) the
words ‘convalescent home’ sre men-
tioned. There iz no convalescent home
run by either the Central Government
or State Governments. But there are
a number of private sanatoria where
a person who has recovered from
mental illness can go for convalescene.
If the Government jg going to control
‘the private sanatoria the philonthropic
persons will not give shelter to such
patients because it would be conside-
red an interference. Therefore, the
word;; ‘convalescent home’ may be re-
moved.

MR. CHAIRMAN: There have been
instances where these convalescent
homesg were dens of vice. Don't you
think some sort of licensing of these
institutions is necessary?

DR. SHETH: As far as licensing of
hospitals and psychiatric nursing
homes is concerned, I entirely agree.
But I am referring to the number of
private sanatoria in the country. Even
a dharamsala is a sanatorium where
persons who have been mentally ill,
come and stay.

MR. CHAIRMAN: If it is not a spe-
.cial convalescent home ¢or psychiatric
cases, no licensing will be required.
If a person wants to go to any other
institution which is not a recognised
institution for this purpose, nothing
‘prevents him from doing so,

DR. SHETH- If a sanatorium is vses
‘by a patient who is convalescing from
mental illness, the control will auto-
matically come in. That is my fear.

About ‘sub-clause (r), to my know-
ledge there are a number of pnst-
graduate degrees and diplomas in
psychiatry which are not recognised
by the Medical Council of India at
present.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Al Indian deg-
rees are recognised. We do not recog-
nize the degrecr of those countries who
do not recognise our degrees.
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DR. SHETH: { am certaln tha
ag far as the State of Maharashtra
and Gujarat are concerned—
were we nave the institutes which
have been impsarting degrees on
Psychiatry from the year 1954 on-
wards, but they are still not recog-
nised by the Medical Council.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Which is this?
DR, SHANTI SHETH: Bombay
University.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Without
hospital and patients.

DR. SHANTI SHETH: We have
g0t a hospita;, We have got a recog-
nised Institute, but the degree or
diploma is not recognised by the
Medical Council of India.

MR. CHAIRMAN: | do not know.
But there must be somes lacuna
because they have recognised so many
other degrees.

DR. SHANTI SHETH: I am not
going into that aspect. Here the
word ‘Psychiatrist’ means a medical
practitioner posiessing the prescribed
degree or diploma recognised by
the Medical Council of India. ] have
already written to the Medical Coun-
ci] of India. I have already written
to the Medical Council to give me a
list of degrees or diplomas in psy-
chiatry recognised in this country. I
am not so sure about other degrees.
But I can tell you this much that as
¢ar as Maharashtra and Gujarat are
concerned, they are not recognised
and so later on wherever the word
‘Psychiatrist’ is used...

MR. CHAIRMAN: If yoy see fur-
ther, the definition of ‘Psychiatrist’,
you will see that the State Govern-
ment can designate anybody as &
Psychiatrist keeping in view his khow-
ledge and experience.

DR. SHANTI SHETH: There is no
such reference in any State Mental
Manuaj where the word ‘Psychiatrist’
is recognised,

MR. CHAIRMAN: This is for the
first time that this Bill is introducing
the word ‘Psychiatrist’ and you must

any



understand that so few of you are
there in this country that all over the
country probably for some years to
come, we will not be able to get
Psychiatrists.

DR. SHANTI SHETH: | have a sug-
gestion. I think it will serve the pur-
pose of the Bill if this is re-worded
as, “Psychiatrist means a Medical per-
son possessing a medical degree or
diploma”, That means, it may be
MBBS or any other medical qualifica-
tion recognised by the Medical Coun-
cil of India and possessing a post-
graduate degree or diploma. It is not
necessary that the post-graduate de-
gree or diploma should be recognised.

SHRI SHAKTI KUMAR SARKAR:
Would yoy kindly say from your ex-
perience about the Clinical Psycho-
logists being included here?

MR. CHAIRMAN: Let him finish
his statement,

DR. SHANT[ SHETHI: Madz-a i’
you permit me, I will answer the
question put by the hon. Member. I
am one person who has great respect
for Clinica! Prychologists, I have al-
ways felt that they have a place along
with the Psychiatrists, But there are
a number of medical conditions. I
will give an example. Insanity or
Psychosis or Psychiatric conditions
can result as a result of brain tumour.
How will a clinical psychologist be
able to determine that this so-called
psychosis or insanity i# due to the
physical disorder. He has no means
at his disposal to know that and if
he is to certify it will lead to some
serious medical trouble,

SHR] SHAKTI KUMAR SARKAR:

So, we can safely say that Clinical
Psychologists should not be taken into
consideration for treatment.

DR. SHANTI SHETH: I did not
say, for treatment. I was referring
to the Bill, to the extent of and in
regard to certifying a patient.

SHRI SHAKTI KUMAR SARKAR:
¥ they are allowed for treatment of

insanity and other _things, will they
not come under the purview of thig
Act?

DR, SHANTI SHETH: In what
manner?

SHRI SHAKTI KUMAR SARKAR:
'Their objection is that they have

been excluded from the purview of
this Act so that they are actually
barred from practice. What is your
suggestion?

DR. SHANTI SHETH: This Bill
has relation to the mental disorder,
it is primarily and basically concern-
ed with the medical science and there-
fore those psychologists or the Clinical
Psychologists play a very important
role in the medical treatment, i» the
psychological treatment of a patient.
But as far as this Bill is concerned,
he has no place. 7 think it is suffi-
ciently clear,

MR. CHAIRMAN: I might mention
here one or two things. They said
that they are running nursing homes
on their own. They also said, “Now
by this law, you will exclude us.”
You should instead of saying ‘medical
officer’ say ‘an officer’ which may be
a Psychiatrist or a Clinical Psycho-
logist or a Psychiatric social worker
because they are all capable of look-
ing after the patients,

DR. SHANTI SHETH: Looking
after is one thing. But here whenever
the word ‘Psychiatrist’ is referred to
the question of certification comes in.
There is the question of medical as-
pect.

MR, CHAIRMAN: For running the
homes, you will put them in charge.

DR. SHANTI SHETH: Provided

.some Medical Officer is available to

look after the medical aspect because
the Clinical Psychologist has no means
at his disposal to know without the
aid of medical man that this illness
is not due to any underlying medical
condition. For example how is @
G. P, going to know about the vita-
min deficiencies.



MR. CHAIRMAN: You have in
your memorandum talked about Sec.

18(2),

DR. SHANTI SHETH: There are
some minor points, which are very
important from my point of view.
On page 4 section 4, sub-gection (2)
I want to add the words “municipal
corporatipn” because we have to cover
the institutions run by the municipal
corporations.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Do youy think
that all these should be excluded?

DR, SHANTI SHETH: I am not
saying that. 1 am saying that the
municipal corporation should be taken
into account.

MR. CHAIRMAN: - Whep a private
person establishes an  institution,
surely he should observe certain stan-
dardgs which have been lajd down
before a licence is granted. Instead
of adding the words “municipal cor-
poration”, I would have appreciated
it if you have said that the exemption
even in the case of Central and State
“Governments should be taken away,

Sub-clause (2) of clause 4 says:

“Nothing contained in sub-section
(i) shall apply to a psychiatric
hospital or psychiatric nursing home
established or maintained by the
Central Government or State Gov-
ernment.”

I think this should be deleted.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL: If <ub-
clause (2) is deleted, then Govern-
ment has to obtain a licence.

MR. CHAIRMAN: I think Govern-
ment should set an example and not
be chary of being inspected by the
licensing authority. I think some of
the Government mental institutions
are in a very deplorable condition.
So, I feel that sub-clause (2) should
£0. We should consider this.

DR. SHANTI SHETH: May I add
that the special wards in the hospitals
and the teaching institutions should
be exempted. They need not have
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this licence. Otherwise, it would be
very difficult to teach.

MR. CHAIRMAN: 1 agree. So far
as service conditions are concerned,
they should be common, So far as
limitation about three months or six
months are concerned, perhaps they
should leave them out.

DR. SHANTI SHETH: In a general
hospital we do not differentiate bet-
ween a patient suffering from physi-
cal illnegg or mental iliness. We can-
not do that. The whole idea of this
Bill is to remove the stigma so that a
patient who is suffering from mental
illness should be able to go to a
genera] hoapital easily for treatment.
But if we are going to say that re
should be sent to a ward which is
licensed, it will create difficulties.

MR. CHAIRMAN: I agree.
DR, SHANTy SHETH: Then I

‘come to clause 7 on page 5 which

says:
“A licence shall not be transfer-
able or heritable.”

It is not always done. But some-
times, with the best of jntentions, it
is not possible for the Government to
come forward with a building and
other facilities for a nursing home.
But there are reasonable chances that
the private sector may come up sooner
or later, as in other countries like
America, where these institutions are
maintained by the private sector, A
philanthropist or charitable-minded
person may build a nursing home.
But if it is not transferable or herit-
able, how cap he run the show? His
son should have the right to inherite

it.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Suppose 8 man
dies; his wife inherits his property.
But, in the case of an institution of
this type the wife of the doctor har
to apply for a licence.

DR, SHANTI SHETH: It is not she
who runs jt. Even when the owner
dies, the goctors remain the same, the
conditions under which the licence:
was granted remaip the game.



REPRESENTATIVE OF HEALTH
.MINISTRY: Suppose A ig running an
. institution and he dies and B takes it
.over. He may not have the necessary
. finance to run it. So, a fresh licence
.should be obtained.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Your point is
‘well taken. Something should be donc,
.Suppose Doctor A dies because of
heart attack. What happens to the
nursing home unti]l a fresh licence
-ig taken?

DR, SHANTI SHETH: Now, we
'come to page 8, clause 18. Here, any
mentally ill person who does not or
‘who is unable to express hig willing-
ness for admission as a5 voluntary
_patient may be admitted.” This igin
reference to a patient who is taken
as a voluntary boarder. It means, a
relation of the patient makes an ap-
plication on his behalf and he is
taken in. The intentions of this
clause are good, but my point here
:is that we have also to look after the
interests and the protection of the
‘patient because there are mala fides of
the relations and there have been g
number of cases in history where it is
noticed that for certain reasons, pa-
- tients have been pusheq into the asy-
lums and thereby deprived them ot
-certain rights. Why we have a pro-
vision for a voluntary boarder is be-
~cause we want to get him treated.
Here we say: “An application made
“in that behalf by g relativa ot the
- mentally ill person if the Medical
Officer in charge ig satisfied that in
the interests of the mentally ill per-
son it is necessary to do so” (that is,
- admitting the patient). It can also
happen that the medical officer or the
psychiatrist can also connive with the
relative of the patient it he is em-
powered to certify such a patient, If
" he certifieg like that, the patient loses
‘eivil liberty. Thig is my apprehen-
sion. So. some protection hag to be
provided against the mala fides of tke
relatives,

MR. CHAIRMAN: The
will have to bring two

relative
certificates,

that of a doctor and that of a pgy.
chiatrist. Ag a matter of fact, e
opposite has been suggested to us and
that is, those who are poor peoplk
coming from the interior villages it <
they come to a big place like Calcutta
or Madras or Delhi, they have to g,
in gearch of the psychiatrisy and whep

‘they have hardly any money to get to

such cities, they are put to very great
hardship if they are to go for these
certificates and therefore, these two
certificateg may be given by the Ins-
titute where they are coming for ad-
*nisgsion of the patient. The Institute
people may say after examination
that the patient is not required and
they may send him back.

DR. SHANTI SHETH. There are
two ways of admitting g patient in a
mental hospital. v

MR. CHAIRMAN: One is volun-
tary. The second js extraordinary
circumstances where relatives bring
a .patieat. '

MR. SHANTI SHETH: | am refer-
ring to extraordinary circumstances
under which g relative brings the
patient and makes an application that
the patient should be kept in the hos-
pital or nursing home,

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Medical
Officer in charge of the hospital should |
certify that this patient needg or do=s
not neeq to be in the hospital.

DR. SHANTI SEETH: I am not
saying that. When g patient is ad-
mitted under extraordinary circum-
stances because a relation makes an
application to the Superintendent of
the hospital, here the mala fide of the
relation comes in. He makes an ap-
plication. Supposing he is brought
under such conditioag after adminis-
tering bhang. If the Superintendent
certifies, he is admitted as a volun-
tary boarder. Fair enough. But
some times a gituation does arise
where an officer can have link with
the relatica. So, tp protect against .
the mala fides we should say that



there should be some outside psychia-
trist of a generale hospital who should
also certify about the patient. “This
will protect the person against the
mala fides. That is my suggestion.

MR, CHAIRMAN: What happens
is this. The relative before making
an application has to give with it
two certificates.

DR. SHANTI SHETH: Not as a
voluntary boarder.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Yes I, extra-
ordinary circumstanceg it is Tequir-

ed. It is highly unlikely that all of
them are corru‘p&

DR. SHANTI SHETH:
you to read clausq 19.

MR. CHIARMAN: Clauese 19 states
as follows: -

1 request

19. (1) Any mentally ill person
who does not, or is unable tg ex-
press hig willingness for admission
as a voluntary patient, may be
admitted and kept as an inpatient in
a psychiatric hospita) or psychiatric
nursing home on &an application
made in that behalf by ; relative of
the mentally ill person if the medi-
cal officer in charge i satisfled that
in the interests of the mentally il
person it is pecessary so to do:

Provided that no person go ad-
mitted as an inpatient ghal] be kept
in the psychiatric hospital or psy-
chiatric nursing home as ap inpa-
tient for 5 period exceeding 90 days
except in accordance with the other
provisiong of thig Act.

(2) Every application under sub-
section (1) shall be in the prescribed
form and be accompanied by two
medica] certificates, from two medi-
cal practitioners (including a psy-
chiatrist) of whom one ghall be a
medical practitioner in the service
of Government to the effect that
the condition of such mentally ill
person is such that he should be
kept under-observation and treat-
ment as ap inpatient in a psychisa-

.. 3108 LS—4,
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tric hospital or paychiatric nursing
home.”

DR. SHANT] SHETH: It is in this
context T want to say that usually the
certificates are produoad and signed by
the officers of the Institute, sgay, the
Superintendent oy someone Mke that.

MR, CHAIRMAN: It iy being sug-
‘gested to us that we should allow the
inatitution to do it.

DR. SHANTI SHETH: By all
means. 1 do not say ‘No'. But in the
case of voluntary patients where the
application is made by a relative, some
outside agencies should also certity.
This is to’ prevent the mala fides.

MR, CHAIRMAN: In India mest
cases are being brought by the rela-
tives. Most cases are of poor people
and it you say like that, they have to
g0 in search of a private psychistrist.
It ix stuted here that among the two
medical practitfoners one sheuid be a
Government servant.

DR, SHANTI SHETH: The point is,
the Superintendent is already in the
service and the psychiatrist is also in
the service.

MR, CHAIRMAN: It is stated that
the “application shall be accompanied.”
This involvey that he hag to get f{t
from outside, So, 1 think we should
allow the institution to do it.

DR. SHANTI SHETH: There
nothing wrong in my suggestion.

MR, CHAIRMAN: Clause 19 fur-
ther says:

is

(3) Any mentally ill person ad~
mitted under sub-section (1) or
his relative may apply to the Magis-
trate for his discharge angd the
Magistrate may, after giving notice
to the person at whose instance he
wag admitted to the- psychiatric
hospital or psychiatric nursing home
and after making guch inqyiry as he
may deen fit, either alliow or discus
the application.



(4) The provisiong of the forego-
ing sub-sections shall be without
prejudice to the powers exercisable
by the Magistrate before whom the
case of a mentally jll person is
brought, whether under thig section
or under any other provision of this
Act, to pass a temporory treatment
order or a reception order, as the
case may be, if he is satisfied that it
is necessay so to do in accordance
with the relevant provision of this
Act.”

The point ig any relative or friend of
the petient can apply to the magis-
trate and say that he has been wrong-
fully detained.

DR, SHANT] SHETHI: The twg &re
different issues. A voluntary patient
volunteerg to get himself admitted and
to get out of the hospital. We do not
say to a patient who is suffering from
a physica] disorder, say paralysig, that
he should go to the court, Why should
a voluntary patient be asked to go to
the court? He stards on the same
footing,

MR, CHAIRMAN: A voluntary
patient will be discharged the moment
he wants to.

DR. SHANTI SHETH: Please see
Clause 3.

MR. CHAIRMAN Anyway, 1 think
this will need some examination. He
will be discharged at his own request,
It a relation has brought and got him
admitted on the basis of some certifi-
cate, another relative can apply to
the magistrate and say this is wrong-
fully done, and it is for the magistrate
to as for such assistance as may be
necessary.

DR, SHANTI SHETH: Page 8, line
45, The word “may’ shoufd be subs-
tituted by “must.”

“may” and
“shan" have the same significance,

DR. SHANTI SHETH: Page 12,
Clause 24(2), it states:

“On receipt of the application, the
magistrate shall consider the allega-
tion ......”

The word “allegation” should pe
changed. When a doctor writes his
clinical findings, they are not allegs-
tions,

MR. CHAIRMAN: It has been sug-
gested to us that admission should he
simplified, and we should only have
voluntary, extraordinary circumatan-
ces and commitment by a magistrate.
Temporary treatment order and emer-
gency admission are unnecessary, Do
you agree? v

DR SHANTI SHETH:
should be simplified.

I agree it

Page 13, line 4. Sometimes what
happens ig this. A patient certified by
a psychiatrist and medical officer is
produced before the magistrate. The
patient is not in an acite stage. By
the time he i3 produced he hag a Jucid
internal, he does not show any gross
disorder and he talks very intelligent-
ly. The magistrate has no way of
finding out whether he iz an |
insane person or not,

{i

MR. CHAIRMAN: 1 am afraid we |
cannot do anything about it. Other-
wise, we will open the flood-gates for
exploitation of the patiemts. Some of
these problemg will remain. They
will have to exercise their judgement
in each ease,

Thank you very much.
[The Committee then adjourned]

=)
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SHRI RUDOLPH RODRIGUES: It
the hon. Members are willing, we can
go on the 8th,

MR. CHAIRMAN: We have not in-
formed them We are having a Central
Health Council meeting. Many of
those people will also be here for the
Council meeting. Let us have it on
22nd and I will also be with you.

Dr. C. K. Parikh

(The witness was called in and he
took his seat)

MR. CHAIRMAN: Dr. Parikh: 1
would like to welcome you on behall
of this Committee, I would further
like to go through this formality of
informing you that your evidence shall
be trestd as public and ig liable to
be published, unless you specifically
desire that all or any part of it should
be treated as confidential. Evep #f
you do that, it ig liable to be made
available to the Members of Parlia-
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ment. It cannot be kept confidential
from them.

Dr, Parikh, we have received your
memorandum. Before we start put-
ting you questions would you like to
make a preliminary statement and say
anything further about your memo-
randum?

DR. C. K. PARIKH: In chapter I,
under the definition of Medical Officer,
you have mentioned a gazetted medi-
cal officer insanity 1s a very speciali-
zed subject; and ¢ gcneral medical
officer has very little idea about what
is the psychiatric condition of a
patient. So, he would not normally
be justified in certifying a patient for
admission to a mental hospital, So,
any person who, after having gradua-
ted, has an experience of 5 years in
psychiatry should be considered as
sufficiently qualified to certify a
patient. Secondly there are not many
persons in Government who are hold-
ing gazetted posts and who are psy-
chiatrists.

MR, CHATIRMAN: Do you want us
to put this in the Act? Normally
speaking, people would naturally try
to see that a person possesses the ex-
perience and knowledge required,
before putting him as in ciarge of a
psychiatric hospital. But there are
only about 700 of you who are quali-
fied psychiatrists in the country. There
are areas in the country where there
may be no psychiatrists at all, If
you have to tave soma facilities for
the patients there, what do you do?

Normally, if a qualified man is
available, nobody wants a less quali-
fleq person to be in charge. Instead
of 5 years a person might have 4 or
3-1/2 years; and if you put the condi=-
tion in the law, we will be debarring
such a person from holding that post.
The Bill has given the definition of a
psychiatrist as anybody who, you
think, has knowledge, experience and
training in that fleld, Similarly, the
medical oficer may he a psychiatrist:
or may not be one. He may have §
vears or more of experience, or a
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little less of it. But it is obvious thgt
somebbdy who does not know any-.
thing about mental sickness would not
be put in charge,

DR. PARIKH: Under the circumst.
arces  anyone who is having some
knowledge of psychiatry would be
adequate.

MR, CHAIRMAN: You would like
it to be put in the Act.

DR. PARIKH: For one reason,
that certifying an insane patient is not
like issuing an ordinary medical cer-
tificate. It is ahnost a medico-legal
document. Unless a person has some
training in psychiatry, I don't think
he is justified in certifying a patient

MR. CHAIRMAN. What is your
view with regard to g clinical pey-
chiatrist, or a psychiatric social wor-
ker being in charge?

DR. PARIKH: If she holds medi-
cal qualifications, yes,

MR. CHAIRMAN: Medical quali-
fication is a must.

DR. PARIKH: Yes These are
medical conditions and they are so
intricate as far as tha brain is concer-
ned, that unless he has undergone
training in that fleld he would not
be suitable to hold that post. The
next point is this: under Section 13,
sub-gection (1) at page 6, I would
suggest that there should be a definite
proforma, because the records of dif-
ferent institutions will be kept in a
different manner, Some records may
not meet with the legal requirements,
We have a proformg for injury re-
port, as we have for cases brought
in by the Police in respect of indivi-
dual cases.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Or is it meant
for the institution? This sub-section
deals with the inspecting officer,

DR. PARIKH: There should be a
general proforma which should have
an indication as to how a particalar
patient was brought in, and is being



treated, so that if at any stage some
problem arises, the responsibility can
be pinpointed.

SHRI KRISHNA NANp JOSHI: It
is not the responsibility of the inspect-
ing officer. All the formalities are
tulfilled when the patient is brought,

DR. PARIKH: The inspecting
officer may see whether the proformae
are kept or not.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You gay that
the proforma should be kept accord-
ing to a standard method so thet the
inspecting officer can check it

SHRI MALLIKARJUN. Once a
patient is admitted, a case sheet can
be there.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The witness
says it should be kept in a prescribed
manner.

SHRI MALLIKARJUN: The ques-
tion of an additional proforma does
not arise, because there is already a
prescribed proforma for case-sheets,

MR. CHAIRMAN: There should
be some uniform proforma.

SHRI MALLIKARJUN:
going, to help?

How is it

MR, CHAIRMAN: This can be
done under the rules. You may please
see clause 10 on page 5, We shall
certainly bear in mind what you have
said with regard to prescribing a pro-
forma with regard to an individual
patient.

DR. PARIKH: You see page 15,
section 28 and sub-section 2. I think
in an emergency even any registered
medical practitioner should be entit-
led to get a patient admitted even in
a non-registered nursing home or any
nursing home where a patient can be
treated op an emergency basis. It
should not necessarily be a registered
psychiatrist nursing home only for
emergency purposes,

SHRI HARAKRUSHNA MALLICK:
It canrot be for an indefinite period.
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Soon after tht emergency, the case

ul;mldhemt«udhthomxbyhu-
pital.

SHRI KRISHNA NAND JOSHI:
The doctor who is not a psychiatrist
may show ignorance and he may be
in collusion with other persons.

) SHRI RUDOLPH RODRIGUES: It
is covered by the wording itself.

MR. CHAIRMAN: It has been sug-
gested to us that there should be only
three types of admissions: voluntsry
admisgion, admission under extraordi-
nary circumstances, where the rela-
tives or friends or anybody else can
bring the patient and admission
through the Magisterial order. Emer-
gency admission and other admissions
can be covered under those three
types of admissions. Thep this chap-
ter can be deleted. You have also
said in your memorandum that the
process should be simpiified. Then
you have mentioned four categories
for admission n your memorandum
and the admission should be made ax
easy poesible. So far s8s number
fourth is concerned, it is primarily of
a voluntary nature. But with regard
to others, the Magisterial order can
come in Will you agree that there
should be some provision
under this? The emergency admis-
sion can be covered under extraordi-
nary circumstances. The relatives
can bring the patient to a hospital.

DR. PARIKH: That ig my impres-
sion. One can resort to any of these
nursing homes.

MR. CHAIRMAN: So far as the
Magisterial order is concerned, |t
should be for the mental hospital or
the nursing home, etc, as the case may
be. But so far as the emergency
admission {8 concerned, i+ should be
covered under extraordinary circum-
stances. Some relative should bring
the patient. It should not be neces-
sary to go through all the complicated
magisterial procedure, They should
be able to bring the patients to &ll
these places.
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. DR. PARIKH: That is most desir-
able. 1 would like the procedure to
be simpliied. In society, there is a
certain amount of stigma attached to
mental diseese and all people would
not like to go to general hospitals,
if this is not simplified or if permis-
sion is not granted for treatment. Some
of the persons would not like to get
treatment even in some of the regis-
tered private nursing homes in such
manner ag would be dangerous to the
society. There are several institutions
which are existing. There is u certain
amount of gtigma attached to this with
the result that people still resort to
some vague places. I think ths admis-
sien must be made too casy; and if a
person wants to take his patient to
a private nursing home for treatment,
he should be allowed to do sv.

MR, CHAIRMAN: Thig is not being
denied. But all these places, nursing
homes, hospitals, etc., which claim to
treat these mentally sick people
should have adequate facilitiex: and
they should be liable to inspection.

DR. PARIKH: This is perfectly
sound proposal, Then page 20, gection
42 and sub-section 2. Normally, when
& person is going to visit, I think
everything is kept upto date. As soon
as the visit is over, then again the
things are ap were before. So, if this
period is made more frequent, then the
people can follow up. It should be
made at least three and preferably
four once in every three months and
once in every four months.

\

SHRI KRISHNA NAND JOSHI: In
the last para of your note you have
mentioned four categories. Keeping
in view all this, don’t you think that
the definition should be so changed
so that all cases may not go to the
magistrate and only hostile caseg will
go to him? Otherwise, it will be
difficuit for the magistrate. Ultimately,
the magistrate has to send him to
some general hospital if the mental
hospital is not there, or he will be
sent to the jail. Don’'t you think that
some such provision should be made?

What is the idea behind this categori-
sation?

DR. PARIKH: Recently 1 had an
occagion to. go to Hyderabag in con-
nection with the post-graduate exa-
mination. I found there was a medi-
cal student who was admitted in the
mental hospital. He has been therc
for almost 13 years now and he has
been suffering from schizophrenia, of
which he should have been cured long
back. Since proper facilities are not
available, he is mixing with all other
type of people with the result that his
disease is aggravated. Separate faci-
lities ghould be available for separate
requirements. Again, take a person
who makes an attempt to commit
suicide by taking poision. He should
be sent to a psychiatrist, because it
shows there is some mental conflict.
1t is not good treating him for poison-
ing and then allowing him to go
home without seeing a psychiatrist. At
the same time, he should not be al.
lowed to mix with schizophrenics,
because this requires a different type
of environment and treatment.

SHRI KRISHNA NAND JOSHI: Do
you suggest a simpler definition of
“mental illness” so that you may not
involve him in legal complications?

MR. CHAIRMAN: If you look st
sub-clause (m), the definition. of
“mental illness” on page 3, is very .{
complicated. Should there be a
simpler definition? Yesterday some-
body was saying that schizophrenia
was being abused in divorce cases.

‘So, something should be done here

also go that it is not abused. Would
you advise a simpler definition?

DR. PARIKH: In such cases where
admission is a problem on account of
classification, it must be seen by quali-
fied psychiatrists.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Should we
change the definition in the Act?

DR. PARIKH: The definition is, 1
think, broad-bagsed. Probably, it
need not be changed. \
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_SHRI MALLIKARJUN: Just now
you have expressed your apprehen-
sion abgut the admission of patients
and a peychosis patient going to a
peychiatrist. The momeat he lmows
that he is going to a psychiatrist, thare
will be further degeneration. In such
cases, what is the alternative?

DR. PARIKH: If he is sufliciently
dangerous his relatives can apply to
the court for having a court-appointed
psychiatrist certify him so thut he
may be placed in charge ¢f a parti-
cular psychiatrist or institution.

MR. CHAIRMAN: But, under -ex-
mord;mry circumskances, the reia-
tives can go straightway to the ins-
titution for admission. Would you
object to that?

DR, PARIKH:
{o that.

I would not object

MR, CHAIRMAN: In order to get
cemtrol over the property of a person,
somebody may do it.

DR. PARIKH: This will be only of
a temporary nature.

MR. CHAIRMAN: What is
definition of “temporary’’?

your

DR. PARIKH: From thre> days 1o
fourteen duys.

DR. SAROJINI MAHISHI: Besides

"being a medico legal consultant are

you attached to any hospital?

DR. PARIKH: | am attachad to
G. S. Medjcal College and K. M.
Hospital, I teach forensic medicine
in an honorary capacity. I am an
examiner for both MBBS and MD.
Being honorary, T am allowed pri-
vate practice.

SHRI HAREKRUSHNA MALLICK:
What is your opinion about obligatory
sterilisation of those patients whose
llness can be genetically transmitted?

DR. PARIKH: I think the sugges-
tion is quite sound, ang this ia being
practised in some countries.

MR. CHAIRMAN:
sick people?

All  mentally

DR. PARIKH: Those who are suffer-
ing from serious genetically trans-
mittable diseases, like degeneration of
the retina,

MR. CHAIRMAN: I know of a case
of degeneration of retina, which was
cured later on.

SHRI HARBKRUSHNA MALLICK:
In India, therg are people who go in
for consanguine magrisges by tradi-
tion. It has been known that con-
sanguine marriage leads to dropping
of genes and loss of mﬁc proper-
tries. That is why we find mental
deficiency. colour blindness ang so
many other diseas»s. 1In order to
reduce mental iliness, should we
not give advice to the society, to the
people. that consanguine marrisges
may be avoided? It should be both
legal as wel]l as medical advice, What
is your view about it?

DR. PARIKH: There are age-old
traditions in certain communities and
consanguine marringes will remain
prevalent among them because they
do not want property fo go to any
other community or family.

SHRI HAREKRUSHNA MALLICK:
Science cannot be compromised on
any ground. The people are doing
that without knowing it. How to
stop it?

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr, Mallick, you
ask questiong relating 1o the Bill
before the Committee. If you want
to discuss thegse matters with him,
you can do it privately,

I think, there are no more questions
to ask. I thank you very murh for
giving evidence before the Com-
mittee. T would like you to have tea
with us.

We now adjourn for tea break.
(The titnesy then withdrew).



II-DR. K. C. Dube

(The witness was called in, m&i he
took his seat)

MR. CHAIRMAN: I wouid like to
welcome you on behalf of the Com-
mittee and also on my own behalf
and I would like to inform you that
'the evidence to be given ty you shall
be treated as public and is liable to
be published unless you specifically
desire that all or any part of it should
be treated as confidential.

I may further explain that even
though you may desire that your
evidence partly or fully be kept con-
fidential, it is liable to be made avail-
able to the Members of Parliament.
It cannot be kept confldential from
them.

With this I would now reguest you
to please make any preliminary re-
marks that you might like to make
at this stage.

We have received your statement—
which is No. 15 among the papers
circulated to hon. Members—and 1
would request you to highlight any
points of your statement to refresh
the Members' mind about them or
added anything done to it, and then
the hon, Membersg would like to ask
you a few questions.

DR. DUBE: I thank you very much.
I would like to apologise for being
late because the train was late.

1 would like to make a few prelimi-
nary commentg in the first place.

When 1 wrote the previous com-
ment sometime ago, 1 was in a hurry
and T could not go into great detail
about the same because T was leaving
in a couple of days for Geneva. I
want to apologise for making a state-
ment in the first paragraph there
because I thought that in the Objecls
of the Bill, that thing is very obno-
xious and I would like that that
objective should be dJeleted bhecause
when we trace the history of psychia-
try, it was not that the society has to
be protected from mental patients but

it is the mental petients who have
to be protected from the society. In
fact, mental patients are no more
dangerous than anybody else in the
society, rather the people in the sc-
ciety are more dangerous than the
mental patients, Therefore, with all
apologies and with humility, I would
like to say that that portion should
be deleted in the Objectives. Before
coming to the other parts of the Bill
that is my suggestion.

I would like to add in the State-
ment two points:—(1) a clause
which would introduce messures to
protect the mentally ill from being
neglected and harmed by others and
to prevent him from harming him-
self and others, and (2) wunother
clause to provide care and treatment
to the mentally {ll in the best possible
manner,

In fact in this country although we
have various mental hospitals and
various places of treatment, I think
there is much left to be desired to be
done for the care of the mentally ill.
I think these are the most neglected
in the fields of medicine. In fact that
requires a great deal.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mentally sick
patients who are violent or who have
a mania to kill—there are such cases.
Does not the society neei to be
protected from them?

DR, DUBE: But they can be handled
in other ways. They can be given
injections. They can be treated in
other ways. They can, of course, be
kept with the Mental Hospital for
whom it is meant but to say that ‘to
protect the society from them . . .'—
that portion is not correct.

MR. CHATIRMAN: Wowd you say
‘to protect the society from such
people’?

DR. DUBE: ‘To protect the mental-
ly ill from being neglected and pre-
vent him from harming himself and
others.'



MR. CHAIRMAN; This is not going
to appear in the Act when it is pub-
lished.

DR. DUBE: If it is going to be
circulated to Members, 1 thought...

MR. CHAIRMAN: It has already
been circulated.

DR. DUBE: 1 have gone through
the clauses, | have made comments
about the Bill

My first reaction to the Bill is thut
it is most complicated and very diffi-
cult to implement In fact it has
placed a lot of responsibility on
various people, especially, the person
in charge of psychistric hospitals and
Superintendents. He has just to keep
on moving, going to the Magistrate,
getting a certificate ete. to certify that
it is a fit case for admission, etc.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Pleasze see page
3. What have you to say about de-
finition (m)?

DR. DUBE: If you permit me, may
1 hand over a copy to you from which
1 shall read?

MR. CHAIRMAN:
randum,

DR. DUBE: This is a fresh one
which I have prepared.

MR CHAIRMAN: Now, [ would
like you to enlighten us whether you
think that the definition (m) ‘men-
tally ill person’ is satisfactory.

DR. DUBE: I think in genersl it
covers all.

MR, CHAIRMAN: It has been told
to us that this is liable to result in
great mischief when you include
psychoneuroses, psychosomatic dis-
order or mental sub-normality etc, etc.
ete,

The memo-

It was explained to us that in the
Divorce Act the use of the term ‘psy-
choses' has been greatly abused. Simi-
larly anybody with a peptic ulser or
high blood pressure which has psy-
chosomatic element Mmay land in &
mental hospital because of the mis-

chief of certain people who may
be imterested in getting the patient
out of the way. Similarly psychoneu-
roses, paychosomatic disorder ete, it
is extremely difficult to find out. We
are simplifying this definition. Perhaps
it was not scientific but iy was used
earlier namely ‘a person of unsound
mind’ which, at any rate, includes
peychoses and leave all the rest your
mental subnormalities, it is suggested
that there should be a separate Act al-
together. They are not treatable
and they cannot be improved by
pulting them in an institution for the
mentally sick unless they have some
super-imposed behaviourial problems
or pesychopathic condition. Would wou
like to comment on the ideas {(hat
have been given to us?

DR. DUBE: The definition here is
alright. But the application in the
subsequent act has to be specific. In
fact, I have mentioned somewhere in
thiz that you have to define in what
conditions they should be admitted.

MR, CHAIRMAN: How will you
do that? Is it poesible to do that mt
every stage to define the psychoso-
matic disorder? There is an element
of psychosomatic or peychoneuroses
in all of us at some time or other in
our life to a greater or smaller extent,

DR. DUBE: Well certainly, it can
be misused.

MR. CHAIRMAN: It should be
corrected
DR. DUBE: It should be corrected

in the light of the subsequent clause
of the Act.

MR. CHATRMAN: Okay. Now you
proceed.

DR. DUBE: Take Chapter I Sec-
tion 2(a) (1).

MR, CHAIRMAN: That is regard-
ing the cost of lodging, boarding,
clothing, medicine or any other am-
enity provided to such person in any
psychiatric hospital or psychiatric
nursing home and the expenditure for
his treatment and care therein.



DB. DﬁBE: ‘Service’ should be
added after the word ‘amenity’.

MR. CHAIRMAN: There is some-
where something mentioned--I forget
that where it is, you may tell me
later—where they have said that what-
ever be the cost of patient mainten-
ance of record etc, should be taken
from him. A lot of objections were
raised to this. We are now looking
into it.

DR. DUBE: 1 think the ‘amemty
should be the physical comforts and
other facilities but it may not mclude
‘service’ as such,

MR CHAIRMAN: Okay.

DR. DUBE: 1 think ‘service’ should
be included. Coming to clause 2(f),
I want the following to be added:

‘psychoneuroses of a general
hospital or other hospital where
psychiatric patients are liable to be
kept’ should be added,

MR. CHAIRMAN: You want to
license even the psychiatric ward of
a General Hospital.

DR. DUBE: They will of course
admit psychiatric patients.

MR, CHAIRMAN: But the general
feeling that was expressed before us
was there is a stigma for those going
to mental hospitals, If you make the
general psychiatric ward of the Gen-
eral Hospital to come under licensing
then the problem will increase. It
should be left where there is absolu-
tely no problem of application of this
law, Anyway, the patients go mostly
as voluntary cases: they go and can
come back. They get such treatment
as may be necessary. Today no law
applies to the psychiatric ward of a
General Hospital, So, we were strong-
ly advised to please keep the psy-
chiatric ward of the General Hospital
out of the mischief of this Act by
very eminent psychiatrists.

DR. DUBE: Suppose in a district
place there is a General Hospital
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where would the Magistrates Xeep
the patients? Would he keep them
in jail to which I would strongly
object?

MR. CHAIRMAN: This thing came
up very prominently and some of the
specialists objected to the magisteria:
order caseg being kebt in psychisdtric
ward of General Hospitals at all. We
explained that there would be a great
problem if they are kept in jail also.
It was agreed that they should be pro-
vided with treatment and some rooms
should be provided for the temporary
detention of such cases till they can
be removed to the proper phycmatn(
hospita),

DR. DUBE: May I atk you g Gues-
tion with your permission? You think
that these general hospitals where
neurotic wings are there they are free
or they are not locked or restricticns
are not placed on the patients,

MR. CHAIRMAN. In many of these
wings, no restrictions are placed ex-
cept in the case of occasionally dis-
turbed patients who might have to be
put under sedation or something like
that. Take for instance, the All-India
Institute of Medica] Sciences. You go
and see the psychiatric ward there or
even in the Satdarjung or Willingdon
Hospitals, They are mainly out-docr
patients. . Sometimes they can run
away. They are voluntary cases and
they are of a particular type. They
are not kept under lock and key.
Therefore, let us not make the Gene-
ral Hospitals into the certified or
certifying institutions. The treatment
of Mentally sick patients has been
revolutionised, A major part of the
burden is on the out-patient services.
A few patients may have to be kept
temporarily for five days, three days
or seven days in the hospital in a
crisis. Most of the treatment should
be at the OP.D. And if you bring
them under this Act, we are advised,
that it is likely to do more harm than
good.



DR, HAREKRUSHNA MALLICK!:
How will the licensing help?

MR. CHAIRMAN: Let him answer.

DR. DUBE; It means only the ins-
pection of the facilities. B does not
mean any restriction or anything If
there is licensing, people may go and
inspect how the patients are treated.

DR, HAREKRUSHNA MALLICK:
Whom do you recommend to imspect
these wards?-

MR. CHAIRMAN: Let him proceed
in his own way, Dr. Malllck. He is
answering one after another. We are
coming to inspection, That is coming
later.

DR, HAREKRUSHNA .- MALLICK:
The point Was glready raised.

DR. DUBE: There is a point in that.
Whepn you are bringing the. general
hospftals into the aMmbit, it doe® not
mean that it has any restriction; they
can admit the patients under the
voluntary admission clause, The only
thing is that these hospitals will be
liable for inspection. That is all. They
may admit only ordinary cases or
voluntary cases, but still they may
need inspection 80 that ordinary and
voluntary cases are dealf with in a
humane manner.

DR, HAREKRUSHNA MALLICK:
1 think every Member has been feel-
ing that the legacy of British era
should be over after the Bill is passed.
All of us feel that the word ‘lunacy’
or ‘lunatic’ should be changed. In
view of this may I know whether
while considering al] other aspects, we
¢tan do away with the use of these
words?

DR. DUBE: The word ‘lunacy’ has
not been used since long. We are
not using this word from 1923, that is
the time when lunatic asylum was
changed for all time. Then ooming
to Section 2(k), I would say that it
is a very sensitive point but 1 would
like only the practitioners registered
in a State Medical Register should be
allowed to practice. ‘The portioa “or
a perfon Whose name has been entevred

in a State Medcial Register in accor-
dance with the provisions of that Act
or a person whose name has been
registered in a State Medical Register
in sccordance with the ’provistons
of any other law relating to'the regis-
tration of medical practitioners for the
time being in force” should be deleted.

SHRI  JAGDAMB] PRASAD
YADAV; What is your objection to
this?

DR. DUBBE: Because they have not
received allequate training Many of
them are untrained and they have
registered their names.

MR. CHAIRMAN: There are people
who were practising as compounders
for the last 10 years who have been
registered, in U.P. this is the asitua-
tion, Therefore Dr. Dubey feeir it is
necessary to delete this lagt portion.

DR. DUBE; Then in Section 2(m),
the word ‘addition’ is mis-spelt and it
should be ‘addition’. There in section
2(g). it may read as peychiatric hospi-
tal or phychiatric nursing home or a
peychiatric wing of the general hos-
pital, etc. as the case may be. Then
Chapter-I] Sectoin 4(1). The word
‘asylum’ in this sectjon in para 2
deems out of place as the word has
been given up long ago and carries
severe stigma. No asylums exist in
India now.

MR, CHAIRMAN: We agree with
you. We will call it an ‘institution’.
But at present our institutions sre cal-
led as asylums and they are lcenced.
In future these may not be calted
asylum. We have to take cognisance
of what exists today. '

-DR. DUBE: Then, Section 3.] may
be established or maintained for:

1. acute ill psychistric cases

. 2 chronic cases needing custodial
dare :
3. those who have been convicted
for any offence

4. paychiatric hospitale for child-
ren under the age of 18,



5. those belonging to other class
categories such as alcoholics, drug
addicts, epileptics, psychopath, etc.

I have mentioned that the age of 18
years as provided for at present in the
Bill, should be reduced to 15 years.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Why?

DR. DUBE: Because mixing of peo-
ple over the age of 15 years iz not
good. There should be separate insti-
tutions, because mixing up acute with
chronic patients or other kinds of
patient is not good.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Instead of these
two categories, you have. suggested 5
categories.

DR. DUBE: Now Section 6(a). How
can the licensing authofity spell out
the needs of the area? There are
different categories of mental patients.
They might reject an application just
for trivia) reasons, One mental insti-
tution might exist there. It will not
be proper to give this power to the
licensing authority.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You say that the
phrase “having regard to the needs of
the area” should be removed.

DR. DUBE: Yes, Moreover, 1 have
done the 1largest investigations of
mental morbidity in this country. The
active rate prevalent is 18 per thou-
sand. It was 13 million to 1§
million people. In the present popu-
lation of India, it should be much
more. The licensing authority will
not be in g position to decide how
many mental patients there are, . In
fact, in Western countries more than
80 per cent of the beds are occupled
by mental patients.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Please go through
Section 6 in full. There are people
who are in a position to start such
institutions, and they say that they
should be given licences.

SHRI MALLIKARJUN. We are all
aware of the fact that the areas axe
identified. There may be innumerable

types of mental ilinesses So, there
ghould not be any objection to this

DR. DUBE: The function of the
licensing authority, to my mind, .
would be to see that at the establisheq
institutions, proper facilities for the
treatiment and care of the sick are pro.
vided.

SHR] MALLIKARJUN: Unless the
minimum requirements are fulfilled,
no licensing authority is going to grant
the licence.

DR. DUBE: The licensing authority
may say: “Here is a mental institu.
tion. You cannot build another insti-
tution next door.”

MR. CHAIRMAN: The witness says

that it i» dangerous to give this power
to the licensing authority. 1

DR. DUBE: To my mind, section
13(1) is a very objectionable one. The
inspecting officer should have no access
to any confidential record, unless the
inspection is done by a team of psy-
chiatrists who wil] maintain strict
confidentiality, The inspecting officer
will only report on the general treat-
ment; but he wil) make no comment
on the type of therapy, as it may vary
secording to different schools of
thought. -

Again, under Section
said:

“(2) The Inspecting Officer may
interview in private any patient
receiving treatment and care there-
in—

(a) for the purpose of inquiring
into any complaint...” ie. to see
how far that complaint is true.

MR. CHAIRMAN: There are comp-
laints that there is bad treatment and
maltreatment, Should he not see the
records? The patient or his relative
may make a complaint. Without see-
ing the records, how can you dea!
with the complaint?

DR. DUBE; My suggestion was that
it should be seen by a psychiatrist. 4

13(2) it is



MR. CHAIRMAN: Peychiatrists can
differ from one another.

DR, DUBE: But that is the best
thing which you can do. Many times.
Helusional complaing is not sften reali-
zed by a lay man. I say: this because
I have a lot of experience in this field.
People have made delusional comp-
lainta.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You say that
other general complaints can be look-
ed intp by the licensing officer. But
so far a8 examining the records is
concerned, it should be done only by
a prychiatrist.

DR. DUBE; Yes. ] alsg object to
section 13(2)(b).

SHRI KRISHNANAND JOSHI:
What is the total number of psychia-
trists in the country?

DR. DUBE; We are about 800 mem-
bers of the Indian Psychiatric Society;
and there are many other psychia-
trists who are not its members,

SHRI KRISHNA NAND JOSHI:
Other experts have said that there are
600 or 700 peychiatrists in the country.
They are now needed in every hospi-
tal. Possibly, in district hospitals
also. If we impose the restriction that
only psychiatrists should do the ins-
pection of the records, where will we
get the people from? This will create
a lot of difficulty.

DR. DUBE: I think it will not be
difficult to get one inspecting psychia-
trist team, in every State,

MR. CHAIRMAN: Yoy say that for
specific complaints, it may be done by
a fpecialised psychistrist, and not by
a general practitioner—who will be a
genera]l medica) man,

DR DUBE: In fact, this point is
made more clear in section 13.2(b).
This clause is also objected to because
this inspecting officer may be incom-
petent to pass an opinion on therapy
while therapist may think in terms of

psychotherapy treatment alone while
the inspecting officer may have other
views like organic and physicul the-
rapy. In my view the inspection
should only be limited to maltreat-
ment, neglect and corruption, Trere
are people with different achools of
thoughts giving different therspy. It
is not necessary that you must fol-
low a particular kind of therapy. The
inspecting officey may have one view
about therapy while the incharge of
the patient may have a different view
onl the therapy.

MR. CHAIRMAN: How would you
judge a patient without seeing the

record?

DR. DUBE: There is no treatment
at all for a chronic patient.

MR, CHAIRMAN: So many things
are being done in thé mental hospitals.
Patients are being ilitreated, exploited
and . How do we guard
against this type of thing? If the Ooff-
cer In-charge says: “This patient need
no treatment.” We accept it.

DR. DUBE: The inspection should
be very very strict. Unless the inépec-
tion is strict, these patients are KoinK
to be maitreated.

Section 1338: Where the inspecting
officer is satisfied that the patient in
a hospital or the nursing home is not
receiving proper treatment and yet he
has to report the matter to the licens-
ing authority, the licensing uuthority
may not merely issue instructions on
the opinion of the inspecting cfficers
alone but should invite the person
incharge of the institution to 1eply or
to give somethnig in his defence, to
explain his conduct.

MR CHAIRMAN: This cannot be
done without giving him a chance to
reply. The licensing authority wiu
not jssue instructions on the opinion

inspecting officers alone bug
of the incharge of
the institution to reply in his defence.

This is your suggestion 1 tbink this i
all right. 1t should be included,



DR. DUBE: Chapter III: Part I
Section 15—2 and 3: This ig very im-
portant. I am quoting from the World
Health Bulletin. Prior to recommend-
ing this section, I"would Tike to quote
the rights of the mentally retarded
“The declaration on the Rights of
Mentally retarded persons was adopt-
ed (by the General Assembly of the
United Nations) in 1971. It reaffirms,
as a just principle, that “The mental-
ly retarded person has, to the maxi-
mum degree of feasibility the same
rights as other human beings.” It
enumerates aspects of care, security,
and protection to which the mentslly
retarded person is entitled and pro-
vides for very strong legal safeguards
whenever any restriction or denial of
these rights is found to be necessary.
Whenever mentally retarded persons
are unable, because of the severity of
their handicap, to éxercise al} their
rightd in a meaningful way or it
should become necessary to restrict or
deny some or all of these rights, the
procedure used for that restriction or
denial of rights must contain proper
legal safeguards against cvery form
of abuse. This Procedure must be
based on an evaluation of the social
capacity of the mentally retarded per-
son by qualified experts and must be
subject to periodic review and to the
right of appeal to higher authorities.”
‘When an adult is admitted as a volun-
tary patient he is supposed to have
an insight into his condition and te
decide on his own the need of the
treatment to qualify himself for volun.
tary treatment under section 15.1. In
the case of a minor when the guardian
decides so it may be at times for other
intentions than good and many times
the mentally retarded could be admit-
ted with impunity as a voluntary
patient under this c¢lause, Since a
voluntary patient exercises his free
wil] he will have to get admitted
under other provisions of the Mental
Health Act or else the miner's interest
will be misused. Therefore, it would
be very essential that no mentally
retarded or chronically i1l person is
admitted as a voluntary patient under
section 18.1.

%

MR. CHAIRMAN: It has been sug-
gested to us that if we are seriously
considering to take out the mentally
retarded person from the purview of
this ‘Act, then this objection will be
removed. The parents will have to
bring the patients to the hospital

DR. DUBE: There are other met.
hods that can be used.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We went to Sri-
nagar. We saw some ten persons
bringing & patient from 50 miles away
with great difficulty. Now in order to
get the patient admitted into the
hospital, if they were asked to get
the medical certificate and go through
al] the formalities, then it will be im-
possible for them to do go, ‘as things
stand today in respect of the Act
Your ‘'must understand the problems
keeping in mind the conditions of our
country and what ig available to the
people. You must understand how
they bring the case to the hospital.

DR, DUBE. 1 entirely agree with
you; but there are provisions of the
Act—Emergency Treatment Act.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We want to do
away with too many types of admis-
gions. We want to keep only three
{orms of admissions. :

MR. CHAIRMAN: Let us simplify
the Act as much az possible.

DR. DUBE: Section 15(2)—Under
this clause, admission should be limit-
ed to a period of not exceeding three
months and under no case ghould it
be extended or as an easy way out
his admission made permanent under
any other clause.

Section 18(1)—The procedure des-
cribed under sub-section $ of section
20 is an easy way to first admit 2
patient as a voluntary boarder and
then admit him under temporary
treatment order and then ultimately
permanently 'admitted under different
sections. My suggestion to voluntary
admission ix thit a person must



, powers and thén a relutive o fried
 should be informed to take actioh
under temporary treatment clause,
Only neurotics, incippient psychotics,
alcoholics and deviantg should be ad-
mitted under voluntary admissions.

MR. CHAIRMAN: I would like that
90 per cent 5r more should be volun-
tary admissions. You are béing very
reactionary when you say that eonly
alcoholics etc. should come ag volun-
tary ceses and not others. We want to
do away with all other formis of ad-
misaion except the three I mentioned.

DR. DUBE: ] have included psy-
chotics also. But they must be able
» decide whaether they want treat-

-

1: MR CHAIRMAN: They will come
as voluntary cases or they wil] be
brought by ¢riends and. relatives
under extraordinary circumstances,
which is an extension of the voluntary
clause. Only ir exceptional cases
magisteria] order will be necessary.
You may provide the safeguard that
it some other friend or relative com-
plain; to the magistrate that the
patient has been wrongfully brought
by that frined or relative, then a
magisterial order may be necessary.
Let them come voluntarily or with
the help of some friend or relative.
Only in cases where there is nobody
or a policeman picks up somebody or
somebody iz violent or is a cr
—only in such cases they may bring
him 10 a magistrate and a magisterial
order wil] be necessary.

DR, DUBE: My submission is,
once voluntary patients are brought,
they can be easily admitted under
some other rlause,

MR. CHAIRMAN: We are doing
away with some of the other clauses.

DR. DUBE: Section 18(1)—In no
age gchould voluntary admission cases
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be given period of leavé of ibsence
bayond 38 hours,

MR, CHAIRMAN: Why? A volun-
tary patient hag come. His mother is
sick and he wants to be by her side.
He can go for a week and come back.

DR DUBE: It is said here that
leave of absence up to 180 days may
be given. It will Jock up a bed in thie
hospital. Secondly, it will show that
3‘ did not really need hospitalisa-
on.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We have said, it
should not be niore than 30 days. We
want to remove the words “not ex-
ceeding 180 days in the aggregate”.
I he wants to be absent for more
than a month, let him be diacharged
and re-admitted if necessary, Do
you agree with this?

DR. DUBE: Yes. Then, Part I1—
Admission under special circumstan-
ces—This seems to me to be flawful
and unnecessary.

MR. CHAIRMAN: What has been
suggested to us is that 90 days s
perhaps too long and this should also
be reduced. The majority of the ad-
missiong today are under thig provi-
sion. Relatives and friends bring the
patients. We want to do away with
subsequent ihings like temporary
treatmant order, emergency, etc. We
want to bring them a]l within the
purview of admission under special
circumstances.

DR. DUB®: When a person is ad-
mitted on the strength of two medical
certificates, why should he be dis-
charged by the Magistrate? He can
be discharged by the Medical Officer
within a specified period of three
months,

MR. CHAIRMAN: Further, it has
been suggestcd to us that these two
certificates may be provided by the
officers of the institution itself because
those people who come from oulside,
wili find it extremely difficult to run
round and get two certificates. These



[Mr. Chairman]

doctors will fleece them. Therefore,
what is necessary in voluntary cases
ig, that they should be discharged by
the Medical Officerg whenever neces-
sary.

DR. DUBE: The idea behind this to
is to make the treatment simple.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We want the
whole thing to be made very simple.
In extraordinary cases may be in-
cluded all other we want to do away
with the emergency and temporary
treatment orders,

DR. DUBE: The Magistrate in the
temporary treatment orders should
visit the hospital within 86 hours. If
the patient is paraded before the
Magistrate by the Medical Officer, it
wil] be a difficult business and it will
create stigma, .

MR. CHAIRMAN: When we have
simplified it, there is no question of
the Magistrate coming into most cases.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Will you have
any objection to simplyfying the pro-
cedure if cases are brought by friends
and relatives, there is no need to
refer to the Magistrate and they are
treated as voluntary cases unless and
until somebody complains that there
is some mala fide intention.

DR. DUBE: It would be a welcome
step if he is kept without the Magis-
trate’'s orders up to 3 months as a
temporary treatment case. It will
remove all stigma.

About the Magistrate's visit, 1 think
it ig the duty of the Magistrate to visit
the hospital at least once in a week.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You have got
Inspectors and those Inspectors are
the hospital visitors. You may ask the
Visitonzs to go and wvisit more fre-
quently than is provided here. To
ask the Magistrate to visit the Mental
Hospital every week is something
which we cannot really appreciate.

iy
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-DR. DUBE; In places where pay-
chiatric hospitals or psychiatric myr.
sing homes do not exist, the patient ig
usually detained in a jail. I think
thig is most humiliating and most in-
human aspect of the whole thing Gpe-
cially. when women are concerned, |
think the patients should be admitted
or detained in a genera] hospital.

SHRI KRISHNA NAND JOSHI:
Dr. Jain made a study and according
to his study, 18.31 per thousand popu-
lation guffer from menta] diseases.
Here in thig case, they have suggest-
ed that every district hospita]l should
have a psychiatric clinic with a mini-
mum of five beds. If such a provision
is made, will it not solve your pro-
blem?

DR. DUBE: For the last two or
three plans, they were planning to
have 800 psychiatric clinic and hos-
pitalg but not a single came into exis-
tence.

SHRI KRISHNA NAND JOSHI: It
such a provision is to be made without
any facility, how will they treat them?

DR. DUBE: Facilities do exigt in
general hospitals. To keep g mental
patient there for ten days is very
easy.

Coming to part IV(C) Section 28,
sub-sections 3 and 4, I consider that
to saddle the meodical office; with the
charge of producing a patient before
the magistrate i a cumbersome and
an impractical steps. In the first place
ag little confrontation should be made
with the magistrate in the court for
the obvious reason that it gives an
impression as if a criminal is being
produced. In the second place it
would be very inconvenient ¢or the
medical officer to take the patient
back and forth from hospita] to court:
thirdly it is not conducive to enhance
gelf-esteem of the patient, thus parad-
ed with an escort in the public,
neither the confidentiality wil] be as-
sured. I suggest that magistrate
should visit the hospital in each case.



About Section 24(7), I wonder whe-
ther it would be practica] for the
magistrate to examine the patient in
camerg although this rule has always
existed. '

MR. CHAIRMAN: This rule is al-
ready there.

DR. DUBEY: But this is never done.
About 27(1). I would like to add
‘citizen’ along with the omcer of a
police station.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Section 28(C), we
are thinking of taking it out. Now
SBection 29. For instance, a person
having delusions when he comes be-
dore the Magistrate, he talks absolu-
tely normally. If he is kept under
observation for a day or two, then
he may display some of this and
other traits.

DR. DUBE: 1 do not think a good
Psychaitrist will be in a position not
to do it in a day.

MR. CHAIRMAN: 30 and 31 have
been dealt with. Now, 11(B) of
Indian Lunacy Act.

DR. DUBE: This needs to be incor-
porated somewhere in the new Act in
a modified form for foreign nationals
in which case the ambassador or one
o¢ his functionaries should be "deem-
ed to be the magistrate to order ad-
mission to such psychiatric hospitals
or nursing homes which the Govern-
ment wil] decide to receive the
patient.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We will look into

Chapter IV—Part 1I—Discharge,

DR. DUBE: In my long experience
1 have found that the visitors do not
often make a quorum of three with
the result that the patient who has
been waiting and hoping for dis-
charge for a long time is unnecessa-
rily kept back and gets frustrated.
1 would suggest that either this section
be done away with and all powers be
given to the incharge of the hospital
or there should be two visitors who
may approve discharge. The persons

incharge of the hospital should be
Quite competent.

MR. CHAIRMAN: I am inclined to
agree with you.

DR. DUBE; Section 48(3). The
leave of absence should not be more
than Odaysatatunetothomnxi’
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it this payment is not made and is
usually held responsible for non-re-

covery.

MR. CHAIRMAN: It has been aug-
gested that the recovery should be
made from the personal possessions
of the patient like ring cte. 1 think,
this iz very unfair, We went {o Sri-
nagar and saw there that a patient
wag keeping her silk clothes bundle
etc. under her arms. She wouid not
part with that. So, the recovery
should be midc cithey from the rela-
tiveg or the Statc should war the
expenses.

DR. DUBE: But the Grvernmen! iz
all the time preswrising the Superin-
tendent of the Hospital to recover the
amount. That is why, I say that re-
covery should be made by a summary
trial by the magistrate.



SHRI KRISHNA
From whom?

DR. DUBE: From the patient’s re-
latives who have filled up the agrees
ment form to pay the ques.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We wil] examine
this.

NAND JOBHI!

 SHRI HAREKRUSHNA MALLICK:
You have rightly said that this could
be completely done away with.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We will discuss
it afterwards.

DR. DUBE: My last point j5: No
penalty has been prescribed for a
wrong certification and np immunity
has been provided if act done in good
faith even though there may be an
eérror of judgment,

MR. CHAIRMAN: Dr. Dube, we are
coming to Agra on the 22nd and if
after sending your Memorandum
which we are circulating, any of our
hon. Memberg have .any further ques-
tions to ask you, I hope you will be
willing to answer them here and also
you will tell the authorities of your
institution to make the fiecessary
arrangements for our visit. Of course,
the Ministry will be informing them,
but we are aiso telling you,

(The Committee then adjourned)

III. Dr, S. S. Jayaram. B
(The witness was called in, and he
took his seat)

MR. CHAIRMAN: 1 would like to
welcome you to this sitting of the
Committee. It iz very kind of you to

have spared time to appear before
us.

(Direction 58 was read out)

Now you have sent your detailed
Memorandum, which has been circu-
lated to all the Members. Would you
like to make u preliminary statement,
you are welcome to do so. After that
our Members meay ask you some quee-
tions.

ﬁ?ﬁjﬂm= Thank you, Madam
or the permissioh 0 that I can give
you sottie introduction  about &a.
Thi; is a body from both the Houses
which has taken pains to visit the
patiants all over India many big and
small institutions and psychistric
departments and because of thiz ex-
tensive information arid data collection
that you have rmade, I think, you
should not stop simply with this
Bill, which has got an idéa about the
admiseion, stay and discharge, tbut
should be able to incorporate and re-
commend on all issues of law which
relate to Mental health, There are
many aspects which require the con-
sideration of an august body like this,
especially things like privileged com-
munication and confidentiality and
regarding the testifying capacity and
competency. 1 want you to give
dome more attention to the rights of
the patients inside as wel] as of the
Psychiatrists. T would like to use all the
knowledge that you have got on im-
proving the present mental health
facilitieg all over India and also to
¢ormulate jf possible a future mental
health plan for our country. Now I
would like to make g request on be-
half of the Indian Psychiatric Society.
We have been requesting you to get
thig Bill passed for the last 25 years.
I remember, Madam, when you came
over to Bangalore in 1864 you addres-
gsed our Indian Psychiatric Society
Conference and you promised to take
it up and see that it is done.

MR. CHAIRMAN: It was finalised,
the Bill was prepared, but they could
not zive timz to introduce it and to
pass it in the Lok Sabha. So, the
Act has not materialised. Now, I
hope that this time...

DR. JAYARAM: 1 want that this
time this Rill must be passed without
any postponement.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You have made
gome general observations in  vour
Memorandum. Would you like to gv
on to the suggestions for alterstions
which you have given in your Memo-
randum?



DR. JAYARAM: On Page 3 (m),
regarding the definition of ‘mentally
il person’, 1 would Hke to that
the definition is perfectly u%:_ But
mental deficiency is entirely differept
from mental disorder,

MR. CHAIRMAN: I may tell you, it
has been presented to us by several
people that we should delete mental
deficiency and' mental subnormality
from this Bill. It hag also been told
to ug that we should not keeps this
definition include Psychoneurosis and
Puycho-somatic disorders. We should
simplify this definition. Some people
suggested that the simplest form
would be what was used a long-time
ago viz, “persons of ynsound mind”.
1 do not know whether that is satis-
factory. BGt i¢ you have something
to give us now, you may do so, Other-
wise, you may go back and aend it to
us within the next three or four days,
not later than that.

DR. JAYARAM:
from Bangalore.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The next one is

I shall send it

|

DR. JAYARAM: The meaning of
‘convalescence’ is recovery and it is
only a recovered person who is a con-
valescent. For that the Mental Health
Act should not come in. For example,
in Bangalore, I have got half-way
Home, into which T have taken nine
men and nine women and these people
have been discharged from the Hos-
pital:

MR. CHAIRMAN: You would like
us to delete: '

“and includet a convalescent home
established or maintained by the
Government or any other person for
such mentally {ll percons;*

DR. JAYARAM: Yes.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You have also
stated somewhere else that Psychiat-
ric words of General Hospitals and
psychiatric clinias in Genera] Hospi-
tals should not come under the pur-

4 view of this Act.

DR. JAYARAM: This is a very im-

artant point sng th i
mom here are conflicting

MR. CHAIRMAN: I just wanted to
ask you one thing. The idea of licen-
sing is that there should be adequate
facilitiey and there ghould not be ex-
ploitation of the patient. Do you thipk
it is unreasonable to ask al]l these
Goverament people also to have ces-
tain minimum ¢acilities?

There is a clause which says, ttis
law will not apply to governmental
institutions. It has been told to us that
governmental institutiong must also be
Hcensed and must be subjected to
inspection po that the Government it-
selr does not neglect mental Hospitals
etc. and does what should be done.

DR. §. S. JAYARAM: It must
apply both to governmental and pri-
vate institutiong which are entirely
meant for the mentally sick patients,
At present, all over India, the psy-
chiatric units of general hospitals are
treating about a thousand patients
per day. If these units have to take
a licence, undergo inspections and
apply for licence one year before it
lapees, if these people have to under-
€0 all these troubles, I do not think
it is proper. There nre also genersl
nursing homeg where there is a psy-
chiatrist in attendance or a peychia-
trist comes from outside to treat the
patient. It is not necessary and pro-
per to bring them under licensing.
Thege people woyld have to send a
report to the court and to  various
other people regarding the mentally
ill persons,

MR. CHAIRMAN: If there is »
nursing home or a hogpital which is
entirely for the care of the men-
tally {1l persons, you would like that
to be licensed.

DR. 8. 5. JAYARAM: Yes; if it is
pupely meant for the mentally sick

patients, whether it i3 a nursing home



{Dr. 8. S. Jayaram]

ot a hospital But not for a general
nursing home or a general hospital

MR. CHAIRMAN: You have stated
that some psychiatrists are still non-
gazetted,

DR. S. S. JAYARAM: I made fur-
ther enquiries and found that most of
the psychiatrists are also gazetted.
Supposing there is a psychiatrist who
is not @ non-gazetted officer, he
shoulq be allowed to give a certifi-
cate.

SHRI S. K. SARKAR: As regards
the licensing authority, do you sug-
gest that it should be done from the
Centre or from the States, as the
case may be or do you suggest one
single licensing authority at the Cen-
tre

DR. 8. S. JAYARAM: For those
hospitals which come under the
Centre, the licenging authority could
be given to the Central Government
end for those hospitals which come
under the geographica] areg of the
States, it should be given to the
States. [

SHRI S. K. SARKAR: This is a
Central legislation. Don’t you think
that there should be one licensing au-
thority at the Centre?

DR, S. S. JAYARAM: 1 suppose
this will be gubsequently adopted by
the various State Governments with
certain - modifications.

‘MR. CHAIRMAN: In any case, by
a notification, they will apply it in
their territories,; The implementation
has to be done by the States, not by
the Central Government. In this
Bill, there is a provision that the
States can make the rules. It has
been suggested to us that the rules
should be uniform and that the rules
should be Centrally made. What is
your opinion?

DR. S, S. JAYARAM: The rules
should be uniform and they should be
Centrally made.

SHRI §. K. SARKAR: There are

‘also clinical psychologist who trest

patients. But they are not termeq ag
medical officers. Do you think that
they should be given a chance to
treat the patients

DR. S. S. JAYARAM: No, Sir.
The clinical psychologist carries out
only the tests and helps the . psy-
chiatrist. He ig a  para-psychiatrist
personnel. He has not got the medi-
cal qualifications. He cannot give
drugs and ECT. Only a medically
qualified person can give the treat-
ment,

Then, I come to p. 5, line 34, Chap-
ter II, 10. We have not given suffi-
cient attention in the Mental Health
Bill to the looking after the patients
who are kept in the psychiatrist hos-
pital. I want to add, “He shall not
use physica] punishment, mechanical
restraint or golitary confinement un-
less they are absolutely necessary.
Such means of restraint must be kept
under lock and key and should be
issued only by the Superintendent.”

Otherwise, there will be a tendency
to use these methods, the binding of
the hands, securing the patient to the
bed and such forcible restraints. It
is to prevent that I want to suggest
this.

MR. CHAIRMAN: I know of &
case in the Al] India Institute of Me-
dica] Sciences, a case of a young
engineer who became so violent that
he had to be tied down. Nobody
wants to tie down the patient un-
less it is abeolutely necessary. Why
put it in law? If necessary, you can
put something in the rules as to who
should keep these things, etc. We
shall bear in mind your suggestion.

DR. S. S. JAYARAM: That is all
right.

MR. CHAIRMAN: As regards p. 7
Chapter II—13(b), it has been sué-

‘gested to us to delete this. You 81'9,‘

also of the same opinion.



" DR. 8. S. JAYARAM: Yes.

I think, this is something different.
Clause 13(2) (b) read:—

“(b) in any case, there the Ins-
pecting Officer hag reason to be-
lieve that any in patient is not re-
ceiving proper treatment and care,
and where the Inspecting Officer is
a medical practitioner, he may also
examine the patient in private and
may require the production of any
medical records relating to the
treatment and care of the patient
in the psychiatric hospitallor psy-
chiatric nurging home and inspect
the same.”

Do you want to add something
here? .

DR. JAYARAM: I want the fol-
lowing to be added, namely:
“The Inspecting Officer cannot

enforce the psychiatrist to divulge
professionally confidentiai matter.”

There is a professional confidence
between the doctor and the patient,
and this assumes extraordinary pro-
portions particularly in a psychiatric
patient. The psychiatrist has to pro-
mise the patient that he will not
divulge all these matters. Otherwise,
the patient will never open his mouth.
The doctor notes down these matters
and puts them in the confidential
record. Except with the consent of
the patient, this confidential matter,
especially regarding his family affairs,
sexual affairs, etc., should not be
divulged to the inspecting officer.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Please see page
zoathenm,cmmu,nnuu.ns
and 16; there is a proviso there:

“Provideq that the Visitors shall
not be entitled to inspect any
personal records of an inpatient
which in the opinion of the medical
officer in charge are confidential
in nature”,

This is for the visitors. But so far as
the ‘nspecting officer is concerned, if

‘W

be has reason to believe that
patient is not receiving prcper treat-

‘ment and care and he also is a me-
“dlemt practitioner—if you like, we

may say here, a medical practitioner
specialised in psychiatry or a psy-

‘chiatrist—woulqd you still object to

his inspecting the records? Suppos®
the relatives complain that the pa-
tient is not getting proper treatment,
and the inspecting officer comes to
check whether it is true or not. How
can he check unless he looks into
the records?

DR. JAYARAM: The inspecting
officer can inspect only thinrs such as
food, clothing, etc. The attending
vsychiatrist is the person wito knows
what ig confidential. You can lesve
it to the discretion of the attending
psychiatrist what informaticn to give
and what not to give.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Suppose the
patient hes compluined that he is not
getting proper treatment.

¢ DR. JAYARAM: It is rot neces-
sary to go through his confidential
record for that.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The record will
have to be made available to the
inspecting officec Otherwise, how is
he to determine whether things are
being done properly or not?

DR. JAYARAvi. In the rules—
though not in the Bill—we can »s0
that each person can 1ave a genetal
case sheet and a confidential case
sheet; the confidential case sheet shall
not be divulged to anybody except
with the consent of the patient.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Now we come
to page 7. part l—edmission on
volusitary besis, Clause 18.

DR. JAYARANM: There i5 som0-
thing here which 1 have not put in
writing. If youw pamit, T wil] sav
that now. All mentally il: petientt
should be treated on the same lines
as the physically ill patients. There
should be no difference at all in the
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dignity that we give, in the treat-
ment that we give and in the way
we look after them—between
physical and mental patients.
I a person suffers from fever
or cough, he just goes to the
hospital and gets himself admitted;
he just indicates hig desire to become
an inpatient. Why should the mental
patient sign a form for this? I cannot
understand this. There is no necessity
for any voluntary patient to sign a
form. He can just indicate his desire
to be admitted. If he has to sign a
form, then it smacks of something
legal or binding; he will be afraid
that, if he signs, he will have diffi-
culty in getting discharged. If a per-
son ig admitted on a voluntary basis,
for discharge also he may just indi-
cate his desire and get discharged.
He does not have to sign again, Of
course, if the medical officer finds that
he requireg hospitalisation, then there
are various other laws for hospitali-
sation.

MR. CHAIRMAN:
(not being & minor), who |
himself to be a mentally ill person
and desires to be admitted to any
psychiatric hospital or psychiatric
nursing home...”

“Any person
considers

Here, after ‘psychiatric  nursing

home’, you want to add:

‘or a psychiatric unit of a gene-
ra] hospital or a general nursing
home with psychiatric facilities and
a psychiatrist jp attendance.”

Here, when he comes to a licensed
institution, he should apply in 'writ-
jng. Otherwise, later on, he might
turn round and say, ‘I never wanted
to be admited’, And the doctar mey
be in difficulties. So 1 think you better
leave it as it is. If he wants to go to a
psychistric hospital or nursing home,
let him take an application that ‘I
want to go'. In psychiatric ward of a
general hospital he is going even to-
day without an applicatinn .

"

DR. JAYARAM: That will be all
right.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Page 8, Chapter
1, Part II(1), line 42.

This is regarding 90 days. ‘Not ex-
ceeding 90 days’—what do you wish
to say? A voluntary case can always
ask for release and he can go. He
comes voluntarily and he goes volun-
tarily. It has been stated somewhere
discharge is to be allowed by visitors

or—Magistrates and all that. He
wants to take all what away. The
doctor there decides, ‘Let him go'.

The doctor admits and he discharges
the patient. We do not want any
difficulties for these voluntary cases.

DR, JAYARAM: CL 19 is admisgion
under special circu;nstances it is not

voluntary.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Cl 19 is with
regard to admission under special
circumstapces, There the relatives or
friends bring the patients and they
@y please admit. They should have
two certificates from doctors. It has
been suggested that they may come
from the interior. Five or six or se-
ven of them come and with great
difficulty they bring the patient to
the town for admission. If we then
tell them that they should go and
bring two certificates, there will be
diffculty and may be very kindly
exploited. They do not know where
to go. They do not know any prac-
titioner in that aree. In all such
rases, all the formalities should be
done by the doctors of the Mental
Hospita] themselves another than
their going here and there in search
of certificates. Are you agreeahle?

\
DR. JAYARAM: It is quite perenis-
sible.
MR. CHAIRMAN: You think this
is what ghould be done? The lan-
guage—We can take care of.

Then page 13, Chapter IIT part IV.

25(1)—every officer in charge of ‘,‘



station may assist etc. Here, it
s beerl s 16 us ‘that short
térm treatment, emergency treatment
efc, makes it very complicated and
that these should be only three forms
of admisgion—voluntary ndmi:sioa,
admisgion in special circumstances
which can take care of short-term
cages and emergency admissions and

commitment by the Magistrate. You
agree with that?
DR. JAYARAM: Yes, voluntary,

(shert-term) and special circumsten-
ces and commitment,

MR, CHAIRMAN: So you do not
have anythin; to say with regard to

Then with record to clauses 13 and
26(1) and also 26(2) (a)—if the Me-
dical officer certifies that a per-
son is a8 mentally {ll person, here you
want to add ‘Medical Officer or a
Psychiatrist’,

DR. JAYARAM: A Psychiatrist
will be in a better position because
he is more in the know of the men-
tal diseases then a Medical Officer,

MR. CHAIRMAN: Will there be
so many psychiatrists available? After
that you go to page 15, clause 38(1)—
line 6.

DR. JAYARAM:
thing,

MR. CHAIRMAN. More, the im-
portant thing is that we are willing
to have psychiatrists everywhere. But
there is the dearth of peychiatrists.
If they want all these peychiatrists
will there be psychiatrists available?

DR. JAYARAM: I doubt it. At
present they are there only in some
States. It is not possible,

MR. CHAIRMAN: Let us put ‘A
peyehiatrist or a medical officer’ 80
that preference will be for a Psy-
- ¢hiatrist.

» DR. JAYARAM: That will solve
-my problem.

Jt is the same

MR. CHAIRMAN: Then page 15,
clause ”(5) line M we Were
told very specifically as far as possi-

ble Magistrates should not to com-
mit cages to the jail.

We asked the question: if there is
no mental hospital, and it do
not want to send him to jail, where
are guch patignts to be pent? The
suggestion was that there may be
one or two gpecial rooms provided
for such cases in the Genera] Hos-
pital. Will you agree with that?

DR. JAYARAM: The whoje idea
was that the stigma ghould not at-
tach. Psychiatric ward of the Gene-
ral Hospital’.

DR. JAYARAM: That is all right.
Many of these people who require
admission as an emergency will be
in acute psychiatric reactions where
these people can be cured very quick-
ly within 4 or 5 days of treatment
and with heavy tranquillisers they
will become better If you admit them
into the mental hospital, the stigma
may come. So, as long as the stigma
is not there and if there is no psy-
chiatric unit with a separate room,
that may be all right. I agree.

MR. CHAIRMAN: I think we
should leave it at that. Let them
make necessary arrangements.

Now, we go to page 16, 32 line 43.
Here again you want the same thing.
After the ‘psychiatric nursing home'
you wunt ‘psychiatric ward of a go-
neral hospital'. I suppose in the case
of mental hospital the magistrate
will order admission. Do we need to
add here the ‘general ward’ or ‘pwy-
chistric ward of a genera] hospital’
when the trend is to keep it out of
the purview of the Act?

DR. JAYARAM: What T had in
ming is that it may be determined In
such place as they may deem  pro-
per. 1 do understand the removal of
such a person to a hospital, What
actually happens is that some of the



‘people are kept away in lock up or
they are sent away to the jail.

MR. CHAIRMAN: What yow are
wanting ig that pending removal to
mental hospital, they may be kept in
a genera] hospita] or psychiatric ward
of a general hospital and not in jail?

DR, JAYARAM: Not in a judicial
jail or police lock up. Then I will be
satisfled with that.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Okay. Then, on
page 19, 39 line 32, you have said
that a mentally ill person is entitled
to geng or receive letters and have
visitors according to the ruleg of the
hospital. Is it necessary that all
powers and functions of magistrate
may be exercised or discharged by
the Commissioner of Police and by
the officerg incharge of the police sta-
tion under this Aet. Such functions

may be discharged by any  police
officer not below the rank of an
Inspector.

DR. JAYARAM: I think this

should be done,

MR. CHAIRMAN: In fact someone
saig that this was too much for the
Police inspector. We should remove
this restriction. Any police officer
should do. Otherwise it will become
very difficult. Inspectors are not
found everywhere, What do you say
to this? |

DR. JAYARAM: I thiuk the po-
lice people should be kept out of it.

MR. CHAIRMAN: How can ‘We
keep them out of this? If you bring
in the magistrate, you have to bring
in the police because you cannot
bring in the magistrate without the
police. It the man is found to be
wandering in a village, and there is
no body to take care of him, the
policeman catches hold of him and
brings him to a Magistrate. If a
citizen does not do it, then the police
will have to do that.

DR. JAYARAM: The police are
entitled to take wandering men espe-

k(!

cially it they are dangerous. I have
seen in some countries where there
are what you call Menta] Welfare
Officers and they are not police peo-
ple and I think that js in UK. and
in some other country too. The
mental health welfare officers can be
deputed; they can do that. We have
not got such officers. We have no
such officers in our country ag yet.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Under the cir-
cumstances what do you say?

DR. JAYARAM: Only when the
relative of the psychiatrist requests
for the help of the police for admis-
sion of these people they can come
in,

MR. CHAIRMAN: Anyway let us
proceed further. Where do you want
to provide this? That is about send-
ing or receiving letters,

DR. JAYARAM: I think this is
misplaced, Somehow or other I find
that under the Mental Health Act, we
should have got someone for looking
after the person. We have done about
admission as also about various legal
things. There is no provision for the
care of the patients. How to protect
this legal right of the patient? He
needs the legal rights of the protection
that if a patient is not adjudged in-
competent, then he can certainly re-
ceive letters and he can communicate
with anyone. He can have the right

to do anything he likes.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Let this be
taken care of in this Bill. Page 28,
Chapter IV, Part IV—Removal 50(1),
line 83. The Bill provides:

“50(1) Any mentally ill person
other than a voluntary patient refer-
red to in section 15 may, subject to
any general or special order of the
State Government, be removed from
any psychiatric hospital or psychia=
tric nursing home to any other
psychiatric hospita] or psychiatrie
nursing home within the State, or

to any other State with the consend



“gf the Government of that other
Btate.”

“Provided that no mentally ill
person admitted to a  psychiatric
hospital of paychiatric nursing home
under an order made in pursuance
of an application made under this
Act shall be so removed unless in-
timation thereof has been given to
the applicant.”

Here what ig the problem?

DR. JAYARAM: We had received
some complaints from varioug other
countries. So far, it is not in India—
that the Government interfereg and
just transfers one patient from one
psychiatric hospital to snother and
from there to another and then he was
taken away. So ag to prevent such a
thing, if there is a transfer of the
patient from one psychiatric hospital
to another, it must be done only for
psychiatric reason and not for any
other reason,

MR. CHAIRMAN: How can it be?
After all in Bangalore a lot of patients
come ¢rom Tamilnadu and your hogpi-
tal is alwayg full. You do not have
place for your patients. The State
Government gays they ghould be taken
away to Tamilnadu from that State.

DR. JAYARAM: That is perfectly
all right. There should be third party
to decide about that.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You say about
the transfer from one hosepital to an-
other or from one State to another
wthout the consent and without the
intimation to be given to the patient.
That is not all right.

DR. JAYARAM: That can be done.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Page 31, Chapter
VII—Penalties and Procedure—Here
again look at sub-section (1).

“Whoever, after conviction under
sub-gection (1), continues to main-
tain a psychiatric hospital or psy-
chiatric nursing home in contraven-
tion of the provisiong of Chapter II,
shall, on conviction, be punishable

n

with fine which may extend to one
hundred rupees for every day after
the first day during which the con-
travention ig continued.”

DR, JAYARAM: Under 85(1) the
provision is for a fine and 85(2) is
only a continuation of thig provision.
Under 85(1) on conviction a psychia-
tric is punishable with imprisonment
for a term which may extend to three
months, or with fine which may ex-
tend to two hundred rupees or with
both, and in the case of a second or
subsequent offence, with imprisonment
for a term which may extend to six
months, or with fine whi:a may ex-
tend to one thousand rupees, or with
both. I only want that if psychiatric
unit of a general hospital or general
nursing home with paychlatric facili-
ties are permitted to treat their
voluntary patients, they are not to be
lisble to penalities if they take them
and treat them.

MR, CHAIRMAN: You were ask-
ing ug earlier not to bring paychiatric
wards of general Hospitals within the
purview of this Act. Why do you
want to mention them in this act at all?
It the psychiatric ward of the general
hospitalg is to be kept outside the
purview of this Act, why do you want
to mention that in the Act at all?

DR. JAYARAM: I just want to

make sure about it.

MR. CHAIRMAN: I thought you
said earlier that they should be kept
outside,

DR. JAYARAM: Yes.

MR, CHAIRMAN: 8o, that is all.

DR JAYARAM: No. There is one
more thing on page 33 Chapter VIIIL
TFhe mentally ill persong who has
been admitted has a rignt to vote,
hold property and has other rights of
a citizen of India unless he is sepe-
rately adjudicated as incompetent.

MR. CHATRMAN: 1 might tell you
that we are protecting his property
rights. You- point is well taken snd



we shall sas if it has not been pro-
vided for else where 1t wil be uro-
vided for.

Thank you.
(The witness then withdrew)
IV—Dr, L. P. Varma.

The witness was called in, and he
took his ‘seat).

MR. CHAIRMAN: Dr, Varma we
welcome you, on beheall of the
Committee, for having taken the tro-
uble to come here and give us the be-
nefit of your evidence,

I would like to make it clear to you
that the evidence that you give s
liable to be published and made avai-
lable to Members of Parliament even
though you may desire all or any part
of the evidence to be treated as con-
fidential. Thig is the stipulation in
our Lok Sabha rules which I wanted
to point out to you. Your Memoran-
dum has been circulated to hon. Mem-~
bers already. If you want, you may
make some general comments now
and later on, members may ask you
certain questions.

DR. VARMA: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman and Members of the Com-
mittee, for having invited me before
you far giving my views on this Bill.

First of all T would like tosay that
on the whole the Bill is very progres-
sive and we like it and we welcome
it too.

MR. CHAIRMAN: On page 2 Sec-
tion 2A(2) regarding the expenditure
to be incurred for having such persons
to the hospital and from hospital, you
have stated that this adds unneces-
sary burden for the Institution.

DR. L. P. VARMA: Yes, this is an
unnecessary burden on the hospital
That is why I have said that the ex-
penditure should be borne by hig re-
latives,

MR, CHAIRMAN: Therefore you
suggest that we gshould delete (1) and
(2) part of this Chapter .

DR. L. P. VARMA: Yes, Madam.

MR. CHAJRMAN: After that you
have stated an page 2 Clause 2(j)
you want a clarification here regurd-
ing the medical officer. Your doubt is
that if there is a separate Wing for
these patients, then you want it to be
separate or a part thereof so that there
may be separate. Wings for various
people like chronic cases or acute
cases and so on.

DR, L. P. VARMA: Or there may
be a psychiatric wing as in  general
hospital.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We have been
advised that this should not be
brought under the purview because of

the stigma attached to admissions to a
mental Hospital.

DR, L. P. VARMA: I do not now
know why this Wing should be re-
moved from the hospital. My idea is to
have g smaller number of patients, say
about 300 or so, so that in future the
State Government may create mental
hospijtal in  different districts.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Then coming to
page 4, Clause 4, it is suggesteq that
the word “asylum” should ba renlaced
by words “mental hospital”. Why this
word “asylum” has been kept here it
has been explained to us is because
there are certain institutions today
called asylums.

DR. L. P. VARMA: Madam, in 1922
there was a lot of discussiong on this
point and the word “asylum” was
removed ang it was replaced by words
“menta] hospital”.

MR. CHAIRMAN. Will the secre-
tariat please examine why there was
a lot of discussion on this point snd
whether the word “asylum” has bcen
removed. Instead of the word ‘‘asy-
lum” it may also be examined whe-
ther the word “institution” can be
used. Now, page 34, clause 52. Here
he wants that even if the guardian
does not come, the patient should be
removed to the place of his residence.
80. we have to add here a word “not”,
that is, it will read as “if the guardian



does not come to take charge of

him...”.

DR, L. P. VARMA: Yes, Madam,

that is what I wanted. You may
examine it, because to-day in a la

naumber of’ cases, nobody comes to
take them away. At page 7 of the
Bil}, ie. Chapter III section 18 it is

said;

¢....every voluntary patient, who
is admitted to any licensed psychia-
tric hospital or licensed psychiatric
nursing home, shall be liable to pay
the cost of maintenance to the
licensee of the hospita] or nursing
home; and, in the case of a volun.
tary patient, who is a minor, such
cost shal] be paid by his guardian.

(2) The State Government may,
having regard to the nature of any
licensed psychiatric hospital estab-
lished or maintained by that Gov-
ernment and the means of the
voluntary patients, provide, by noti-
fication, that any class or category
of voluntary patients admitted to
any such licensed psychiatric hospi-
tal or class of such hospitals, shall
not be liable to pay...".

Why do we want to have ihis clause
at all? If, for genera) conditions, the
patients can be treated frze—when
they are brought by magis.crial vrder
they are treated and kept free —in the
case of a patient who seeks treatment
voluntarily why should we say some-
thing different?

DR. VARMA: Thank you, Madam,
That is what I wanted,

MR. CHAIRMAN. Your next point
is on clause 18. If a patient had volun-
tarily sought admission, and if he
says he will not pay, he wil] rot pay.
At the time of admission you can
decide whether he will pay, It
depends upon the status of ihe patient.
There are gencral wards and paying
wards in general Hospitals,. We can
ask the State Governments {0 formu-
late the rules. They can say that

3 eertain income groups should pay, and

application made in that behalt hy
any voluntary patient, and, in the
case of a minor voluntary patient,
by the guardian of the patient, grant
(unless such medical officer initiates
action under sub-section (3) of sec-
tion 20), within twenty-four hours
of the receipt of such application,
leave of absence to the patient for
a period not exceeding thirty days
at a time and not _ exceeding one
hux)dred and eighty days in the ag-
gregute or discharge the patient
from the paychistric hospital or
psychiatric nursing home.”

Dr. Varma says. “Why do you want
to give leave of absence? A voluntary
patient can come and go at his will.”
What happens if he goes—and if you
don’t provide for
days—and he comes back and there
i» no room? We have been advised,
that we should delete the portion
“after 30 days.”

leave for 1 or 2

DR. VARMA: To keep the hospital

bed vacant for 30 days, will deprive
other patients of such beds.

MR, CHAIRMAN: Do you want to

reduce the period? Yoy say that due
to wedding in the family, sickness of
mother etc. or his wishing to see his
relations, he may like to go away for
short periods, and that the provision

of leave upto 30 days is necessary—
but not upto 8 months.

DR. VARMA: Yes, Madam, It will
be all right then.

MR. CHAIRMAN; Thank vou very
much. Dr Varma,

DR. VARMA. Thank you.
(The Committee then adjourned.)
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Colone] (Dr.) Kirpal Singh

(The witness was called in, and he
took his seat)

MR. CHAIRMAN: Col. Kirpal Sigh,
I welcome you to this sitting of the
Joint Committee. (Read out Direction
68) First of all, you have stated about
two types of hospitals. Now, in the
Bill you wil] notice that there are five
types of admissions—voluntary ad-
mission, admission under extraordi-
nary circumstances, magisteria) com-
mitment, emergency admussion and
short-term treatment. It has been
suggested to this Committee that we
may omit these last two admissions
emergency and short term and only
such cases where the patient is vio-
lent and is considered a danger to
himself or to others he may be taken
to the Magistrate and they may be
committed, What is your opwnion?

COL. KIRPAL SINGH:. About ad-
mission under extra-ordinary circums-
tances or under special circumstances,
1 would say that most of our popula-
tion lives in villages and it is some-
times extremely difficult to get two
medical certificates. I suggest that
the Committee might please consider
that the relatives can bring a patient
direct to the hospital and as is done
in State of Victoria, Australia,, The
hospital should have a panel of doc-
tors one of whom could examine the
patient and certify.

MR. CHAIRMAN: This is a good

suggestion. We want to accept the
suggestion to delete the tcmporary
treatment provision, what is your

view,

COL. KIRPAL SINGH: When a
patient is in a general nospital and
he become: uncontrollable, he has to
be transferred to the Mental Hospital
or a Psychiatric Hospital. But the
process involved is the same i.e. com-
mitment by 5 magistrate such a trans-
fer from a General hospital to a Psy-
chiatric hospital should be gimplified.

78

MR. CHAIRMAN: Your point is wel
tiken. Whet ysu nedd a cértiicate
Why it is stated that one of them
should be a Government servant; is ,
safeguard. Supposing there is a collu-
sion between the doctors ang the rela-
tives to send the patienf to 5 mental
hospital or take away for property,
land etc, of the person éoncerned,
and they produce two certificates and
put the patient behind the bar in a
mental hospital. Then, if one of them
is a Government servant who knows
that disciplinary action can be taken
against him, that will d¢t a safeguard.
If certificates are necessary, then one
of them should be from a Government
servant. That is the feeling of the
Government and the Committee seems
to agree to that. Would you agree
with this salutary provisfon?

COL. RRIPAL SINGH: In the State
of Victoria Australia, first the patient
may be brought to the hospital by the
relatives. The law theére insists that
the certificates should be ¢rom the
private doctors and not from Govern-
ment doctors who are already serving
in the hospital so that they can be
independent of the hospital. They
have a panel of private doctors who
would be called from time to time to
examine and certify these patients
who have been brought to the hospi-
tal,

SHRI MAQSOOD AL] KHAN; For
how long have you been practising,
in which branch of medicine, in pri-
vate or in a Government institution?

DR. KIRPAL SINGH: 1 have been
a psychiatrist for 3¢ years. I was in
the Army for 28 years and after that
I went to Australia and sevved there
for 3% years. I am a Fellow of the
Royal College of Psychiatrists, and at
the moment I am also the National
Professor of Psychiatry for the IMA
College of General Practitioners, 1
retired from the Army in 1968 in the
rank of full colonel.

SHRI MAQSOOD ALI KHAN: You
offer consultancy to patients in your
private capacity?



DR. KRIPAL SINGH: 1 do.

SHRI MAQSOOD AL] KHAN:
Please see page 3, defimtion (m). Ob.
jection has been taken to the mention
of the words psycho neurosis, menial
subnormality and psycho-soinatic dis-
order. Would you like these ty be
deleted from the definition?

DE. KRIPAL SINGH: I would pre.
fer that psycho-somatic disorder and
mental subnormality be deleted from
the definition, and a separate clause
be put in for that. Mental subnor-
mality in most cases is congenlta’, #t
is not an illness acquired after birth.

SHRI MAQSOOD AL1 KHAN: In
the British Act, they have made it
severe mental subnormality. Would
you prefer that?

DR. KIRPAL SINGH: I would sug-
gest that “mental subnormality of a
severe degree” might be included,
but not mental subnormality as such.

MR, CHAIRMAN: Why do you
want menta]l subnormality, which you
cannot treat and set right, to be cover-
ed by this Bill at all? It has been
suggested to us that for the mentally
retarded and mentally subnormal
there should be a separate law and
institutions and we should take them
out of this Bill completely.

Similardy if we keep psycho-soma-
tic disorders with definition sumebody,
out of some ulterior motive, may have
a person with hyper tension or pertic
ulcer, put into a mental hospital,
which will be a very serious matter.
So, it has been suggested tihat we
should remove this category from the
definition,

About psycho-neurosis too each one
of us has had some neurotic episode
or other in our lives, 8o, if you put
psychonovosis in the definition of
menta) fliness we are all liable to be
admitted to a mental hospital under
certain circumstances.

DR. XIRPAL SINGH: As for a8
‘nnhl sabnormality is conoerned, I
3108 LS--0.
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entirely agree with you that there
should be a separate law and institu-
tions for looking after them. As re-
gards psychoneurosis, i a voluntary
patient wants to be treated in a pay-
chiatric hospital. . .

MR, CHAIRMAN: Why do you want
them to be covered by the law? Who
prevents them from taking treatment?
Today they are not covered by ihe
law and yet they are being treated
wherever they want. In fact, it has
been suggested to us that the psy-
chiatric wards of the general hospitals
should be kept cutside the purview of
this Bill, so that no stigma attached
to committed cases attaches to them,
peaple can freely come and ask for
advice here.

DR. KIRPAL SINGH. 1 agree with
you,

'SHRI SBAKTI KUMAR SARKAR:
Please see definition (q). Do you wan$
that the convalescent home should be
maintained by Government alone?

MR. CHAIRMAN; What apples to
the psychiatric wards of mental hospl-
tals applies with even greater force
to convalescent homes. Patients have
been treated and sent to the conva-
lescent home pending integration with
society, Why bring them within the
purview of this Biil?

DR. KRIPAL SINGH: I do not
think it is to bring them
within the purview of this Bill.

SHRI SAKTI KUMAR SARKAR:
You do not waht to have the magu
trate in the picture?

DR. KIRPAL SINGH: Except in
the cagses which I have mentioned at
page 2 para 2(c) of my memorandum,
it should be a medical procedure, and
not a judicial process,

SHR] SBAKTI KUMAR SARKAR:
It has been suggested that, regsrding
the licenaing authority, the rules
should be framed by the Government
for the sake of uniformity, and the
implementation may be left to the
State Governments. Do you agree?



DR. KIRPAL SINGH; 1 entirely
agree with you.

SHRI RUDOLPH RODRIGUES: You
find the term “mentally ill offender”
in the definition, If a person is men-
tally ill, can he be described us an
eoffender?

MR. CHATRMAN: Take the case of
Ranga and Billa, there is a suggestion
that only a mentally deranged person
eould commit such héinous crin.es, so
that there are offenders who are
mentally ill.

SHRI RUDOLFH RODRIGUES: My
point is that people who have no
control over themselves commit crimes
and they are described as mentally ill
offenders. Would it not be better to
call them mentally ill detenus, to re-
move the stigma?

MR. CHAIRMAN: If they commit
a murder, what is wrong in calling
them offenders? Offence may be
serious, it may not be so serious. Any
way, we can discuss it among our-
selves.

DR. KIRPAL SINGH. On classifi-
cation of psychiatric diseases, 1 think
it has been mentioned now as ‘men-
tally ill person’,

MR. CHAIRMAN: We have been
told that we should remove this also
because it wil] lead to very great
complication. We will be grateful if
you could suggest what will be a
suitable definition.

DR, KIRPAL SINGH: 1 was trying
to refer to this class of people who
are called psychopaths. When they
eommit an offence, and they are lable
to commit offences very frequently,
they are considereq responsible for
their action because they are not
suffering from what we, psychiatrists,
call the psychosis or a severe degree
of mental subnormality. So, if they
are responsible for their actions, natu-
rally they should be called offenders.
There is no harm in calling them
offenders.

SHRI RAJSHEKHAR KOLUR:
Sometimes what happens is, the real
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and crooked brains remain behind the |
screen and innocent people are gene- |
rally caught and punished. For these |
persons naturally the people try to }
give some different colour saying that
these are mentally ill persons. In some
cases, they use instigateq or they are
offered a huge sum. P

DR. KIRPAL SINGH: I don’t under
stand your point very well.

SHRI RAJSHEKHAR KOLUR: As °
our Chairman said, now the present
controversy ig going on. Some people
are saying, they are mentally ill and
all that. According to me and ac-
cording, to gome other persons it may
be possible that the real culprits may
remain behing the scene, they may
not come into the picture at all. They
commit some offences for which it
is possible that they may escape. ¥

MR. CHAIRMAN: What he is try-
ing to say is that somebody else is
the redl crimimal who plots and uses
a mentally ill person to perform the
crime. So, who is responsible for
that crime?

SHRI RAJSHEKHAR KOLUR: Not
only that. Such persons will be called
ag mentally ill

MR. CHAIRMAN: But that is fo:
the doctors to decide.

SHRI RAJSHEKHAR KOLUR: It \
such persons are there, they can com‘Af
mit offences wherever such persons
are available.

MR. CHAIRMAN: It is something
for the lawyers, magistrates and the
doctorg to consider. What is the reply
to this question?

DR. KIRPAL SINGH: I am not
competent to answer that question.

SHRI RAJSHEKHAR KOLUR: In
Karnataka one person committed 11
murderg within a short spell of one
hour. That man was sitting in the
Hanuman temple. At that time one€
lady went to the temple to offer het
prayers and she asked him for @
match box for lighting. He sfartoi v



saying: ‘Who is that nonsence fellow
doing something?* and so on. And
then that man  gtarted altercations
against her and she reported the
matter to her husband. The husband
got wild and came to him. This fellow
first thrashed the wife and killed her
angd then the husband, Then he en-
tered the village. On the way he
finished nearly 9 persons and the last
person, the village chowkidar, was
also done to death. Looking at this
condition, the Head Constable asked
the sentry to fire at him and he was
fired.

DR. KIRPAL SINGH: Obviously
this man was mentally ill. There is
no doubt about it from the story you
have narrated.

SHRI RAJSHEKHAR KOLUR:
.Earlier he was all right,

DR. KIRPAL SINGH: He must be
suffering from delusions.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The very fact
that the man committed 11 murders
shows that he was a mentally unhing-
ed person.

Regarding transfer from a general
hospital to a psychiatric hospital, we
have agreed with you that it should
be done by the medical people,
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SHRI RUDOLPH RODRIGUES:
Dr. Singh, you have stated that there
should be an easy provision for trans-
fer from & general hospital to a pay-
chiatric hospital where 5 patient can-
not be managed in a general ward.
There is a possibility which I would
ask you to consider. There are pa-
tients who come to a geners) ward
and who are left there. At some
point of time the general hospital to
get rid of them can use this clause to
transfer them to psychiatric hospital.

DR. KRIPAL SINGH: Thig remote
possibility would remain , but I don’t
think it is likely to be misused,

SHRI RUDOLPH RODRIGUES:
It can be misused.

DR. KRIPAL SINGH:; I don not
know what is the alternaiive, If the
patient who has beeh referred or
sent to a general hospital, say, for a
minor injury or for malaria or for
pneumonia, later on becomes psych-
iatric, that means he suffers from pay-
chosis, and they canot mahage him in
a general ward, I &0 not know what



the alternative would be, but they
would like him to go to a psychiatric
hospital where they can manage him
webl.

SHRI RUDOLPH RODRIGUES:
I am only just saying that there jg a
danger.

MR. CHAIRMAN: It is hardly like-
ly that the general ward patients who
are not mentally sick will be dumped
in the mental asylum. It is hardly
possible. In fact, it is the other way.
It is more likely that they may send
hinr from the psychiatric to the gene-
ral hospital,

SHRI RUDOLPH RODRIGUES:
One of the problemg is that the
patients are lefy in genmeral hospital
and no one will take them,

MR. CHAIRMAN: Yes, but then
some other way was to be found. But
we cannot stop transfer of mentally
sick people from a General Hospital
to a Ptychiatric Hospital,

SHR!I RUDOLPH RODRIGUES:
I agree with you. But I am saying
about the precautions,

’

DR. KIRPAL SINGH: 1 still feel
that this provisiof—~~6f easy transfer
from a General Hospital to Psychia-
tric Hospital should be there.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Then you have
stated.

“All recommended (or certified)
patients must be examined by a
qualified Psychiatrist of the Hospital
concerned wifthin 72 hours qf his
admission and those found not suf-
fering from g psychiatric illness
should be discharged immediately.
In cases where it is considered that
the patient could comtinue to be
under treatment as g voluntary pa-
tient and not a recommended psa-
tient it should be within the pur-
view of the Medical Officer in
charge of the Haspital to do s0.”

Now what is the difference between
a voluntary and a recommended pa-

tient. A voluntary patient is some-
hody who comesg himselft ang a re-

commended patient is one who is

brought by his relatives or friends.
Is that right?

DR. KIRPAL SINGH: Yes. A vol-
untary patient can give a notice of 24
hours and leave while a recommended
patient will have to be seer. by the
Visitorg and Superintendent and cer-
tifieq that he is fit for discharge. That
is the difference betweepn the two,

‘ MR. CHAIRMAN: The next point
1s;

“Application for admission of a
patient under Sections 19, 20 and
'22: Besides the relatives of the
patients it should be made possible
for application for admission to be
made by a friend, a social worker
or a person in charge of an Institu.
tion where the patient may be resi-
dent.”

It is a good suggestion,

The next one is:

“Visitors; Visitors should jnclude
at least two Mediceal practitioners
one of whom should be a Psychia-
trist. These two medical practitio-
ners should be in addition to any
Government Medical Officer who
may be appointeq as g Visitor.”

This is your suggestion., This may
be considered by the Committee,
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(The witness then withdrew)

1I—Shri G. G. Prabhu.

(The witness was called in, and he
took hig seat).

MR, CHAIRMAN: Dr. Prabhu, I
would like to welcome you on be-
half of this committee and would like
to explain to you that the evidence
that you give is ]iable to be published
ang treated -as public unless you spe-
cifically desire that any portion or
the whole of it ghould be kept con-
fidential. Even if you so wish, it is
liable to be made available to the
Members of Parliament.

With that, I would like to say that
you have complained that the Bill was
not sent to you. It is not the fault of
the Lok Sabha Secretariat. We gent
the Bill to those people whose list
was supplied to the Secretariat by
the Ministry. The Bill must have
gone to your Institute in any case. It
is not sent to each individual in an
Institute and we expect all of you
can have g look at it whep it isg in
your Institute and say what you wish
to. It was gent to you later in the
month of June,

DR. PRABHU: That is right.

MR, CHAIRMAN: Be that as it
may, We have noted your views—
what you have sald in your Memo-
randum. You have sald that specific
suggestions on the different clauses
of the Bil] you would make when
you come here,
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Now I would very much like you
to please enlighten us and ley us have
your suggestiong with regarq to the
specific clause by clause of Chapter
by Chapter wherever you would like
to make suggestions. You must have
made a note of it. If you wish to
make any genera]l commentg before
that, you are welcome,

DR. PRABHU; Before 1 go over
the specific issues and the consequ.
enceg, first I would like to make a
submission. I did not make a com-
plaint that I did not receive the BilL
In fact I just made a statement be-
cause I knew that an attempt is be-

-ing made to elicit public opinion on

this particulay Bill and I just poin-
ted it out so that it may be possible
to elicit it from all sectiong of the
society.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You might know
that a large number of clinical psy.
chologists have appeared before us.

DR. PRABHU: Before I go sec-
tion by section, the two aspects I
would like to say because 1 am mak-
ing them gpecifically witp reference
to the available figureg about mental
illness that is being covered by this
Bil] ag it exists in this country. In
the written memorandum that I sub-
mitted, I have said that the Bill can
at times become restrictive in the
sense that all the people who are in
need of help may not be in a position
to receive it because, as things stand,
from the scientific angle, we estimate
that the prevalence of mental illness
is 18 to 20 per thousand in this coun-
try which obviously means that there
are 12 to 13 million people in this
country who are mentally jll. These
are very conservative figures not oa
the higher gide because when it comes
to the question of saying who is a
mentally {ll person, if may 8o hep-
pen that even a person who finds dif-
ficulty to go to bed or a patient of in-
somnia may be branded as a mentally
ill person other than those who are
perceivad by otherg ag needing health



care and the facy that the pumber of
people who are receiving mental
health care is only 125,000 meant that
we are providing for less than 1 per
cent of those who are acutely in need
of menta] health facilities. Even'if
we go by the fact that the facilities
are mainly in the urban areas and
even if we go by the fact of how
many people are in need of mental
health care in urban areas, it works
out in urban areas to 2 to 3 million
and even if we consider that ail
these people who are being given
assistance are from urban areas which
is definitely not correct because yural
people also need it, we are providing
mental health care to only 3 per cent
of the people who are in need of care
and under these circumstances, obvi-
cusly, any authority which comes in-
to being heg to cater to a large num-
‘ber of people who are in need of it.
It is in this background that when
I go through the section—obviously
the section that comeg to mind is the
section of deflnition, (m) where the
mentally ill person has been given a
very broad sort of definition. On the

basis of the present day sort
of  scientific  feeling about it
I personally think that only

clinical condition known gs psychosis
probably can come under this Bill
especially because of the fact that
later it has become more or less
mandatory according to section 4(1),
6(c) and 9 (iii) that any body who
ig found mentally ill accurding to
this particular Bill hag to be in a
nursing home which is being headed
by a psychiatrist,

The question arises: How exactly
mental abnormalities and psychosis,
psychoneuroses, psychopathic state,
mental sub-normalities or psychoso-
matic disorder cases fit in here and it
included, will they get the best care
which is required by them? Then
there is one aspect that is not inclu-
ded in this definition but because of
the, progressive legislation to which
we are contributing ‘and which is
likely to come into our focus iy the
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question' of the individuals who at-
tempt to commit suicide. For exam-
ple, it is estimated that nearly 14
per 10 lakhs commit guicide in this
country which meang nearly 91,000
people, According to the CBI report
thig year the number of people who
attempted suicide -is 3 times the num-
ber which makes iy that the number
of individuals who attempted suicide
is about 3 lakhs and with the progres-
sive legislation which js going on
internationally and if we forget this
Bill for the next 20 or 25 years and
if this thing i.e. attempted suicide, is
not made an ¢ffence, obviously we
wil} have to take care of them who,
I would say, are mentally ill cases.
That is what is exactly being provi-
ded at present in a country like UK.

Then the question comes up: are we
in a position to provide this care at
present?

1 personally would submit this. .

MR. CHAIRMAN: We have accep-
ted your statement. You may proceed
to the other points.

DR, PRABHU: My second point is
this. This is about the question 6f
the medical officer. You have got thi-
in page 2, (i). (j), (k), read with Sec-
tion 26(1) (b) and 2(a). The Medica!
officer has to have an MBBS degree.
He should be a competent medical
practitioner. Please gee 26(1) (b) and
26(2) (a). The medical officer has to
certify such person to be a mentally
ill person. With regard to medical
education in this country, the amount
of psychiatric training given to them
is not more 15 hours in the whole
course of 5 1/2 years. You can well-
imagine how far that advice can be
taken as sufficient.

MR, CHAIRMAN: In the Ilater
scheme of things the Committee has
been advised that the primary method



of admission. It is Hkely to be volun-
tary and under extraordinary circums.
tances in which the friends or relatives
bring the patient to the hospital. Only
a very small proportion is likely tv
come through the magistrate. Certi~
ficates to be given will not be of such
a large number in any case.

DR, PRABHU: If that is the view
of the Committee, I submit to its view.
But what § want to emphasise is only
this. When there are a number of
people who are there, that is to say,
18 million or so, a small segment of
that would be quite sizeable,

Now I come to Clause 40(1). It
says: —

“The State Govt, shall appoint
for every psychiatric hospital and
every psychiatric nursing home in
the State, not less than five Visitors,
of 'whom at least one shall be a
medical officer, pteferably a psy-
chiatrist.”

This word ‘preferably’ may be sub-
stituted by the word ‘shall’. It has
to be stated that he shall be a psy-
chiatrist. One person should be fully
qualified. Of course Clause 97 pro-
vides that these rules with reference
to inspection and so on can be chang-
ed. The word preferably may lead to
some loopholes in the system and so
the word ‘shall be’ may be put in
there.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You suggest
that one visitor shall be psychia-
trist. In the light of the ex-
perience the Government can desig-
nate persons as psychiatrists, That
can be done, Governmeént can design-
nate ‘X’ or ‘Y’ as a psychiatrist. So,
that should not cause any difficulty.

DR. SAROJINI MAHISHI: He says
that instead of medical® officer, let it
be put as paychiatrist.

MR. CHAIRMAN: He says that
there are many mental hospitals in
the country. They should be able to
find a person who is a good psychia-
trist who has worked in the area,
who has got sufficient experience
appoint him ag g vistor.

DR. PRABHIT: As I have said, it bas
to be mentally ‘l persons excluding
the mentally suo-normal. Then, of
counse thig difficuty will not come up.
Otherwise we will immediately be
€aced with a serious diffculty. We
have near about 150 institutions for
the mentally retarded of which nearly
60 per cent provide residential care.
They are not headed by a paychiatrist.
The psychiatrist’s interest is naturally
limited. The conditions are not cur-
able but are mainly trainable and so on
As it is, if the definition ig not chang-
ed, it will create difficulty.

MR, CHAIRMAN: This is likely to
be changed.

Now_ I want to ask you a question.
There is shortage of the institutions
in the country for the mentally-re-
tarded. You may come across in any
part of India severally sub-normal
persons with behavioral problems and
conditions which would need institu-
tional care and so on. If we remove
them from the purview of thig Bill it
can be stated that the beds served
in. these hospitals can then be utilised’
by the others who need to be taken
care of in a mental hospital, But to-
morrow if the mentally ill are to be
exclyded, there will be place to take
care of them, till such time that the
new Bill for the care of mentally re-
tarded comes in. So, would you like



to comment on this aspect of it? Can
yoy suggest any solution?

DR. PRABHU: The types of severe
subnormality is estimated at 7 per
thousand of population whereas mild
subnormality is estimated at 2.5 per
cent of the population or 25 per thou-
sand. Even now the number of those
who are taken care of in the mental
hospitals of the country is not sub-
stanital.

MR. CHAIRMAN: So, you would
like mentally retarded to be excluded.

DR. PRABHU: Yes, Madam.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Would you like
‘to say anything else?

DR. PRABHU: 'Section 93—page
‘34,

MR. CHAIRMAN: This has been
suggested to us that rules should be
framed by the Central Government
and the execution may be done by the
State goveruments. Then the rules
would be yniform. Would you like to
say anything else?

DR. PRABHU: The three sections
under (ii) (a)—e, g & k on page 35
should not be under this particular
scction where there can be possibility
of variation brought in,

MR. CHAIRMAN: If the rule mak-
ing is uniform then your objection
will disappear.

DR. PRABHU: Yes, Madam.
MR, CHAIRMAN: What next

DR. PRABHU: That ig all that I
‘would like to submit before the Com-
mittee.

AN HON'BLE MEMBER: The evi-
dence that we have on record goes to
show that these mentally ill patients
have been very much ignored in our
country and the stress is more on
physical health and even when they
are admitted to these hospitals where
physical patients are looked after these
mentally 111 patients are being ignored.
‘On account: of that may I suggest to

you. Should we not have in our coun-
try a Mental Health Board as such
which should be able to take care of
these mentally ill persons on separate
basis altogether so that interests of
these mentally ill people should not
be ignored at any level

DR, PRABHU: On this thers can
be only matter of opinion and I would
submit this was virtually discussed
and the one country in the develop-
ing world that is doing this i{s Indo-
nesia. They have a serarate direc-
torate of menta] health. As we do not
have it, it looks it is done in an entire
set-up. Probably we can give better
care but as the experts from Indo-
nesia tell us the minute it was separa-
ted from the general health care of
the country a tendency starts growing
what is to be provided t- these in-
dividuals under the special circums-
tances. That itself gets neglected.
So, Indonesia are now regretting as to
why they separated because they ithink
everything can be done within the
General Health Depariment of the
country but at the morment as the
things stand there is stigma attached
to the mental health.

SHRI KRISHNA NAND JOSHI:
Now, the country will not be in a posi-
tion to guide the manpower in the
next hundred years or so. Supv.sing
the suggestions that you_have made
have been taken, do you think that all
the problems will be solved or how
much time will it take?

DR. PRABHU: As far as the men-
tal health manpower potential is con-
cerned, our capacity at present is
roughly 4Q psychiatrists every year
and about 20 clinical psychologists
every year, This potential cannnt be
increased. If we start having teach-
ing institutions, we would obviously
require manpower. So our capacity
is limited. With the tremendous
short-fall we have as far gs the man-
power potential is concerned, if the
number of psychiatrists in this coun-
try is about 700 as it is at present,
it would be definitely not possible to
solve the problem of manpower re-



quirements. In fact no country in
the world has solved this problem,
But definitely, if we make use of
nearly 400 clinical psychologists who
are about 600 and the services of
about 200 social workers are utilised,
we will immediately double the num-
ber of manpower potential which, I
think when there is an acute shortage
of manpower in this field will help a
great deal.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Even with the
Clinical Psychologists, Social workers
etc. the problem is not going to be
anywhere near solution. You have
to find out new ways,

DR. PRABHU: In fact when I
touched upon the aspect of Medical
Officer, that was one aspect which I
was keeping in mind. I am sure when
I say that if the total amount of teach-
ing of mental health care in this coun-
try is not more than 15 hours during
the 5} years of study and training,
how would you expect a person with
15 hours training to handle this pro-
blem, In fact when the community
workers started getting training a few
weeks, a question was raised as to how
this few weeks’ training would help
in tackling the problem, If a person
who has got 15 hours of teaching of
mental health during the 5} yea:
period of training cann’'t such per-
sons who have undergone training, for
a few week be capable of tackling the
problem of mental illness?

MR. CHAIRMAN: If you can think
of some orientation, some training for
the medically qualifled people then
those with the short training will be
in a position to understand and get
further experience under the super-
vision of these trained medical people.
Further the parameds may be given
training in the administration of selec-
ted drugs.

DR. PRABHU: In fact repeated
representations have been given to the
Indian Medical Council to increase
from 15 hours of teaching to 75 hours,
In the Seminar of W.H,O. held in this
country in 1971 it was suggested that
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a minimum of 75 hours psychiatric
teaching is necessary.

MR, CHAIRMAN: Dr. Prabhy,
thank you very much for having come
and given your valuable suggestions.

(The Committee then adjourned)
III—Dr. S. Dutta Ray,

(The wtness was called in, and he
took htis seat).

MR. CHAIRMAN: We welcome
you. I would like to make it clear
to you that the evidence that yom
tender shall be treated as public and
is liabla to be published unless youw
specifically desire that all or any part
of it may be treated as confidential,
Even then it is liable to be made avail.
able to Members of Parliament,

We have just received a copy of
your memorandum, and naturally it
has not been circulated. So, T would
request you to kindly give the high-
lights of what you wish to see before
we ask you questions.

First of all, you have said that this
definition of the mentally ill person
should be changed. You have sugges-
ted that we should remove mental
sub-normally, psycho-somatic dis-
orders and psycho-neurosis from the
list, and only psychosis be left.

Then, at page 2, para 4, I have not
quite followed what you want. Will
you please explain? We have been
advised that the psychiatric units of
the general hospitals should not be
brought within the purview of this
Bill for two reasons. One is, the
treatment in these units is free it re-
quires no formality, mental illness
should be treated as any other illness.
Just as patients of other diseases
cap go to any hospital and get treat-
ment today and that we should not
do anything to create any difficulties
for the mentally ill to go to a general
hospital for treatment, Secondly a
certain amount of stigma is always
there for going for treatment to men-
tal hospitals and as such it will be
better that wards pgychiatric in gene-



ral hospitals are left primarily for
voluntary caseg and they are not
brought under the purview of this
Act. Now we would like to hear
{rom you as to why you want these
wards to be brought within the pur-
view of thig Act.

DR. DUTTA RAY: Firstly, we
have elaborate rules which guide the
management of even private psychia-
tric nursing homes. They have to be
licensed, A certain quality of care
has to be provideq to the patients.
Secondly there are private nursing
homes as well who treat all sort of
patients and even rs-chiatric patients
are admitted there. Now if we take
a stand that all kinds of psychiatric
patients can be treated in all kinds of
medical institutions and no formalities.
are necessary, then it is alright. But
if we have to have laws which legally
guard the civic rights of the patients
who are admitted against their wishes,
then this should be done,

MR. CHAIRMAN: But how about
the voluntary cases? These psychia-
tric wards of Gon~ral Hospitals are
not meant for those who are admitted
against their wishes,

DR. DUTTA RAY: But many of
them are severely ill that they are not
in a position to understand the im-
plications of their admission.

MR, CHAIRMAN: That is what I
am saying. But they are not admitted
against their will. They are being
admitted either voluntarily or they
are being brought either by their re-
lative or friend, They are not being
committed by a Magistrate. What yoy
are worried about is that the quality
of care should be adequate,

DR. DUTTA RAY: Yes. Many
severelly ill patients are being treated
in the psychiatric wards of General
Hospitals. By no stretch of imagina-
tion they can be imagined to be volun-
tary patients because they are not in
a position to exercise their judgement
and so there should be a provision to
keep them with the relatives. Other-

wise, we are liable to some legal
complications. For instance, if there
is a General pursing home and they
admit a very severely disturbed psy-
chiatric patient and if the rules do
not permit the relatives staying with
him, then this can be construed as
forcible incarceration of a patient in
a hospital,

MR. CHAIRMAN: The point is,
the law cannot say that the relatives
should stay or should not stay. It
will be for the doctor incharge of the
Tnstitution to have the relatives with
t. 2m or not.

DR. DUTTA RAY: Apart from the
administrative problems, the officers
whe are taking charge of the patients
must have some lega]l safeguards.

MR. CHAIRMAN: For voluntary
cases or for those that are being
brought by the relatives, there is no
legal problem.

DR. DUTTA RAY: Supposing a
patient is admitted and treated against
his wishes, because the relatives forc-
ed him to take treatment. '

MR. CHAIRMAN: You just now said
that he is not in a fit condition to ex-
ercise judgement. You can say this
viz,, if a patient in the hospital
wishes to make a representation
against his admission, then the matter
can be referred to the Board of Visi-
tors or the Magistrate. You would
like this suggestion to be made that
if a patient is not a voluntary patient,
but admitted under extra-ordinary
circumstances, i.e.,, being brought by
a relative or friend, if such a patient,
after coming to the hospital makes a
complaint that he has been brought
there against his wishes, thep the
matter ghall go before the Board of
Visitors or the Magistrate within 72
hours.

DR, DUTTA RAY: Yes. We have
a special provision, emergency provi-
sion,

MR. CHAIRMAN: We want to
delete the emergency provision. It



has been suggested that there should
be only three types of admission, viz.,
voluntary admission, admission under
specia] circumstances, i.e., those which
are brought by friends or relatives
or head of an institution and the third.
committed by a Magistrate. It has
been suggested that the commitment
by the Magistrates should be there
only for certain special type of cases.
They are: those found to be suffering
from mental illness while under trial
for a criminal offence, convicted per-
sons showing evidence of mental ill-
ness, where management of property
is the issue, where a person is believed
‘to be suffering from mental disorder
and is at large and is considered to
be dangerous to himself and others,
where a person suffering from mental
illness is alleged to have been neglect-
ed or ill-treated by relatives. These
are the flve categories of cases in
which commitment by the Magistrate
should be there. Otherwise, it should
be voluntary or under special circums-
tances. It is conceivable that the re-
latives and friends may be interssted
in robbing off the ill person by putting
him in a mental hospital and if this
map is capeble of making a complaint
or anybody else on his behalf makes
a complaint then that should go be-
fore the Board of Visitors or the
Magistrate within 72 hours. Is that
acceptable?

DR. DUTTA RAY: Yes.

MR, CHAIRMAN: Then in sub-
clause (k) of Clause 2, you want the
following portion to be deleted:

“..or a person whose name has
been registered in a State Medical
Register in accordance with the pro-
visions of any other law relating to
the registration of medical practi-
tioners for the time being in force.”

DR. DUTTA RAY: Yes.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The next one is
‘admission under Special circums-
tances’,

DR. DUTTA RAY: Now that you
. bave clarified, 1 had suggested that

this admission under Special circum-
stances should be deleted, This is be-
cause we already have a form of ad-
mission under temporary admission.
Under temporary admission we have
stated that the validity would be for
six months and ynder special circum.-
stances it would be for three months

MR, CHAIRMAN: That is alright.
If necessary_ it can be extended.

DR. DUTTA RAY: ] would suggest
that we keep temporary admission
and delete ‘admission under special
circumstances’. The only difference I
find is that the patients who are ad-
mitted under special circumstances
ican continue in the hospital for a
period of three months whereas under
temporary admission, they can conti-
nue for six months. Looking at the
turnover of the Menta] Hospitals, I
fee] that 3ix months would be a rea-
sonable period for most of them to
go out.

MR. CHAIRMAN: This is a matter
which may be examined whether we
should keep edmission under special
circumstances or we should keep tem-
porary admission whichever is a
better provision. We should not have
too many types.

DR. DUTTA RAY: Yes

The gecond clause was the prescrib-
ed medical certificate form. If we are
going to have special typeg of admis-
3ion, then we shouid have special
types of medical certificate ¢orm. The
problem which I foremee is, who will
decide under what type of edmission
the patient is being committed.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We are simplyfy-
ing it. In the case of voluntary ad+
mission if the patient so desires the
doctor will have to discharge him
within 24 hours. The man who comes
under ‘special circumstances' or tem-’
porary admiseion, unless some other
person makes a representation, he
stays there till he gets better, for three
months or four months or five months
it ia upto six months, I think.



DR. DUTTA RAY: When we have
too many admissions, I foresee...

MR. CHAIRMAN: We are proposing
not to have too many types. The
patient comes voluntarily or the
patient is brought voluntarily py his
family or friends or he is committed
by the magistrate. These are the only
three forms of admission the com-
mittee is thinking of keeping.

DR. DUTTA RAY: If we have only
three forms o¢é admission, then even
the present medical certificate from
would do. This comment was made
because I wag thinking that there
were more than three typles of ad-
mission.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Relatives may
bring the patient from the villages.
They are asked to bring two medical
certificates. They are liable to be
harasseq and exploited by the practi-
tioners in the town. With great diffi-
culty they bring the patient to the
town. It will be extremely difficult
for them to go and search for doctors
to get the certificates because they are
simple people, they do not know any-
body in the towns. So, it is suggested
that the hospita] may keep a panel of
doctors who may be telephoned by
the hospital to certify.

DR. DUTTA RAY: Under the pre-
sent provisions, not only are two medi-
cal certificates required but one of
them should be from a psychiatrist
and the other from a government ser-
vant. What is happening now is, most
of the relatives who are having very
disturbed patients to be admitted to
mental hospitals cannot take them to
government hospitals; they only bring
two certificates from two medical
practitioners, present them to the
Magistrate and the Magistrate is kind
enough to accept them.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We have gseen
with our own eyes that relatives tied
up the patients and brought him to
the mental hospital. We saw that in
Srinagar. They did not go to the
Magistrate, they came to the hospital.
If they come with the Magistarte’s

orders, then there ig no problem, but
if they do not come with Magistrate's
orders and if they do not have two
medical certificates, what does the

:octor in charge of the institution
0?

DR. DUTTA RAY: If they have to
2o and fetch a certificate from a gov-
ernment medical officer, that will
makel it more combersome and diffi-
cult.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Your point is that
it should be simplified and the difficul-
ties removed.

DR. DUTTA RAY: Yes.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You have said: if
the mentally ill person is unable to
express his willingness for admission
and emergency admission jg desired,
then the relatives can always take re-
course to the provisions under Clause
28C— Admission in Emergencies, page
15. What are your suggestions here?

DR. DUTTA RAY: Thig is a part of
the argument why we should not have
admission under special circumstances
and retain only admission under tem-
porary admission clause.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You have said:
the pre-requisites of ‘Reception Order”
on application mientions about two
medical certificates from two medical
practitioners. .. What is the difficulty
here?

DR. DUTTA RAY: The Clause men-
tionz that one certificate shall pe from
the medical practitioner in the service
of Government. It will cause great
difficulty. Here we are already sug-
gesting that one of the certificates
should be from a psychiatrist. That
means, we are already taking the safe-
guard that some expert has seen and
opined that the patient should be ad-
mitted in a specia] institution.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You are suggest-
ing that the pstients who are very
disturbed and refuse to be taken to
government hospital should be seen
at home, but most government medical



pfficers have no obligation fo visit
the house of the mentally-ill person
and issue certificates; the practice in
moat cases even under the present
laws according to you is to obtain
and secure two medical certificates
from two private medical practitioners
and not government medical officers;
and thig practice should be regularis-
ed; the legal safeguards to patient’s
eivic rights are already protected
under other sections of this Act; the
sanctity attached to certificates from
government medical officerg should go.
Here, 1 must explain that the idea
was that the relatives may, in collu-
sion with a private practitioner, have
the patient admitted—just to put him
away from the scene. This provision
ig a safeguard against that. The gov-
ernment servant wil] be more under
the contro] of the Government and
may not indulge in wrong practice.
But you say that it will cause difficulty
and, therefore, you are suggesting that
we should do away with the certifi-
cate from the government medical
officer. 1z that your point?

DR. DUTTA RAY: Yes.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Committee
wil] consider your suggestion.

Then you have gaid that the rules
pertaining to discharge of patients—
Clause 43—by the visitors do not take
cognizance of not gn uncommon situa-
tion obtaining in mental hospitals
namely that despite the recommenda-
tion o¢ the medical officer in charge
of the patient for discharge by the
visitors, the latter often choose not
visit the hospital to comply with such
recommendations, The emotional re-
Percussions and inconvenience thus
caused to the patients and his expec-
tant relatives can easily be imagined.
In fact, most frustrated medical offi-
cers in charge get such patients dis-
charged later on through the commit-
ting magistrates with the help of ap-
plication from the relatives and their
own recommenadtions to the Magis-
trate for discharge. Do you mean to
say that Visitors do not agree with
the medical officers?

)]

DR. DUTTA RAY: Yes.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Do you think
that the discharge should be at the
discretion of the doctor and not
through the Visitors?

DR. DUTTA RAY: No. The Board
of Visitorg have a very useful role, but
it is very unlikely that they could
judge the quality of the recovery of a
patient better than the doctor who is
treating.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Therefore, it
should be the doctor's opinion which
should count..

DR. DUTTA RAY: Yes. That should
be more important. What is happening
is, i patient jg produced before the
Board of Visitors and they do not
agree to discharge, the doctor is put
in a very awkward situation. And
it does happen.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Please¢ make &
note of this. We will have to discuss
this.

Then with regard to the period of
validity of the receptions order, ag in
case of medical certificate.  Within
how many days after the issue of the
reception order the patient ghould be
admitted—that should also be speci~
fled. I think this is a wery wvalid
point.

Any of the Members would like to:
ask him any question?

SHRI MAQSOOD ALI KHAN: So
far as the psychiatric clinics or hos-
pitals are concerned, in view of the
fact that there jg paucity of beds
available in the country, would you
like that admission should be only
restricted to those mentally ill persons
who are either offenders or danger to
society or nuisance to society?

DR. DUTTA RAY: ] think the in-
tention of this Biil is to define and
regulate the admission of gsome special
categories of mentally ill cases. Other-
wise, there are diverse types of men-
tal patients who are being treated by



private doctors, .doctors hawving pri-
vate nursing homes, phychiatric wards
of General Hospitals, etc. In fact this
should be encouraged. 1 am in full
agreement with the view that a men-
ta] patient should be afforded all pro-
per treatment and medical care and
also with the plea made here that
there are going to be more mental
patients in the district hospital levels.
When the Bill should also foresee
that the quality of care of the mental
patients is taken care of. Right
now we have taken extra-ordi-
nary care of license special hospitals
etc. and we have a system of inspec-
tion of these places. We have given
the facilities of visitors for the
patients. But when it comes to the
genera] wards of say district hospitals,
a patient being kept there, he has no
access to any other forum whether he
can ventilate his problem ang there is
nobody who can inspect the quality
of the care he receives. That is why
1 thought that even the psychiatric
wards of General Hospitals should
come within the purview of this will
somewhere in some form.

SHRI MAQSOOD ALI KHAN: As
there is a paucity of accommodation
available in the psychiatric wards
of the hospitals, should the govern-
ment give any subsidy to those nurs-
ing homeg which are run by private
psychiatrists? Do you think that we
should encourage them that way or
there is no need?

DR. DUTTA RAY: I do not think
there is any need for subsidy unless
the government ¢oresee that there is
no scope of maintaining general wards
which the poor patients can use. The
licensing system itself adds to the
stature of that particular nursing
home, its reputstion, etc. and the per-
‘son in charge should benefit from it.

SHRI MAQSOOD ALl KHAN:
Having gone through the Bill as such
and just you were mentioning or
rather hinting at it that it iz more or
less a procedural law that we are
making and there is nothing said in
the Bill for the amelioration of the

conditions of the psychiatric hospitals
and clinics and a gort of control over
them which could have been to the
detriment of the patientg as such. Do
you think that any provisions are
necessary to be added so ag to speak
of the treatment that is going to be
given and other things?

DR. DUTTA RAY: I think that
would imply that we have to fix a
percentage of our total nationa] but
at for health services and also have a
special law which gays that so much
percentage should be ear-marked for
patients needing mental heaith, That
would perhaps go along way
towards helping these hospitals
‘which are run on very poor economic
conditions.

SHRI MAQSOOD ALI KHAN: 1
have done.

‘MR. CHAIRMAN: This morning
another witness told us that in Indo-
nesia they tried to separate mental
health ¢rom other types of health care
so that they may get more facilities
but now they are very sorry for hav-
ing done it.

So this is something nobody can say
how it will turn out. Anyway the
scope of this Bill does not cover this.
It is only to regulate the admission
and to safeguard the rights of the
mentally sick people with regard to
property, etc.

Thank you very much.

(The witness then withdrew)

1V. Dr. R. L. Kapur

(The witness was called in and he
took his seat).

MR. CHAIRMAN: Dr. Kapur, I
would like to extend welcome to you
on behalf of the committee and also
on my own behalf and I would
also like to express my thanks that
wou could find time and take the
trouble of coming over here and ap-
pear before the committee. ..
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DR. R. L. KAPUR: Very kind of
you.

MR. CHAIRMAN: May I explain to
you that your evidence shall be treat-
ed as public and is liable to be pub-
lished unless a specific request is
made by you to treat all or any part
of jt as confidential. But even in
that case, it shal]l be liable to be made
available to the Memben; of Parlia-
ment.

With this preliminary remark, 1
would like you to make such remarks
as you would like to make before you
go on to clause by clause considera-
tion if you so wish or i¢ you wish to
come straightaway to clause by clause
you can do so.

DR. KAPUR: I just wanted to say
that when the committee visited
Bangalore, we had given a draft
memorandum at that time. But after
we had the discussion with the com-
mittee, I had the occasion to reconsi-
der some of the points we made there
and I would like to introduce some
changes there.

Having said that, 1 would like to
move from clause to clause.

SHRI MAQSOOD ALI KHAN: This
ig in adidtion to what you have ad-
dressed?

DR. KAPUR: In a addition and some
changes also. Slight alterations.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You may
just mention briefly what you
have stated in your memorandum as
preliminary remarks. You are adding
to them whatever you would like to
add in the light of our discussion with
you.

DR. KAPUR: 1 will read out the
Preliminary remarks.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Add what you
wish to add ag you go along.

DR. KAPUR; ] would read as fol-
lows:

“The concept of mental illness

hap ocomsiderably changed recently.
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It is considered ag illness just like
any other illness. With the advent
of new drugs and new approach on
treatment, even the highly excited
mentally-il] patient can be cont-
rolled within twenty-four hours so
that he would not be dangerous
either to himsef or to others. Fur-
ther, if the treatment js initiated as
soon as the illness appears many
patients can be rapidly improved
and could go back into the society.
Therefore, the aim of the new Men-
ta] Health Bill should be to provide
early treatment facilities to all the
mentally ill persong and, at the
same time, it should help to elimi-
nate the stigma and the ¢ear among
the public by making the psychiatric
hospitals and psychiatric nursing
homes easily accessible to the pub-
lic as that of a genera] hospital or
nursing home.

(1) Menta)] illness and mental
retardation are two different condi-
tions. They should not be clubbed
together. Preferably, a separate
Bill or Chapter for mentally retard-
ed persong should be provided in the
Mental Health Act”.

MR. CHAIRMAN: I may add here
that it has been suggested that not
only menta] retardation and mental
subnormalities should be taken out
but conditions like psychosomatic
disease and psychoneouroses should
also be removed from the definition of
menta] illness. They are capable of
great mischief if they are left there.
Even the mention of gchizophrenia is

being opposed as it has been abused
by us to divorce act.

DR. KAPUR: 1 do accept that. 1
was making very general remarks
here. The particular point about psy-
chosomatic illness to which you made
a mention I was coming to that. There
ig no provision in the present Mental
Health Bill for the treatment of
mentally il] peraons in a general hos-



pital. But, at present, with the assis-
tance of the Governent of India, psy-
chatric units have been started in
teaching district hospitals in almost
all the States, Therefore, all the pro-
visiong of the Mental Health Act
should be extended to the psychiatric
units of the general hospitals.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We would like
to be guided here.
B
Dr. Wig from Chandigarh made a
very strong plea that we should keep
the psychiatric wards of a general
hcapital out of the purview of the Act
for two reasons, firstly they are pri-
marily gor the voluntary cases and
there should not be any difficulty
placed in the way of voluntary ad-
missions. As you yourself have gaid
mentally sick should be treated, like
any other patients who can go to the
hospital or nursing home when they
wish the same facility, also be accessi-
ble to these mentally sick patients;
secondly, the general Hospitals today
are free from stigma. Once you bring
them within the Act, the stigma will
come. However ignorant, it might be,
it ig still there with regard to the ad-
mission in the menta)l hospitals. Other-
wise, the mentally sick people can be
exploited. That is why he made a
very strong plea that he did not want
any magisterially committed caseg in
psychiatric wards of general hospitals
and he did not want these psychiatric
wards to come under the purview of
this Act. In ¢act there may be a
dificulty in a district where there i3
no other placa for the mentally sick in
case g patient is considered to be dan-
gerous to himself or to a community
8; to where they should take him: or
else he will be sent to jail. Dr. Wig
said the patient should not be sent to
jail. If there is no mental hospital
and the patient is not to be sent to
the psychiatric ward in a genera] hos-
pital where i3 he to go?! That was
painted out to him. I would like you

to enlighten uy as to what should pe
done in these two extremes. Dr. Wig
wanted us to keep off our hands com-
pletely so far ag this is concerned.
Would you enlighten on this?

DR. KAPUR: It jg a difficult situa-
tion. I was wanting the general hos-
pitals to come within the purview of
the Bill and, to the extent possible,
facilities €or the psychiatric patients
should be provided for.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You mean proper
standards of service should be pro-
vided.

DR. KAPUR: What I am going to
say later js this. In a suitable place,
I would like to introduce a clause for
the informal admission as prevalent
in al} the other countries.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Do you consin-
der the voluntury admission is equi-
valent to that?

DR. KAPUR: Informal admission ig
not equivalent to that. If you read my
reply, the first clause in the Bill pro-
videg for the voluntary admission of
a patient. When admission is sought
for a voluntary patient, he hes
to give 72 houn: ‘notice. Similarly
for discharge 72 hours notice has to
be given.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We are making
it 24 hours.

DR. KAPUR: 1 would suggest that
the informa] admission ig taken just
like any other patient. He can leave
at any time he wants. He is allowed to
leave at any time he likes. That is
what I would suggest in the case of
an informal admission.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Not even 24
hours noticz. He should be allowed
at any time he wants to leave.

DR. KAPUR: If the doctors think
that this person is now guitable for
the informal admission, there should
be change-over to some other way of



admission. A person Who is given the
informal admission should be able to
leave the place.

MR. CHAIRMAN: He comesg volun-
tarily and so he goes voluntarily.

DR. KAPUR: This js different from
the voluntary admission. Now I want
to go to the introduction. The ad-
mission procedures are cumbersome
ag pointed out in the Mental Health
Bill. 1 would like to take them up
when I come to clause by clause consi-
deration.

MR. CHAIRMAN: May I mention
what has been suggested? It has been
suggested to us that there should be
three types of admissions—voluntary
admission—this may be made com-
pletely voluntary for admission and
discharge the second iz what we call
admission under special circumstances
include what we call temporary tréat-
ment order’ under D.M.O’g advice. But
the provision of these two clauses
may be combined; the third is the ad-
mission of the committed magisterial
order in certain special types of cases
and no other type of admission.

DR. KAPUR: 1 would like to elabo-
rate on this ag I go over to the clau-
ses. If you permit me I will find it
easier as I go through the Bill.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We now proceed
with the clauses. You start with sub
clause. You have said that ‘Mental
subnormality and psychosomatic dis-

order’ should be deleted from the
definition. What about psychoneu-
roses?

DR. KAPUR: I think that mentally-
sick under neurotic condition is a
mental illness.

MR. CHAIRMAN: True. But who
does not suffer from some kind of
neuroses some time or the other, If
you keep it, thén it becomed one of
the clauses to be exploited fér putting
a person behind the bar for ulterior
matives. i
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DR. KAPUR: 1 do not think this
can be exploited that way because the
condition under which a person is put
under ‘reception order’, is specific
That is the person is dangerous to
himself or to the society. So, the
psychosomatic or psychoneuroses is
certainly a mental illness. I do not
think this can be mischievously used
because the treatments under which
a patient ultimately gets mdmitted to
a psychiatric hospital is for a long-
term. These are very much specific
and the termgs are very much specific.
The patient is either dangercus to
himself or to the society and so
longterm admission is sought.

MR. CHAIRMAN: True. If a girl getg
married and she suddenly develops
hysterical fits she may be admitted to
the hospital, and evil diverc2 may be
sought.

DR. KAPUR: That is where the
guestion of service comes in. A
medical officer has to certify whether
the person has to be admitted under
special circumstances or under deten-
tion order or not. I do not think that
they will use that condition to admit
the patient for a longterm. We should
not. The only thing is that for the
psychonuroses, the kind of facilities
that is given for a longterm treatment
of the patient may be missed.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Who denies them
the facilities for treatment we are
trying to make the treatment facilities
separately available on a voluntary
basis. Why do you want to bring in
the psychoneuroses within the pur-
view of this Act. Psyehosis ‘Yes,
There may be cases which must be
admitted in their own interests Lut
psycho-neurosis can come as oute
patient cases,

DR. KAPUR: Mental sub-normality
hag to be treated by people. educated
in special knowledge. T am trying to
kéep theée people out for that parti-
cular reason.

SHRI MAQSOOD AL! KHAN: Our
aim is to make the phrace ‘mentally



ill person’ most understandable. How
can we improve on this definition?

DR. KAPUR: 1 want to remogve
mental deficiency. 1 will read out:

“A person who is in need of
psychatric treatment for reason of
mental dis-order and includes. . .”

MR. CHAIRMAN: Let us stop at
the word ‘dis-order’ and remove the
rest,

DR. KAPUR: At the moment what
happens is that many of the mental-
ly retarded are put in the mental
hospitals. If we have a separate Act
for the mentally retarded then it will
be taken care of.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Let us proceed

further. g

DR. KAPUR: We had earlier sug-
gested that the definition of g psy-
chiatrist should include medical prac-
titioners possessing post-graduate
degree. Since then I have reviewed
my position and I have thought that
there are so few trained psychiatrists
in the country. So, I drop my sug-
gestion. I now come to Chapter II. Let
us see 3(1). It says:—

‘The Central Govt, may, in any
part of India, or the State Govt.
may, within the limits of its jurisdi-
ction . . .’

I suggest that we may say ‘will’ in
both the places in place of ‘may’,

MR. CHAIRMAN: Lawyers say; 1
am told, that both may and shall have
the same meaning.

SHRI KRISHNA NAND JOSHI:; In
the Rajya Sabha in a recent discus-
sion, the Central Government point-
ed out the ‘may’ will be treated as
recommendation.

DR. KAPUR: There are various
parts of India where for miles
around there are no hospitals at
all. State and Central Governments
have to take responsibility.

MR. CHAIRMAN: ‘May’ is all right,

AN HON. MEMBER.,
mandatory.

‘Shall’ is

MR. CHAIRMAN: Jt has been stated
that rules have to be evolved to pro-
tect the mentally-retarded persons. As
things stand, we cannot force the
State and Central Government. That
is what has been said. ’

DR. KAPUR: You find in the
streets several mentally-retarded
persons; their number i more than
those who go to hospitals, They cer-
tainly need help and protection. You
can’t have mental hospitals like a
honeycomb. If you can think of some
other procedure, we are most willing
to accept it.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You have said
somethiing about convalescent cases.
You said that children of 15 years or
so should be treated separately ins-
tead of mixing them with adults.

DR. KAPUR: If this can be work-
ed and maintained well and good.

MR. CHAIRMAN: It has been stat-
ed that age of 18 may be reduced to
15 years for this purpose.

DR. KAPUR: 15 is acceptable, There
are certain special kinds of pediatric
illness which is appearing commonly
among children of 15 years age-
group: They need special treatment.
This is different from those of adults,
Below 15 you have this special cate-
gory.

DR. SAROJINI MAHISHI: They
need special protection under Cr.
PC.

MR. CHAIRMAN: They are tried for
juvenile offences.

We are still on Chapter II

DR. KAPUR: I am thinking of
€lause 6 now, having regard to the
nature of the area.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We have been
adviced to delete that.

DR. KAPUR: Then 1 will go to the
next point. Minimum facilities should



be the same all over the country. This
is not spelt out. This is left to this
States,

MR. CHAIRMAN: You say, rule
should be made Centrally; all States
should implement them. There should
not be different rule in different
States.

DR. KAPUR: Since you have dJde-
leted 6(a), 9 also will go.

MR. CHAIRMAN: That is conse-
quential. Regarding 13(2) it is said
that inspection officer's power to see
all records is contrary to the require-
ment of confidentiality. What do you
say?  §)

DR. KAPUR; It is for that reason
I have mentioned this. I am in double
mind, so to say, on this issue. Patients
may be held up against their will and
so on. Some kind of inspection facility
will have to be available. I am not
however making comment about it.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Inspection officer
has to have access to record. That is
one thing if it is felt that he cannot
function without them. May be, you
can have two types of records—one,
very confidential, not to be shown to
anybody without the paient’s permis-
sion—and the other a more general
one—that may be about the patient,
about treatmet given and so on and
so forth,

DR. KAPUR: I could have radily
agreed if certain things are there. We
know the way things are done and the
way records are kept under pressure
and 1 do not think the people will be
able 10 make such distinctions very
easily. This is not strictly enforce-
able. *

MR. CHAIRMAN: This record has
to be made available to inspecting
people; confidentiality should not
come in the way. Ig it your opinion?

DR. KAPUR: He hag taken the
hippocratic oath; he cannot disclose
outside.

MR, CHAIRMAN: Has the Inspec-

tor 10 be & psychistrist before he
sees medical records.

DR. KAPUR: Yes,

MR. CHAIRMAN: He should ins-
pect the record; he should be a psy-
chietrist; he should take an oath to
keep them confidential

DR. KAPUR: He is under an oath.
He is a medical man. He can't
diviulge. If he reveals, he can be
taken to task for that.

AN HON. MEMBER: You mid
wbout pressure. What do you mean
by it?

DR. R, L. KAPUR; The possibility
of pressure exists. Whenever a per-
son hag his freedom curtailed, as a
mentally ill person has his freedom
curtailed, it is likely to be misused. It
has been misused in various parts of
the world. To keep the patient
against his wishes, what I am saying
is that an Inspecting Officer, it he is
able to see the file, if necessary, can
examine the particular patient and
see whether the person needs to be
there or not, whether he has to be
kept against higs wishes or not. A
person may be kept in the hospital
against his wish but such a condition
should not be prevalent. While we
should make it easy for the doctors to
look after the patients, we should not
make it a sort of pressurization in
certain cases,

Then coming to Chapter-1II, para-1,

I may make some general comments.
I would like to change the categories
of admission and the categories T am
suggesting now are these:

“Informal admission"

“Voluntary admission”

“A reception order”, and

“Emergency admission”,

1 had in my earlier memory omitted
“Emergency admission”. But I am
bringing it back, the reason being that
I re-read the clause and we were
hoping that “Emergency. admission”
could be included “sdmission under
special  ciroumstances. But that
needs two certificates. [ suggest that
“omergency admission” should be



possible on a certificate of one doctor
only. It showd e any general medi-
cal practitioner for & very short time
because emergency is emergency. We
cannot go on looking for a doctor.
There may be a paranoid patient or
a patient under alcoholic hallucina-

tion.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Another sug-
gestion is that a patient who is
brought to the psychiatric institution
may be admitted without any certi-
ficate by the doctors of that institu-
tion or the doctors may keep a panel,
a8 they are doing in Australia, for
this purpose. And then one of the
panel of doctors may be asked to scc
the patient and give a certificate but
the relatives should not be asked to
go from pillar to post for obtaining
the certiflcate,

DR. R. L. KAPUR: I am absolutely
in agreement if there is a panel of
doctors available. We could pres-
cribe that every institution should
have a panel of doctors who can be
sent for. But the patient must be
admitted immediately.

do you

MR, CHAIRMAN: Why
What

want “informal admission”?
about “voluntary admission”,

DR. R. L. KAPUR: If we can
change the word “voluntary” to mean
that the moment he wishes to be
discharged, he should be allowed.

MR. CHAIRMAN: I would like you
to spend a little time with the officials
of the law Ministry and the Ministry
and you can give some guggestions re-
garding the Chapters 3 and 4. Now,
we will leave the “admission proce-
dure”’ because we are in general
agreement. Then we g0 to Chapter IV
Part-I. Let us go to page 20, Clause
41, Chapter IV—Inspection by visit-
ors.

R. L. KAPUR: I think it is

mitten of three pemons inApesting
overy 'indlvidusgl is not at all possible.
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MR. CHAIRMAN: It has been sug.
gested that instead of 3, it should pe
5 and one should be a psychiatrist
and one sHould be a medical officer,
who are not the Government em-
ployees of any kind. They shoulg he
from outside. The gecond thing is that
I would agree we should leave the
visitors to go into those cases where
a complaint was made to them. The
third thing is that it has been sug.
gested to us that the decision of the
doctor with regard to the discharge
should not be subject to visitor’s ap-
proval,

.. DR. R. L, KAPUR: That is what I
was bringing in that if the dector
says that the patient can be discharged
we shoud not wait till the end of the
month for the discharge.

MR, CHAIRMAN: Now, with regard
to leave of a person, you have said
that it should not be more than 15
days.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Again, if you
discharge the patients and they come
back, but the beds are filled in the
meantime, what happens? Moreover,
because there is a wedding in the
house or the patient wants to be with
his relations, discharging him might
become necessary. If you discharge
him, but if it is necessary to re-admit
him and no vacancy of bed is there,
what will you do?

DR. KAPUR: By keeping the bed
vacant, we probably serve the cause
less. The condition in the new hos-
pitals is not such that we cannot take
in a féw more persons. If the per-
2on is really in a position to stay
away for more than 15 days, he should
be really discharged.

SHRI MAQSOOD ALI KHAN:
There are two important facts of law.
In the Indian Lunacy Act of 1912, we
have defined the word ‘lunatic’ which
says: ‘“Lunatic means an idiot or a
person. of unsound mind”. You must
have noticed that in different cases,
persons of unsound mind have been
deprived of very many rights; and
there dre cases whete these persons
are admitted to mental hospitals. The
other relatives are interesdted parties.



They try to preve that the person con-
cerned is of unsound mind. He is
thus deprived of either succession or
right to property or is absolved of
the gravity of a crime. From ‘luna-
tic’, we have now switched over to a
new deflnition, viz. ‘mentally iIl’.
Pon’t you think that it is necessary
for us to add a new definition in our
new Bill, saying that treating any
person as a mentally ill person does
not necessarily mean that he has
been of unsound mind? We may have
another definition.

MR. CHAIRMAN: How can you do
it? A man who has been mentally
sick, has been of unsound mind.

SHRI MAQSOOD ALI KHAN:
Here we have to see what was the
gravity of the mental illness for which
he was being admitted. You will ad-
mit that an idiot is not the person
who has been defined in the present
Bill. Idiocy is of a more grave nalure;
and even the lunation or a man of
sound mind is not the man who comes
to the doctors for psychiatric treat-
ment for, say, psychoneurosis. He is
not a man of unsound mind. In these
cases, how would you distinguish it,
so that he is not called a man of un-
sound mind—in respect of certain
cases e.g. where he is going to be de-
prived of his property?

MR. CHAIRMAN: It seems to me
that we are trying to make up for
our jgnorance this way. Instead of
educating ourselves, we want the law
to do it.

DR. KAPUR: It is not really re-
levant any more. The terms ‘un-
sound mind’ and ‘idiot’ were used at
that time. Your fears, at the moment,
are the hang-overs of that past.

SHRI MAQSOOD ALI KHAN: In
the Lunacy Act it was there, There,
‘idiot' and ‘unsound mind’ were
written. And it was defilned as such.
That is why in all other criminal and
civil Actg this phrase is used. We have
changed themn, There is a new
phraseology altogether. Are we going
to make all the changes in all other

Acts, or to leave it as it i8, so that
lawyers and doctors are in a state of
confusion? ‘

DR. KAPUR: I think you will
have to make the necessary changes
in the other Act to go along with this.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The only defini-
tion used was ‘mental disorder’ and
not ‘unsound mind'.

SHRI KRISHNA NAND JOSHI:
Once we leave out ‘idiot’ and other
words, consequential amendments
have to be made, wherever necessary.

MR. CHAIRMAN: 1t is not for us
to consider it, it is for the Lew Min-
istry. Let us now see page 33, sec-
tion 92, It says there:

“The medical officer in charge
of psychiatric hospital or psyehia-
tric nursing home wherein any men-
tally ill person is dctained, under
the provisions of this Act, shall,
once in every six months, make a
special report regarding the mental
and physical condition of every
such person to the authority under
whose orders the person is go
detained.”

It has been suggested to us that
this should be deleted.

DR. KAPUR: I agree.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Why Don’t you
think that it is the correect thing to
do? Only in the case of committed
patients that once in six months a
report should be made.. Majority will
be voluntary or special circumstance
cases

DR. KAPUR: Committed cases are
being reviewed every month, and not
once in six months. Moreover, the
Board of Visitors comes once a month.
Automatically all these committed
cases are going to be reviewed at that
time.

MR. CHAIRMAN: They cannot do
it. It is the medical officer who can.
The Board may not give a detailed re-
port on them. Once in six months, let
the medical officer in charge put up a
report before the Visitors, or the
magistrate.



DR. KAPUR: The magistrate is a
member of the visiting board. It
seems unnecessary, becaugse we are
doing it once a month.

MR. CHAIRMAN: In some places,
it is not done. In some places, it
is not done even once a year,

DR. KAPUR: Thig Bill makes it
obligatory.

SHRI KRISHNA NAND JOSHI:
Suppose g patient is there under g
reception order. As soon as the case
goeg from the magistrate, he hecomes
@ guardian of the patient. He is ex-
pected to know what is happening to
that case,

MR, KAPUR: He knows it.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Ajg a visitor, he
goeg in g different capacity. But here
he has orderéd that the patient should
be hospitalized. What harm js there
if the report goes to him?

DR. KAPUR: It is a question of
simplification of procedures. The
magistrate hag come and seen him
once a month—or he is expected to
do it.

SHRI KRISHNA NAND JOSHI:
He may not get time. It is not neces-
sary that he should come with the
Board. He may be in the panel.

SHRI KRISHNA NAND JOSHI:
But what ig the official report? The
regular record is maintained there.

DR. KAPUR: But if you are not
satisfled with that, I accept that we
have difficulty in enforcing it.

SHRI RAJSHEKHAR KOLUR: Sup.
posing the patient wants to go out
and he informs the doctor about it.
But the doctor feels that he needs
more medical treatmient and care and
he should mot be alloweq to go out
without proper care and protection.
We had decided about it im 1972 and
now you are suggesting that we should
not specify the time. When he got
admitted, he was all right.

DR. KAPUR: I wanteq formal ad-
mission and the voluntary admission
to remain separately.

SHRI RAJSHEKHAR KOLUR:
When he got admitted, at that time,
he was all right. When he wants to
go out, at that time, his condition is
not that much all right.

DR. KAPUR: We can change over
to the admission under gpecial cir-
cumstances. We have that clause.

MR. CHAIRMAN: I thank you very
much for taking the trouble of com-
ing over here and assisting the Com-
mittee on the subject, I would like
you to join us a cup of tea and there
the Memb#¥s may talk to you infor-
mally. Tomorrow, we are meeting at
11 AM. Then we will be going to
Tihar Jail at 2 P.M.

(The Committee then adjourned)
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Dr. (Brig.) S. S. Syalee

(The witness was called in, and he
took his seat).

. MR. CHAIRMAN: Dr. Syalee, I
welcome you to the Committee.

(Direction 58 read out)

We have received your Memoran-
dum. Would you like to say some-
thing about your memorandum first?

DR, S. S. SYALEE; Thank you
very much. I have only thre2> obser-
vations to make.

Firstly, as regards Section 20, sub-
section 2, p. 9, it is felt that a medical
certificate from a qualified psychiatrist
ps defineq under Chapter I, para 2(r),
Is far more reliable than certificates
from two medica] practitioners, This
sub-section should be amended suit-
ably. I suggest that every applica-
tion under sub-section {1) of this Act
shall be accompanied by either two
medical practitioners’ certificates of
whom one shall be a medical practi-
tioner in the service of Government
or a qualified psychiatrist.

You may not be aware of the
various complexities of the mentally
ill people. Therefore, this sub-sec-
tion should be amended as I have
suggested, 1 feel one qualified psy-
chiatrist’'s certificate is much more
valid and adequate enough rather
than having two certificates from the
general medical practitioners.

MR, CHAIRMAN: The problem is
that the number of psychiatrists in
the country is so small that §# will be
extremely difficult for the people
coming from the rura] areas, from the
villages, to arrange for the certificate.

In fact, it has been suggested 1o us
that we should not insist on their
bringing a certificate.  With great
difficulty, they bring a patient from
the interior areas, They go to the
institution ang the institution may
admit them straightway. The officer
of the institution shoulg be compe-
tent enough to see whether the patient
needs psychiatrist treatment or not.
There may be a panel of doctors kept
by the institution one or Two of whom
can be called to review whether the
admission has been right or wrong.
Otherwise, if We ask them to go in
search of a psychiatrist, they will be
either fleeced or put to great harass-
ment. We want to make it very
simple,
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Thirdly, the admission shoulg be
on the commital of the magistrate in
special type of cases, These are the

only types of admissions. We should
not insist upon either a certificate

from the psychiatrist or the general
medical. practitioner.

DR. S. S. SYALEE: I entirely agree
with you. It that is your view and
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the consensus of the Committee, 1
would certainly support it. I would
suggest that this sub-section should be
completely deleted, If the Bill is go-
ing to be passed as it is, then amend-
ment is submitted.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We take note of
your suggestion, The Chapters relat-
ing to admissions are being re-cast in
the light of the evidence that has
been given by you and _ others who
have appeared before tbe Committee.

DR. S, S. SYALEE: I would certain-
ly support your view that these cum-
beysome procedures are the main
hurdle in the adequate  treatment of
the mentally ill persons. They should
be removed, That is a very progres-
sive idea.

DR. SYALEE; The same clause
22(8) pertains to the same subject
matter, So it is decided to forgo the
whole procedural and cumbersome
demands according to this Bill. This
may be completely removed.

Then in clause 40, sub-clausa (3)—
it is felt that some guidelines should
be laid down by way of general direc-
tions that the visitors should be men
of public eminence such as aducation-
ists, lawyers, social workers, doctors,
ete, In the past difficulties have been
experiencedvin dealing with some
visitors having absolutely no- educa-
tional qualifications at all. In the
present Bill no guidelines have been
given as to the qualificatione of the
visitors. 1 sugg®t that the visitors
should have some background before
they are made official visitors accard-
ing to this Act. They should be educat-
ed people who should be.. able to
understang and discuss- with the
Superintendent of the Mentsl Hospital
a8 t9 what is exactly the correct posi-
tion, at the time when he visits,
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SHRI ANANT DAVE; At least,
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SHRI MAQSOOD ALI KHAN:
Brigadier, please pardon me for being
bit inquisitive about certain things.
But I want it should go on record.

I want to know what is your stand-
in the field, your experienc» and
at your qualifications are,

in

DR. SYALEE:; 1 am a Graduate of
General Medicme and Surgery. I am
DPM from London. I am an FRCP
andg also FRCS.

SHRI MAQSOOD ALI KHAN; How
long have you been practising?

DR. SYALEE: 34 years®

SHRI MAQSOOD AL KHAN: Are
you attached to any private clinic at
present.

DR. SYALEE:; | am attacheq to a
private clinic called East-West Medi-
ca] Centre, 38, Golf Course Road and
also Nandi Nursing Home.

SHRI MAQSOOD ALI KHAN: Dur-
ing the period of your practice did
you find any hurdles created by the
Indian Lunacy Act of 19127 Did you
come across any so far as that Act
was concerned?

DR. SYALEE; During the last one
year I have got four cases which need
immediate hospitalisation and treat-
ment but they are not willing to be
treated and the family and the rela-
tives of the patients and the children
are under great stresses and strains.
Just the patients refuse to be admit-
ted,

MR. CHAIRMAN: But it the
patients refuse to be admitted, the
old Act empowers the relatives to go
to the Magistrate and get an order.

DR, SYALEE; Quite often his wife
or the brother or the father move in
them:tm But they feel so reluc-
tant and the f-m!!y feel 50 ashamed
of dragging ‘the case to the Magistrate
and get order to take im to the men-



to persuade them to adopt this atti-
tude, they are not doing it, The cases
are there for the last 6 monthe or a
year. They are in a deplorable condi-
tion,
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DR. BAPU KALDATE; Does the
present Bill solve your difficulty to
any extent and if not, what are your
suggestions.

DR, SYALEE: It is the sentimental
grounds that are the main stumbling
block. Nobody wants to take the lead
and even a psychiatrist of my standing
in the fle]d cannot persuade the rela-
tives concerned to adopt the correct
procedure in the interests of the
patient and the entire family. The
remedy seems to be only this that
any social worker in the area should
be authorised on behalt of the family
to obtain the services of a psychiatrist
or a doctor to deal with the matter.
This is a social matter in which social
agencies must come to the rescue of
the patient and the social agencies
should undertake this responsibility in
the interests of the people concerned.
If the doctor takes the case, he may
be misconstrued that he ‘is interested
in making money. The relatives do
not take the initiative, they just keep
quiet and wait for some miracle to
happen. They adopt all sorts of atti-
tude taking the patients to various
agencies which cannot do anything in
these matters and the right treatment
which is available is not provided. I
fee) that social agencies must be given
this power and that shauld be includ-
ed in the Act that whenever a quali-
fied doctor or psychiatric or any friend
or relative comes and tells them the
real position, they should take the
initiative,

MR. CHAIRMAN; For what? N
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DR. SYALEE: To take the patient
to the hogpital for treatment,

MR. CHAIRMAN: Social agencies
should take, but not relatives?

DR. SYALEE: Relatives, of course,
but, they are not taking an active
part.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Do you expect
the social agencies to take an active
part instead of the family angq the
relative?

DR, SYALEE; I know in England
they have mental health authorities
and in each country there is one per-
son who is authorised to have this
privilege and where he is informed
that Mr. so and so i8 mentally ill in

‘such and such house, he takes up the

entire responsibility of geiting the
legalities and formalities completed.
There_is no provision here in our
counfry. It shoulq be somebody whose
bona fides should be above doubt and
he should not be suspect,

MR. CHAIRMAN: Shri Kachwai.
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SHRIMATI USHI KHAN. Mr.
Kachwai asked and you have said in
para (4) that there should be educa-
tionists, lawyers, social workers and
others, I feel they should cover the
ground except that in the villages at
the district level you know there are
doctors who can certify. So I do not
know why we should have this gene-
ral thing because sometimes in the
villages there is a lot of confusion so
far as land is concerned and penple
try to make others believe that so and
80 is insane and he is not capable of
dealing with his own possessions,
whether it is land or anything else.
I feel that if you are going to have
visitors of the category of the doctors
etc., that would be better rather than
bringing in someone else. What is
your view?

DR, SYALEE: Those visitors only
are authorised who are in the psy-
chiatric hospita]l or psychiatric Nurs-
ing home. If somebody is to vouch-
safe and testify that so and so needs
the psychiatric treatment, any person
who has some social standing whose
bona fides are not in doubt should be

there, He hasthe special knowledge.

And no one would have such influ-
ence. What exactly jis the condition
of the patient if you were to approach
against any individual? You may
make him fit. It is open to him to
vouch, This has been a subjective
science in which anybody who is not
trained and qualified will definitely be
liable to make a mistake.

But, my point is that inifially when
the patient needs treatment and if he
is not getting it or he is not geatting
the benefits of treatment, some social
agency or somebody who is suthorised
to recommend should have the power.
And ultimately it is the psychiarist
and others who are concerneq with
this subject should be able to certify
whether he needs freatment or not.
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SHRI RUDOLPH RODRIQUES:
You have rightly sought clarifications
to Section 40, sub-section (3), You



look at sub-section (2), page 19 of this
bill. What does it say? It says:

“Inspector General of Prisons and
the Head of the Medical Service of
the State shall be ex-Officip Visitors
of all the Psychiatric Hospitals and
Psychiatric Nursing Homes in the
State”.

1 have nothing to say as far as first
part is concerned. If an Inspector
General of Prisons is put in, don’t you
think that this is an undesirable pro-
vision? Don’t you think that the
stigma is being attached here unneces-
sarily?

DR. SYALEE. I am sure that the
gentleman who has drafted this Bill
must have got the provision from the
previous Lunacy Act or something like
that. Previously the Inspector Gene-
rals were given wide powers. That is
why probably it has come, Now the
problem may arise if the Inspector
General of Police has some informa-
tion and, if he wants to salisfy him-
self, whethey anybody is not being
ill-treated or badly treated. If he has
sufficient reasons to helieve, then he
can certainly walk into the mental
hospital so as to satisfy himself.

SHRI RUDOLPH RODRIGUES:. He
does not need visitor.

DR, SYALEE: He can go and ask
for the papers and ask questions
from the head of the Hospital as to
why he is being detained? He can
satisfy himself.

SHRI RUDOLPH RODRIGUES:
He can ask anyone in the hospital.
Should he be necessarily a visitor?

MR. CHAIRMAN: You feel that the
Inspector General of Prisons wil] be
too busy a person to go every month
to the Mental Hospitals and therefore
we should not make him an ex-officio
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visitor, I think this is the duty which
he has tp do. Mental cases were
kept in prisons as is being done in the
capitals of India even to-day. We
visited Tihar Jail where mentdl cases
are kept. So that is the case with
Delhi, This is a hangover from the
past. What Mr. Rodrigues has asked
is: Visitors must not be able to visit
every now and then. He will visit
every month as things stand, We have
been told by institutions that visitors
do not even come once in six months.
Would you like to comment on this?

DR. SYALEE: I do not know whe-
ther the privileges which are granted
to the Inspector General of Prisons is
enjoyed by him or not. But, certain-
ly, 1 have no objection if he has the
privileges, '

MR. CHAIRMAN: That is one thing.
He can go there at any time. There
is another thing, That is there is a
visitor’s group with three in number
or whatever be the number. He is
appointed under the law. Certain res-
ponsibilities have been cast on those
visitors and so they are expected to
g0 and help the doctors in various
ways. Dp you think that one such
person should be the Inspector Gene-
ral of Prisons? That is a question.
You yourself said that the visitors
should be knowledgeable persons. The
question is. Should they also be peo-
ple who have some time to spare or
not?

DR. SYALEE; The Inspector Gene-
ra] of Prisons is supposed to have

spare time. After all this is one of
his legitimate responsibilities and
duties,

MR. CHAIRMAN: What is the

qualification?

DR. SYALEE: If the Inspector
General of Prisons has all the requi-
site qualifications, he can certainly go
and inspect.

MR, CHAIRMAN: What is the
requisite qualification that he should
have? 1.G. Prisons will ceitainly be



a graduate. What other qualifications
do you want for him? Let me get
the clarification from the witness,

DR. SYALEE: If he is an IPS Offi-
cer he is surely competent to become
a visitor in a mental hospital. But, it
may not be the basic qualifications.
At least The appointment which he is
holding qualifies him,

MR. CHAIRMAN: He is not a Police
Inspector. He is only an Inspector
General of Prisons—not Inspector
General of Police.

DR, SYALEE; He may be u medical
officer—either a surgeon or anyone

else.

MR, CHAIRMAN; He may be any-
body from the administrative cadre
risen to the post of an Inspector
General of Prisons.

DR. SYALEE; He is a person who
has got vast experience.

SHRI RUDOLPH RODRIGUES:
We are giving this task to a person
by virtue of his position as LG. of
Prisons and so on. You can’t treat
hospital or nursing home as fomething
like a prison. It is going to he a
stigma.

DR, BAPU KALDATE; We will dis-
cuss details when we come to the
clauses.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Clause 42 says
this.

“Notwithstanding anything con-
tained in section 41, where any
person is detained under the provi-
sions of section 144 of the Air Force
Act, 1850, or section 145 of the Army
Act, 1950, or section 143 or section
144 of the Navy Act, 1957, or sec-
tion 330 or section 335 of the Code
of Criminal Procedure, 1973,—

(i) the Inspector Genera] of
Prisons, where such person is
detained in a jail; or

(ii) the Inspector-General of
Prisons and .all o any three of
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—

the Visitors appointed under sub-
section (1) of section 40, where
such person is detaineq in a psy-
chiatric hospital or psychiatric
nursing home,

shall, once in every six months, visit
such person at the place where he
is detained...” etc.

SHRI RUDOLPH RODRIGUES:
Section 42 does not require Section
40, sub-section (2).

DR.” BAPU KALDATE: AsI said,
we need not go into detailed discussion
on clauses at this stage.

MR. CHAIRMAN. Our witness does
not think there iz any harm in keep-
ing it as it is.
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MR. CHAIRMAN: The position is
this; According to this Act, the Ins-
pector can ask for the record of the
patient; he can look into it, He can
go into it if there is any complaint
that proper treatment ig not given to
the patient. Some people have said,
this contravenes the confidentiality
clause. What is your view?

DR. SYALEE: Whatever the patient
has confided to the doctor is strictly
personal and confidential Il is a
privileged information and no autho-
rity can restrain him in getting such
information. Nobody can force him
to bring out thjs confidential infor-
mation. Now, the question is not about
this. The question is, a patient is
detained in en institution, This infor-
mation can be passed on to the Visi-
tor who should be able to see and
satisfy himseM that the patient iz not
detained without sufficlent reason.



SHRI MALLIKARJUN: You have
said that the patient is detained in an
institution. 8o the information can
be revealed. There are various
patients in various nursing homes and
hospitals and so on, Maybe in one
or two case; such things can happen.
After all, many such persons are
admitted in the private nursing homes
and hospitals and what is the role of
the Visitor in this behalf?

DR. SYALEE; The purposz2 of the
Visitor going there is to satisfy him-
self that in respect of the patient
detained in the psychiatric or mental
hospital his detention is justified. That
is the point,

MR. CHAIRMAN: Sometimes you
get letters from relatives or friends
saying that such and such person has
not been treated well in an institu-
tion. He is neglected, and so on and
go forth. Visitor can look iato it. He
can see whether this is correct or not
correct.

DR. SYALEE: That is there.
should Ve satisfied. Otherwise he
free to lake any action,

AN HON. MEMBER: Educationist,
social worker or a competent person
should be the visitor.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The power is not
given to the visitor but it is given to
the inspector. The inspector hag to
be a psychiatrist.

DR. SAROJINI MAHISHI; Please
look at the definition given in sub-
clauge (m) of page 3. Is it all right?

DR. SYALEE: It is quite exhaus-
tive. It covers practically every
facet.

DR. SAROJINI MAHISHI: No addi-
tion or no substraction.

DR, SYALEE: I think it is exhaus-
tive.

DR. BAPU KALDATE; Is ‘mental-
ly subnormal’ put correctly? Should
it be categorised in this definition?

DR. SYALEE: It is quite possible
that mentally subnormal is better
than mentally retarded.

He
is
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MR. CHAIRMAN: Mental sub-nor-
mality is not a disease, It ig not some-
thing which can't be improved by
treatment. They car't be made to get
over this submormality by keeping
them in ap institution., This is wha&t
has been said by certain others. They
say, these things should be treated
separately. Separate Act should be
provided for that.

DR. SYALEE. Separate Act should
be provideq for that. 1 agree, It
should not be included in this.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You have psy-
chosomatic cases. It is generally gta-
ted that the deflinition ig very wide.
A person having peptic ulcer may
find himself or herself in a mental
hospital. Some relatives or others
interested person may put him away
and that may happen,

DR. SAYALEE: It m#y happen.
Some of these psychosomatic gistur-
bances may persist for many yearsa.
Ultimately the patients may likely to
suffer from a sort of advanced per-
sonality disorder. I'n most of the psy-
chosomatic disorder, it7is the person-
ality disordér along with some per-
sonal ailments which is currently tak-
ing place.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Generally with
every disorder, a man gets depressed.
Then if you take him to mental hos-
pital for emotional manifestations,
that may lead him to suffer from
physical disease. Supposing there is
a case of chronic psychosomatic
patient who gets depression and while
in depression, he needs hospitalisa-
tion. In such a situation, he may be
sent to psychiatric department of a
Genera]l Hospital rather than a men-
tal hospital becaiise he needs general
treatment, '

DR, SYALEE: It ig much rarer for
the psyhiatrist to treat the patient
when he is suffering from psychoso-
matic disorder but gt the same time
he can treat the psychiatric patient
much better than the patient suffering
from psychosomatic disease.
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WiTNEss ExAMINED

Dr. A. B. Dutt

(The witness was called in, and he
took his seat)

MR. CHAIRMAN: Dr. Dutt, we are
gratefu) to you for your coming here
for the gecond time to give evidence
before thig Committee.

I wish to make it clear to you that
your evidence shall be treateq as pub-
lic and {3 Jiable to be published un-
less you specifically desire that all or
aay part of pour evidence is to be
treated as confidential,

T would further explain that even
if you want it to be confidential, it
is liable to be made available to Mem-
bers of Parlisment, You may now
proceed. We have received your
memorandum and have circulated
that. If you wish to say anything or
if you want to add or if you want to
sey in summary or highlight any-
thing on that, you are free to do so.

DR. DUTT: Madam, Chairman, 7
have explained everything in detail
in original as well as in my supple-
mentary memorandum, I have also
made some guggestions or amend-
mentg o the Bill Ip view of the sug-
gestiony made in the memorandum I
would \:e pleased to answer it any
specific questiop is asked from mec
about the amendmentg that I have
Proposed.

DR. SAROJINI MAHISHI. From the
memoragdum thay we have received

Tow et

- A. B. Dutt, Superintendent, Bangiya Unmad Asram, Calcutta,

it seems that you want the definitica
in Section 2 to be substituted for the
one already in the Bill,

DR. DUTT: Madam, have suggest-
ed certain modifications as this ig a
Menta} Health Act and not merely a
Mental Hospital Act or Menta] Nur-
stng Home Act. So, the words ‘Men-
tal Hospital' and ‘Psychiatric Nursing
Home’ be amended as ‘Psychiatric
facility’.

Section 2(f) should be read asi—

“licensed psychiatric facility’
meang a psychiatric hospital psy-
chiatric nursing home, psychiatric
unit of a general hospita] or psy-
chiatric day hospital as the cese
may be, licensed or deemed to be
licensed, under thig Act.”

MR. CHAIRMAN.
to the Members that they may lovk at
the paper in which Dr. Dutt has made
suggestions for amendments.

I would suggest

DR. SAROJINI MAHISHI: After
looking into hig paper only I have
asked him the question. Dr. Dutt's
suggestion is witp regard to the defi-
nition—Section 2 of the Bill—section
to be substituted by what he has men-
tioned. Under Prolonged Care and
Treatment Order, he wants it to mean
an order made under the provisions
of this Act for admission etc. etc. He
wants the whole of it Ts to be speci-
fied by the definition clause.



DR. DUTT: That is correct,

MR. CHAIRMAN: Do you wish to
add anything to the existing one?

DR. DUTT: I have suggested that
certain terms ghould be modified. I
have suggested under Sec. 2(f) for the
existing term ‘licensed phychiatric
facility’ should be substituted, I have
also suggested that the word ‘Magis-
trate’ ghould be replaced by the words
‘Justice of Peace’. Also I have sug-
gested that ‘Justice of Pe__ace’ means
‘Ex-Officio Justice of Peace’.

'"MR. CHAIRMAN. Dr. Dutt don't
you realise that Justice of Peace is
not everywhere but Magistrates are
everywhere. Perhaps Justice of Peacc
may be only in a very few places.
You are thinking of Calcutta. And so
you are talking in that fashion.

DR. DUTT: Madam, I have sug-
gested that the ‘Justice of Peace’
means ‘Ex-officio JiEtice of Peace’.

(a) in relation to a State or Union
Territories the Chief Mental Wel-
fare Officer,

(b) in relation {0 a metropolitan
area or district, '

(i) District Menta] Welfare Officer.

(ii) Chief Medica) Officer
Health.
(iii) Sub-divisiona} Medical Offi-
cer.

of

Instead of ‘Sub-Divisional Magis-
trate’, I have suggested the words
‘Sub-Divigional Medical Officer’. Also
1 have suggesteq that the Chief Medi-
cal Officer ghoulq take over the role
of doing the things of the District
Magistrate under this Act. He has to
have gome judicial powerg or execu-
tive powers. And so they should be
ex-officio Justice of Peace as is being
done in Trinidad and Tobago so that
there is o additional expenditure for
this, Gradually we can have district
Mental Welfare Officerg who will take
over the functions of the sub-divi-
siona] medical officey or chiet medi-

112

cal officer who are at present not psy-
chiatrists. We have got to appoint
one Chief Mental Health Welfare offi-
cer for the whole State. I have not
suggested dhything which will in-
volve any expenditure either to the
States or to the Centre as these peo-
ple are available everywhere.

I have also suggested that Justice
of Peace appointed by the State Gov-
ernment in relation to the entire State
or Union Territory should be a Psy-
chiatrist with at jeast ten years of
experience after obtaining post-gra-
duate qualifications. Psychiatrists are
also available in plenty in this coun-
try who can also do this thing along
with others. '

MR. CHAIRMAN: You want the
magisterial powers to be given to the
medica] people. You want the whole
thing to be processed through the
medica] officerg and not through the
magistrates. This I can understand.

Any further question on thig gide?

SHRI SHKTI KUMAR SARKAR:
Dr. Dutt do you think that the mental
illaess as defined in the Act jg suffi-
cient to cover all the problems rge-
lating to the mental illness?

DR. DUTT: I think so.

SHRI SAKTI KUMAR SARKAR:
Do you fee] that fhere should be any
other change made to the Bill as sug-
gested by other witnesses? '

DR. DUTT: I do not know what has
been suggested by the othey witnesses.
In UK. the mental iliness has been
defined but not in our case.

SHRI SAKT] KUMAR SARKAR:
Kindly give your valued opinion to
each and every clause.

DR. A. B. DUTT: Since this pro-
posed Act says that ‘“mentally ii] per-
gson” means a perso. who ig in need
of psychiatric treatment by reasop of
mental disorder or mental deficiency
or of any disturbance in hig behaviour
or menta} state and includeg g person



whe has all or ‘sny of the clinical con-
ditions known -@p. paycioses, phycno-
neuroses, psychopathic “state, addition
mental sub-normality or psychosoma-
tic disorder of such pther condition of
the like nature as may be prescribed;”

‘SHRI SAKTI KUMAR SARKAR:
‘Mental ‘defficiency does not mean
mental disorder.

DR. A. B. DUTT. It may be men-
tal disorder, it may noy be mental ill-
ness. In the UK. under this Meatal
Act of 1959, everything has come un-
der the term mental disorder. Men-
tal illness meang psychopathic state,
addition, mental sub-normalijty or
psychosematic disorder, etc. So, every-
thing comes under this. I think these
sgze & good working condition.

SHRI KRISHNA NAND JOSHI: On
page 21 of your note, you have said
‘that the Bill should be amended in
such a ‘manner Ip encCourage the
families anq family physician and not
the gazetted Medical Officers in get-
ting actively involved jii the treat-
ment of -psychiatric patients and on
the other gide you have said that 80
per cent of the people are poor. Do
you think that family physicians are
available to each and every patient?

" DR. A. B, DUTT: I wanted to get
the general practitioners ‘involved.
The General Praétitioners are plenty
in every corner of the country, But
the General Practitioners on psychia-
iric ‘treatment side are not available.
Just tp have a certificate for getting
admission to a Menta) h0sp1tal, there
is no need to spend a huge amount on
psychiatrigy, or the Gazetted Medical
Officers who ‘may not know, anything
about mentnl illness |

That ig why I guggested the Gene-
ral Practitioners and family physi-
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cians should be involved. We talk.

about . the ‘para-medical -doctors ‘and
even we talk shout the bare-foet doc-
tors. Here we have excluded the
thSOn "whp "wATl ultimately take care
of the patients. “Phat s ‘the genreral

into it.
tion of Mental Health Tribunal

practitioney and family physioian. Iy
is very easy to get a prescription
from the doctor but it is very diffi-
cult to get a certificate from o psy-
chiatrist. Equally gazetted Medical
Officers are not in plenty. This is
the problem. That is why I suggest-
ed like that.

CHAIRMAN: There are two main
things in your suggestion. You do
not want ‘Magistrates to be brought
Now, you want the Institu.
will
you please elaborate the complete
'‘mental health tribunals?

DR. A. B. DUTT: Kindly look at
the page 2 of my Supplementary’
‘Amendments which I have submitted
yesterday. I will read it out.

“1, There ghal) bge a Menta] Health
Tribunal in each State or Union
Territory of India,

2. Each of the Mental Health Tri-
bunals shall consist of—

(a) a number of persons (here-
matter referreq to as “the legal
members”) appointed by the State
Government on the advice of.the
Chief Justice of ‘the High Court
and having such legal experience as
the State Government considers
-suitable;

(b) a ‘humber of persong (here-
_inafter referred to as “the gpecialist
" members”) being psychiatrists as
" defined under section 2(r) of this
Act gppointed by the State Govern-
ment;

‘(¢) a pumbér of guftably qualified
ahd/or -experienced ‘medical practi-
tioners, other than employees of the
State or Central Government ap-
“pointed by theBtate Government On
‘the adwvice of ‘the ‘State or Territo-
trial Branch of ‘me Tndian Medical
vMuoeinkn

3, The membears of ‘Mental Headth
Tribunals shall held and vacate gffice
under the tering of tite instruinent un-
der wilich they are appeinted, but



may resign office by hotice in writing
to the State Government and any
such member who ceases to hold
office shall be eligible for re-appoint-
ment.

MR. CHAIRMAN: A man who re-
signs should not be reappointed. Why
do you want to reappoint him?

DR. A, B. DUTT: Anybody may
resign. Bug for those people who ure
appointed for three years after they
cease to hold office, they may be ap-
pointed. Now, coming to the Mental
Health Tribunals I will read out the
rest of the portion.

“4, One of lth.; legal members of
each Mental Health Tribunal shall be
appointed by the State Government
ag Chairman of the Tribunal,

5. Subject to rules 'wmade by the
State Government under thig Act, the
members who are to constitute a Men-
ta] Health Tribunal Tor the purposes
of any proceedings or class or group
of proceedingg under thig X¢t shall be
appointed by the Chairman of that
Tribuna) or, if for any reason he is
unable to act, by ahothey member of
that Tribunal—appointed for the
purpose by the Chairman; and of the
memberg So appointed—

(a) one or more shall be
appointed from the legal members;

(b) one or more shall be appoin-
ted from the specialist members,
and

(c) one or more shall be appoin-
ted from the members recommend-
ed by the Indian Medical Associa-

tion. ,

6. Where the Chairman of the Tri-
bunal is included among the persons
appointed under paragraph 4 of this
Scheduule, he shall be president of
the Tribunal; and in any other case
the President of the Tribunal ghall be
such one of the members so appoint-
ed (being one of the legal members)
as the Chairman may nominate.
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Powers and proceedings of Mental
Health Tribunalg

(1) Where, under any provision of
this Act, an application to a Mental
Health Tribunal is authorised to be
made by or in respect of a patient, the
application shall be made by notice
in writing addressed to the tribunal
for the State in which the psychiatric
facility in which the patient is
detained is situated or in which the
patient is residing under guardian-
ship, as the case may be.

(2) Except in such cases and at
such times as are expressly provided
by thig Act, no application ghall be
made to a Mental Health Tribunal by
or in respect of a patient; and where
under any provision of this Act, any
person is authorised to make an
application to such a tribunal within
a specified period, not more than one
such application shall be made by
that person within that period.

(8) Where application is made to a
Mental Health Tribunal by or in res-
pect of a patient who is liable to be
detained under this Act, the tribunal
may in any case direct that the
patient be discharged, and shall so
direct if they are satisfled—

(a) that he is not then a mental-
ly ill person as defined under sec-
tion 2(m) of this Act; or

(b) that iit is not necessary in
the interest of the patient’s health
or safety or for the protection of
other persong that the patient
should continue to be liable to be
detained; or

(c) that the patient, if released,
would not be likely to act in a
manner dangerous to other persons
or to himself.

(4) Where application is made to a
Mental Health Tribunal by or in res-
pect of a patient who is subject to
guardianghip under this Act, the tri-
bunal may in any cage direct that the



patient be discharged and shall so
direct if they are satisfied.

(a) that he is not then a mental-
ly ill person as defined under sec-
tion 2(r) of thig Act, or

(b) that it is not necessary in the
interest of the patient, or, for the
protection of other persons that
the patient should remain under

such guardianship.

The State Government may make
rules with respect to the making of
applications to mental health tribu-
nals, and with respect to the pro-
ceedings of such tribunals and
matters incidental to or consequen-
tial on such proceedings.”

There are four countries where this
sort of Mental Health Tribunal is in
operation. Please see pages 8 and 9
of the notes which I have prepared
for your committee. You will find
this. This provision exists in the
Mental Health Act, 1959 of England
and Wales, It is there in the Mental
Health Law, 1963 of Iesothe. It is
there in the Mental Health Decree
No. 30, 1972 of Ghana. It is there in
the Mental Health Act, 1975, of Trini-
dad and Tobago. After this 1959
enactment in England some countries
have made provisions for Mental
Health Tribunals in their new Men-
tal Health Acts. I have given the
details in my note which I have
already submitted to your Committee.

ME. CHATRMAN: Instead of Magis-
trate deciding the application, it
should be decided by Mental Health
Tribunal.

Dr. A. B. DUTT: Yes.

SHRI SAKTI KUMAR SARKAR:
Have you got experience yourself, of
these countries? You have mention-
ed several countrieg in this note. Why
is it that you say that this Act should
be made applicable here also? Why
do you say that this Act should be
introdused here? What ig it which

115

——

has provoked you to suggest this
thing to the Committee?

DR. A. B. DUIT: I was in UK.
from 1960 to 1963 myself and I have
experience in this regard. This Act
was enacted in 1850, ¢ came into
operation in 19680. This Act was
working all right there. I have seen
the report of the WHO which says
this that not more than 2.5 per cent
of the patients who are detained in
the Mental Hospitals in UK. apply
to the Tribunal. You may please see
the examples which I have given in
my note. You will see that it is
mostly the paranoild patients who
complain about the doctors and their
relatives. I have given the examples
in page 14 re: R. Vs. Mc Naughton.
This case follows the Mc Naughton
rules. I have explained this there in
my note.

SHRRI SAKTI KUMAR SARKAR:
You want to prevent the misuse of
the Act.

DR. A. B. DUTT: Instead of writing
to the magistrate, let them write to
the tribung] first. Doctors will not
be harassed. A patient was under
my care. He wrote as many ag 40
letters against me, and 13 letters
against his own familv. He wag in
West Germany where he was arrested
by the Police and wags treated in the
mental hospital. The embassy sent
him to India and he wag admitted
into my hospital. He recovered and
worked well with his hrothers, for a
few years and then hé -zaught a
relapse and was admitted for a second
time in my hospital. Before he got
admission to my hospital, he fled
away to Bombay and from there to
Delhi. He sent a telegram to his
brother for money. He was missing
again and he was ultimately traced
and brought back to Calcutta. He
wag writing letters in his own name,
in the name of other patients, in the
name of my driver, in the name of
nurses, and so on. There were enqui-
ries from all the departments and one
of the departments started proceed-
ings against me. Ultimately his



complaint proved to be completely
false. These proceedings last for
two years. These things show what
a paranoid patient cen do. You all
know abeut the case of Sumitra Dewai.
We have got to make this provision,
I have got two judgments of the
Calcutta High Court. A patient was
wandering about for the last 6 years
because of the court proceedings and
np treatment can be done by his rela-
tives only because of these proceed-
ings, She received psychiatric treat-
ment for many years at home. She
was taken away from the custody of
her mext of king by some people. A
complaint was lodged with: the
magistrate. She was recdvered’ by
the police 28 days after the incidemt.
She wag reledsed from the court by
the magistrate without the knowiledge
of her next of kins. She immediste-
ly fell into the clutches of the accus-
ed of the case once again. The sub-
divisionnl magistrate, the only magts-
trater of this court, ordered for
recording her statement under Sec-
tion 164 of the Cr. P.C. and for having
an immediate psychiatric examina-
tion by a board of psychiatrists.

Now the point is this: The magis-
tratg passes orders, Courts are not
executing them.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Magistrate is a
powerful person.

+DR. A. B. DUTT: Magistrate sim-
ply: passes the order. Now, it is the
duty of the subordinate staff to exe-
cute that order. It is brought wup
before the magistrate. When magis-
trate passes an order, it simply
remains there. She was not produced
before the Board of psychiatrists even
after the magistrate’s order. When it
wag found later on that the order of
the magistrate was not executed, an-
other magistrate wrote to the gov-
ernment to fix another date giving at
least six weeks’ time. It took 83}
months to arrange for her medical
examination after the order was pas-
sed By the magistrate, I have given
you a lot of Information in the note
which ! Rave given to your Commit-
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tee. It is an instance of the s i
divisional  Magistrate complain - 'g
against his own magistrate to 1. .}
court of the sessions. Both *
patient and the de-facto complains’
applied before the Additional Sessi
Judge to be added as partieg but ti .
Sessions Judge refused. But lookir
at the patient who was not even
party, they just thought, as she w:
very well dresses, that the questi .
of lunacy was disputed. He not or

rejected the petition but also m :
disparaging remarks against 1 |
Police.

SHRI RUDOLPH RODRIGUES:
would like to ask one or two clarifi-
cations. Do you think that there is
any need, legal or otherwise to make
a distinction which was done in the
deflnitions between different typeg of
orders? Can we not delete this part
altogether?

)

DR. A. B. DUTT: There is only one
alternative, that is, not to have any
Mentnl Health Act at all. ‘There are
one or two countries in which the
treatment of mental patients are done
under the general public health Act.
And here we must have some provi-
siong for different types of problems
which we facee Why have I men-
tioned these different types of orders?
One thing which was in my mind and
it ig well in my mind, is that it may
be very difficult to do a radical
change unless the people are consci-
oug about the mental illness and pro-
bably we will have to move step by
step. That is why keeping the struc-
ture of Bill I had to modify it. That
is why I just mentioned in my Sup-
plementary  Definitions. regarding
“prolonged care and treatment order”.
I have enclosed a copy of this with
my letter to the Committee.

SHRI RUDOLPH RODRIGUES: In-
stead of giving three defmitions, if
the Act is suitably amended in the
definitions itself, we can just say “an
order made in the provisions of the
Act covers all the definitions”. There
is np need to have such a provision.
The second thing ig this. He hag sug«



Pat

. ﬁ’”-hﬂt

“wased -an @ddition to Section 95. 1
fs just wondering that this Section
1§ as it is drafted is almost exclusive.

is the need for further pro-

4
DR..A. B. DUTT: Here the patient
& any of his relative can go straight
% any Magistrate and the Magistrate
n issue a summon to the Doctor or
T4 Medical staff or any staff of the
‘4bspital. If you kindly look at the
ientalHealth Bill, you will ind such
osrovisiot that npbody can go to a
Spwer court without taking prior per-
mission from the High Court and the
High Court will hear the matter in
camera and if the High Court is satis-
fied thag there is a prima facie, they

" will leave the patient or his party but
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sue the doctors or the staff. Other-
wise, the doctor and the medical gtaft
under this Act will always be secure
specially of the paranoid patients.

ME. CHAIRMAN: You are more

. concerned to protect the doctors and

the patients. Surely we must not
make it difficult for the patient who
ig expected to go and seek redress,

DR. A. B. DUTT: I will quote Sec-
tion 141 sub-section 2 of the Mental
Health Act of 1949 of England and
Wales. It is not my personal opinion.

“No person shall be liable whe-
ther on the ground of want of
jurisdiction or on any other ground
to any civil or criminal proceedings
to which he would have been liable
apart from thig Section in respect
of any Act purporting to be done in
pursuance of this Act or any regu-
lations or rules thereunder or in
pursuance of anything done in the
discharge of functiong conferred by
any other enactment on the autho-
rity having jurisdiction in part 8
of this Act unlesg the act was done
in a bad faith or without reason-
able care. ‘

"“No civil or criminal proceedings
shall be brought against any person
in any court in respect of any sguch
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act without th¢lspve of the High
Court and the High Court shall not
give leave under thig Section unless
satisfied that there is  substantial
ground for the contention that the
person to be procceded against has
acted in bad faith or without rea-
sonable care.

Thig section does not apply to
proceedings for an offence under
this Act being proceedings which
under any provision of this Act can
be instituted only by or with the
consent of the Director of Public
Prosecution.”

I have got this idea from this Mental
Health Act.

SHRI RUDOLPH RODRIGUES: In
his amendment to Section 28, he had
added reference to two medical cer-
tificetes. Would it not be advisable
to specify that these two medical cer-
tificates should not be from a medical
practitioner who is a relative of the
person concerned?

DR. DUTT:
Member.

I agree with the hon.

DR. SAROJINI MAHISHI: On page
8 of the summary of the UK Act
given by you, you have mentioned
the age of 25; the patient should not
be released before the age of 25.
What is the significance of this age?

DR. DUTT: That is the provision in
the Mental Health Act, UK that after
the age of 25 the patient should be
discharged unless in the opinion of
the medical officer incharge, there is
need for hig further detention in the
hospital.

MR. CHAIRMAN: What is the
significance? Is there any special
right conferred at the age of 25, or
ig there any developmental cut-off
point at this age?

DR. DUTT: I should rather express
my inability to say with what idea
that provision wag there.



MR. CHAIRMAEZWou are one of
the top psychiatrigts;*unless you are
convinced, why should you say?

DR. DUTT: Probably they have
thought that they should not spend
their life in the hospital because they
are psychopaths, and the patients
should be discharged at the age of 25.
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DR. M. SAROJNNI MAHISKF]

There is no particular significa
attached to the age of 25. .

MR. CHAIRMAN: I thank "3y,
Dr. Dutt, for having prepared suct
elaborate and informative notes fo;
us and for having taken the t:m/t‘ble"

o

_to come twice. ‘

(The witness then withdrew)





